
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Greg O'Brien 
Telephone: 01344 352044 
Email: committee@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 18 May 2015 

  

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Planning Committee 
Thursday 28 May 2015, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 

To: The Planning Committee 

To be appointed at Council on 27 May 2015. 

 

ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Planning Committee 
Thursday 28 May 2015, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media at meetings which are 
held in public are permitted.  Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are 
however advised to contact the Democratic Services Officer named as the contact for 
further information on the front of this agenda as early as possible before the start of 
the meeting so that any special arrangements can be made. 

AGENDA 
 
 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. Minutes   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 23 April 2015. 
 

1 - 10 

3. Declarations of Interest   

 Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an Affected 
Interest in a matter should withdraw from the meeting when the matter 
is under consideration and should notify the Democratic Services 
Officer in attendance that they are withdrawing as they have such an 
interest. If the Interest is not entered on the register of Members 
interests the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 
days. 
 

 

4. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 
 

 

Planning Applications 

(Head of Development Management) 
 

5. Application 15/00122/FUL - Nutcroft, 20 Priory Lane, Warfield, 
Bracknell  

 

 Erection of a single storey rear extension with roof lantern, and the 
erection of two outbuildings to provide a car port and an enclosure to 
existing outdoor swimming pool. 
 

15 - 22 

6. Application 15/00168/FUL - 1 Addiscombe Road, Crowthorne   

 Erection of a single storey side extension, creation of habitable 
accommodation within the roof space and roof lights/dormers. 

23 - 30 



 

 

 

7. Application 15/00229/FUL - Land At Felix Farm Fisheries, Howe 
Lane, Binfield, Bracknell  

 

 Erection of an acoustic barrier with access and ancillary works.  (This 
application is a revised version of 13/00869/FUL). 
 

31 - 40 

8. Application 15/00346/RTD - Junction Of Ellis Road and Old 
Wokingham Road, Crowthorne  

 

 Replacement of existing 17.5m high monopole, with a new 20m high 
monopole. 
 

41 - 46 

Miscellaneous Item 

9. Application 12/00993/OUT - Land At Amen Corner, West Of 
Beehive Road Between The Reading-Waterloo Railway Line and 
London Road, London Road, Binfield, Bracknell  

 

 Outline application with means of access to be determined, for the 
development of approximately 30 hectares of land at Amen Corner to 
provide up to 550 dwellings; a neighbourhood centre of up to 2,500 sq. 
metres (comprising accommodation within use classes A1, A2, A3, A4, 
D1 or D2); the construction of a new road between London Road and 
Cain Road; the construction of new junctions with the existing local 
road network at London Road, North View, South View and Beehive 
Road to provide vehicular access to the site; the creation of new 
accesses to the Coppid Beech Hotel/Ski Centre from the site together 
with replacement car parking spaces and the reconfiguration of existing 
car parks; the provision of associated public open space; children's 
play areas; Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG); 
Sustainable Drainage systems; internal roads, paths, car parking and 
landscaping. 
 

47 - 106 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
23 APRIL 2015 
7.30  - 9.23 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Dudley (Chairman), Brossard (Vice-Chairman), Angell, Mrs Angell, Mrs Barnard, 
Birch, Blatchford, Ms Brown, Finnie, Gbadebo, Heydon, Kensall, Leake, Mrs Phillips, 
Thompson, Virgo and Worrall 
 
Also Present: 
Councillors Mrs Hayes 

124. Minutes  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 1 April 2015 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman, subject to an 
amendment to record under minute 117 that for consideration of Application 14-
01246-FUL 1 William Sim Wood, Winkfield Row, Councillor Mrs Phillips had 
withdrawn from the meeting as the applicant was known to her. 

125. Declarations of Interest  

In relation to Agenda item no. 5 [Application 14-01246-FUL 1 William Sim Wood, 
Winkfield Row] Councillor Mrs Phillips indicated that although she did not have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter, she would withdraw from the meeting 
during consideration of it since the applicant was known to her as both had a child in 
the same class, at the same school. 

126. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no items of urgent business. 

127. Application 14/01246/FUL - 1 William Sim Wood, Winkfield Row, Bracknell, 
RG42 6PW  

Erection of a part single storey, part two storey side extension. 
 
The Committee noted: 
 

 The supplementary report of the Head of Planning tabled at the meeting. 

 The comments of Winkfield Parish Council. 

 Objections had been received from the residents of 2 neighbouring properties 
on the grounds that the proposed extension would result in adverse 
overlooking, overbearing and loss of light impacts on the residential amenity 
of their properties.  Furthermore, the amended plans submitted do not provide 
a more sympathetic impact of the proposal on the character of the 
surrounding area. 

 

1

Agenda Item 2



This application was first considered at the meeting of the Committee on 1 
April 2015 but had been deferred on the grounds of requiring an amended 
parking plan.  The amended plan had since been received and was displayed 
for the Committee. 
 
A motion to APPROVE the recommendations of the Head of Planning as set 
out in the report and on the supplementary report was moved and seconded.  
On being put to the vote the motion was LOST. 
 
Concerns were raised that the proposed extension by reason of its size, mass 
and position would result in inappropriate development in this location, 
detrimental to the character and visual amenity of the area and as such would 
be contrary to ‘saved ‘policy EN20 of BFBLP and CS7 of CSDPD. 
 
Furthermore the proposal would result in the increase in bedrooms from 3 to 4 
therefore requiring the provision of 3 parking spaces. The amended parking 
layout plan showed an additional parking space being provided south of the 
existing parking space in front of the garage, separated by the footpath 
providing access to the front door.  This would result in the need to extend the 
dropped kerb closer to the pedestrian crossing and junction of William Sim 
Wood and Carnation Drive and as such this raised the concern that this would 
be detrimental to highway safety.    
 
An alternative motion to REFUSE the application was moved and seconded.  
On being put to the vote the motion was CARRIED.  
 
RESOLVED that the application be REFUSED for the following reasons: 
 
1. The proposal by reason of its size, 

mass and position would result in a prominent feature within the 
streetscene that would be out of keeping with the character, and 
detrimental to visual amenities, of the area. The proposed development 
would therefore be contrary to Policy CS7 of the Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document, 'Saved' Policy EN20 of Bracknell Forest 
Borough Local Plan, and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
2. The proposal to enlarge the 

dwellinghouse, involves the provision of an additional bedroom resulting in 
the need to provide a further parking space, the absence of which would 
result in additional on street parking detrimental to highway safety and flow 
of traffic.  The additional parking space would be located closer to the 
existing junction and pedestrian crossing, adversely affecting highway 
safety. The proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy CS23 of the 
Core Strategy Development Plan Document, 'Saved' Policy M9 of the 
Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

128. Application 15/00106/FUL - T D S House, Terrace Road South, Binfield, RG42 
4BH  

Replacement of all existing windows, insertion of new windows to front and 
rear elevations, installation of sliding doors with juliet balconies to front 

2



elevation, installation of french doors to the rear elevation, re-cladding and 
replacement of the existing canopy. 
 
The Committee noted: 
 

 The supplementary report of the Head of Planning tabled at the meeting. 

 The comments of Binfield Parish Council. 

 Five letters of objection had been received from local residents containing 
comments summarised as follows: 

- Loss of privacy to neighbouring properties in Foxley Court and the School 
Bungalow. 
- A portable toilet has been placed just over the fence to the playground, this 
should be moved. 
- A safety fence should be erected for health and safety for the window 
replacement/insertion. 
- Concerns regarding this property on a child protection basis.  Being one 
bedroom flats they could potentially end up as rentals. As the property 
overlooks the school playground, the owners/tenants should be vetted. 

 
RESOLVED that the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.  
  
02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with 

the following plans:  
  - Drg no 13.318-001B received by LPA 06.02.2015 
  - Drg no 13.318-200B received by LPA 06.02.2015 

 - Drg no 13.318-100B received by LPA 06.02.2015 

129. Application 15/00146/FUL - 4 Knowles Avenue, Crowthorne, RG45 6DU  

Erection of a two storey front extension. 
 
The Committee noted: 
 

 The supplementary report of the Head of Planning tabled at the meeting. 

 The comments of Crowthorne Parish Council. 

 Five letters of objection had been received from residents of surrounding 
properties with comments summarised as follows: 

- The proposal would be out of character with the host dwelling and the 
surrounding area. 
- Piped streams are located underneath the site, and there are concerns that 
the construction process could damage or interrupt the flow of these features.  
- There are concerns over encroachment onto the neighbouring property of 6 
Knowles Avenue to the north. 
- There are concerns that adequate matching materials could not be practically 
obtained.   

 

RESOLVED that the application be APPROVED subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.   
  

3



02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with 
the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 18 
February 2015:  

 ADEP 3644 Sheet 2 'Proposed plans, elevations & location plan'  
  
03. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 

development hereby permitted shall be of similar appearance to those of the 
existing dwelling.  

  
04. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that 
order with or without modification), no windows at first floor level or above shall 
be installed on either the north or south-facing side elevations of the two storey 
front extension hereby permitted. 

130. Application 15/00150/FUL - 14 Green Lane, Sandhurst, GU47 9AG  

Erection of detached two-storey dwelling with parking and amenity space 
following demolition of existing garage 
 
The Committee noted: 
 

 The supplementary report of the Head of Planning tabled at the meeting. 

 The comments of Sandhurst Town Council which recommended refusal  on 
the grounds that: 
i) the application will result in a cramped development. 
ii) There is inadequate parking provision for a three bedroom property. 

 Three letters of objection had been received, containing comments 
summarised as follows: 
- Inaccuracies in application: reference is made to no. 16 Green Lane which 
does not exist, it is no. 18 which is the neighbouring property; no reference 
made to demolition of garage at no. 14 Green Lane; plans do not show 
location or size of existing dwelling at no. 18 and the extension approved at 
this dwelling; 
- Overdevelopment;  
- Businesses run from 14 Green Lane (vehicle recovery business and car 
sales); 
- Parking; 
- Access including damage to the lane 
- Impact to residential amenities of neighbouring properties 
- Installation of solar panels will be unsightly  
- There is a  mobile home in rear garden of no. 14 Green Lane  

 A letter of support from 14 Green Lane. 
 

A motion to APPROVE the recommendations of the Head of Planning as set 
out in the report and on the supplementary report was moved and seconded.  
On being put to the vote the motion was LOST. 
 
An alternative motion to REFUSE the application was moved and seconded.  
On being put to the vote that motion was also LOST.  
 
Following further consideration of information relating to the parking provision 
for the proposed new dwelling and the existing property at 14 Green Lane, a 
further motion to APPROVE the recommendations of the Head of Planning as 
set out in the report and on the supplementary report, subject to a minor 

4



amendment to the wording of Condition 12, was moved and seconded.  On 
being put to the vote the motion was carried. 
 
RESOLVED that following completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to:- 
 
01. Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area 
 
That the Head of Planning be authorised to APPROVE the application subject to the 
following condition(s):-  

 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission.  
  
02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 
13 April 2015:   

 drawing no. 2140/PL/200 Rev A 
  
03. No development shall take place until details of the materials to be used in the 

construction of the external surfaces of the development hereby permitted 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  

  
04. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no additional windows, 
similar openings or enlargement thereof shall be constructed at first floor level 
or above in the side elevations of the dwelling hereby permitted except for any 
which may be shown on the approved drawing.  

  
05. The ground floor and first floor windows in the side elevations of the dwelling 

hereby permitted shall not be glazed at any time other than with a minimum of 
Pilkington Level 3 obscure glass (or equivalent).  They shall at all times be 
fixed shut with the exception of a top hung openable fanlight.  

  
06. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until details showing 

the finished floor levels of the building hereby approved in relation to a fixed 
datum point have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority and the development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details.  

  
07. The development shall not be begun until a scheme depicting hard and soft 

landscaping has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include a 3 year post planting 
maintenance schedule. All planting comprised in the soft landscaping works 
shall be carried out and completed in full accordance with the approved 
scheme, in the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) 
to the completion of the development or prior to the occupation of any part of 
the approved development, whichever is sooner.  All hard landscaping works 
shall be carried and completed prior to the occupation of any part of the 
approved development. As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 
4428:1989 'Code Of practice For General Landscape Operations' or any 

5



subsequent revision. All trees and other plants included within the approved 
details shall be healthy, well formed specimens of a minimum quality that is 
compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications For Trees 
& Shrubs' and British Standard 4043 (where applicable) or any subsequent 
revision.  Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly 
damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the 
nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of 
the same size, species and quality as approved. The areas shown for 
landscaping shall thereafter be retained.   

  
08. No development shall be begun until details of a scheme of walls, fences and 

any other means of enclosure has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall be implemented 
in full before the occupation of the new dwelling and retained as such 
thereafter.   

  
09. The new dwelling shall not be occupied until the associated vehicle parking 

spaces for the proposed new dwelling and the existing dwelling at 14 Green 
Lane has been surfaced in accordance with the approved drawing. The 
spaces shall thereafter be kept available for parking at all times.  

  
10. The garage shall be retained for the use of the parking of vehicles at all times.

  
  
11. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a scheme has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, to 
accommodate:  

 (a) Parking of vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors  
 (b) Loading and unloading of plant and vehicles 
 (c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development  
 (d)Temporary portacabins and welfare for site operatives  
 (e) wheel washing facilities  
 and each facility shall be retained throughout the course of construction of the 

development, free from any impediment to its designated use.  No other areas 
on the site, other than those in the approved scheme shall be used for the 
purposes listed (a) to (e) above.   

  
12. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a scheme has 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for 
covered and secure cycle parking facilities.  The dwelling shall not be 
occupied until the approved scheme has been implemented.  The facilities 
shall thereafter be retained.   

  
13. No site clearance shall take place during the main bird-nesting period of 1st 

March to 31st August inclusive, unless a scheme to minimise the impact on 
nesting birds during the construction of the development has been submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  The mitigation measures 
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved scheme. 

  
14. The demolition shall not be begun until a scheme for the provision of bird and 

bat boxes (and other biodiversity enhancements), including a plan or drawing 
showing the location of these enhancements, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  

 The approved scheme shall be performed, observed and complied with.  
   

6



15. The development shall not be begun until a Sustainability Statement covering 
water efficiency aimed at achieving an average water use in new dwellings of 
110 litres/person/day, has been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the Sustainability Statement, as approved, and retained as 
such thereafter.   

  
16. The development shall not be begun until an Energy Demand Assessment 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  This shall demonstrate that a proportion of the development's 
energy requirements will be provided from on-site renewable energy 
production (which proportion shall be 10%).  The buildings thereafter 
constructed by the carrying out of the development shall be in accordance 
with the approved assessment and retained in accordance therewith.  

  
17. No development shall take place until the side facing window at first floor level 

serving a bedroom at 14 Green Lane has been relocated to the rear elevation 
of 14 Green Lane at first floor level as shown on drawing no. 2140/PL/200 
received by the Local Planning Authority on 17 February 2015 and retained 
as such thereafter. 

 
RESOLVED in the event of the S106 planning obligation(s) not being completed by 
30 June 2015 the Head of Planning  be authorised to REFUSE the application on the 
grounds of:- 

 
01. The occupants of the development would put extra pressure on the Thames 

Basin Heaths Special Protection Area and the proposal would not 
satisfactorily mitigate its impacts in this respect.  In the absence of a planning 
obligation to secure suitable avoidance and mitigation measures and access 
management monitoring arrangements, in terms that are satisfactory to the 
Local Planning Authority, the proposal would be contrary to Policy NRM6 of 
the South East Plan, Policy EN3 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan, 
Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document and the 
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation 
Supplementary Planning Document (2012). 

131. Application 15/00205/FUL - 5 Farley Moor, Golden Orb Wood, Binfield, RG42 
4BW  

Erection of a single storey front/side extension to form porch and internal 
alterations to form new en-suite on 2nd floor and conversion of existing 
basement into kitchen/gym. 
 
The Committee noted: 
 

 No objections had been raised by Binfield Parish Council. 

 No representations had been submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:-  

 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.  
  
02. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans 

and details received by the Local Planning Authority on 06.03.15:  

7



 001 (Existing floor plans), 002 (Existing elevations), 003 (Proposed floor plans), 
004 (Proposed elevations), 005 (Location and block plan)  

 
03. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 

development hereby permitted shall be similar in appearance to those of the 
existing building. 

132. Application 15/00263/RTD - Telecommunications Mast, Fernbank Road, Ascot  

Swapout of existing 13.8mTelegraph Pole and replacement with a new 13.8m 
Jupiter Pole with shrouded antennas and additional cabinet at ground level. 
 
The Committee noted: 
 

 The supplementary report of the Head of Planning tabled at the meeting. 

 Two objections had been received raising the following concerns: 
- A new mast may interfere with and block television signals 
- Third attempt to get this right.  How many more attempts do hey require? 
- Another cabinet, two are already there. 
- Has anyone actually guaranteed that it is safe on the health aspect as it is 
so close to our windows? 
- What is a Jupiter pole? 
- Positioning of the pole was not well thought out originally. 

 
RESOLVED the siting and appearance of the development proposed be APPROVED 
in accordance with the plans as stated below:- 
 
01. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans 

and details received by the Local Planning Authority on 18.03.15:  
 Drawing number 100 issue V1; 300 issue V1; 301 issue V1; 200 issue V1; 201 

issue V1.  

133. Binfield House Nursery - Application 13/00966/FUL  

The Committee received a report concerning an urgent action decision taken by the 
Director of Environment, Culture and Communities relating to the application for 
planning permission for development at Binfield House Nursery. 
 
Planning permission for the development had been approved by the Committee at its 
meeting on 26 February 2015, subject to a number of conditions, one of which 
required all parties with any legal or equitable interest in the land to enter into a 
Section 106 Agreement.  The majority of the site was currently owned by the Council, 
with a relatively small area owned by third parties.  The applicant’s solicitors had 
requested that the land in the ownership of third parties be excluded from the Section 
106 Agreement, and since the Borough Solicitor had confirmed that this would not 
undermine the effect of the proposed planning obligations, the Director, with the 
concurrence of the Chairman, had taken a decision under the Council’s urgent 
decisions procedure to amend proposed condition 41 and exclude the third party 
land.  The decision was required to be taken before 6 April otherwise the 
development would have been subject to the CIL Charging Schedule. 
 
The Committee noted the report. 

134. Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order 1176 - Land at 53, 57, 59, 61 & 65 
Oxford Road, Sandhurst - 2014  

8



The Committee considered a report requesting confirmation of this Tree Preservation 
Order, to which objections had been raised. 
 
The Committee noted two objections from the residents at 57 and 59 Oxford Road, 
Sandhurst commenting on: 
- Concerns about safety and the risk to persons and property by falling branches 
(particularly in adverse weather). 
- Shading and the subsequent loss of sunlight and ambient light to the rooms within 
the houses. 
- The maintenance implications caused by falling leaves, blocked gutters etc. 
- Concerns about the potential for the trees to cause subsidence damage to house 
foundations. 
 
RESOLVED that Tree Preservation Order (TPO 1176) Land at 53, 57, 59, 61 & 65 
Oxford Road, Sandhurst – 2015 be confirmed. 

135. Last Meeting  

Since this was the last meeting of the Committee before the elections, the Chairman 
thanked Members for their support and service, referring in particular to Councillors 
Mrs Barnard, Blatchford and Kensall who were not standing for re-election. 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

  
 

PLEASE NOTE PLANS FOR ALL OF THE APPLICATIONS ON THIS 
AGENDA CAN BE FOUND ON OUR WEBSITE 

www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
28th May 2015 

 

 
REPORTS ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS RECEIVED 

(Head of Planning) 
 

  Case 
Officer 

Reporting 
Officer 

 
5 15/00122/FUL 

Nutcroft 20 Priory Lane Warfield  
(Warfield Harvest Ride Ward) 
Erection of a single storey rear extension with 
roof lantern, and the erection of two outbuildings 
to provide a car port and an enclosure to 
existing outdoor swimming pool. 
Recommendation: Approve.   

Matthew Miller Basia Polnik 

 
6 15/00168/FUL 

1 Addiscombe Road Crowthorne Berkshire  
(Crowthorne Ward) 
Erection of a single storey side extension, 
creation of habitable accommodation within the 
roof space and roof lights/dormers 
Recommendation: Approve.   

Sarah Fryer Basia Polnik 

 
7 15/00229/FUL 

Land At Felix Farm Fisheries Howe Lane 
Binfield  
(Binfield With Warfield Ward) 
Erection of an acoustic barrier with access and 
ancillary works. 
(This application is a revised version of 
13/00869/FUL). 
Recommendation: Approve.   

Sarah Fryer Basia Polnik 

 
8 15/00346/RTD 

Junction Of Ellis Road and Old Wokingham 
Road Crowthorne Berkshire  
(Crowthorne Ward) 
Replacement of existing 17.5m high monopole, 
with a new 20m high monopole. 
Recommendation: Approve.   

Sarah Fryer Basia Polnik 

 
 
 

11

Agenda Annex



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Background Papers 
 
Background papers comprise the relevant planning application file and any document therein 
with the exception of any document which would lead to disclosure of confidential or exempt 
information as defined in section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended. 

12



 

Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - POLICY REFERENCES 
 
Key to abbreviations used in the following planning reports. 
 

BSP  Berkshire Structure Plan 2001 – 2016 
 
BFBLP Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 
BFBCS Core Strategy Development Plan Document (Submission) 
RMLP Replacement Minerals Local Plan 
WLP  Waste Local Plan for Berkshire 
SPG  Supplementary Planning Guidance 
SPD  Supplementary Planning Document 
 
RPG  Regional Planning Guidance 
RSS  Regional Spatial Strategy (also known as the South East Plan) 
 
PPG (No.) Planning Policy Guidance (Published by DCLG) 
PPS (No.) Planning Policy Statement (Published by DCLG) 
MPG  Minerals Planning Guidance 
DCLG         Department for Communities and Local Government 
 

 
THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 (“the HRA”) makes it unlawful for a public authority to act 
in a way that is incompatible with the rights set out in the European Convention of 
Human Rights. 
 
Those rights include:- 
 
Article 8 – “Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home.....” 
 
Article 1  - First Protocol “Every natural or legal person is entitled to the peaceful 
enjoyment of his possessions”. 
 
In some circumstances a local authority may be under an obligation to take positive action to 
protect an individuals interests under Article 8. 
 
The relevant Convention Rights are not absolute.  A Council may take action even though it 
interferes with private and family life, home and enjoyment of possessions, if it is for a 
legitimate purpose, necessary and proportionate.  In effect a balancing exercise has to be 
conducted between the interests of the individual and the wider public interest. 
 
Such a test very largely replicates the balancing exercise which the Council conducts under 
domestic planning legislation. 
 
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in the 
preparation of the reports contained in this agenda. 
 
The Human Rights Act will not be specifically referred to elsewhere [in the Agenda] beyond 
this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances which require a more 
detailed consideration of any Convention Rights affected. 
 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 5 
Application No. 

15/00122/FUL 
Ward: 

Warfield Harvest Ride 
Date Registered: 

5 March 2015 
Target Decision Date: 

30 April 2015 
Site Address: Nutcroft 20 Priory Lane Warfield Bracknell Berkshire 

RG42 2JU 
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension with roof lantern, and the 

erection of two outbuildings to provide a car port and an enclosure 
to existing outdoor swimming pool. 

Applicant: Mr Paul Marsden 
Agent: (There is no agent for this application) 
Case Officer: Matthew Miller, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  

 
Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.  Bracknell Forest Borough Council 100019488 2004 

 

15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

OFFICER REPORT 
 
1. REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application has been reported to the Planning Committee at the request of 
Councillor Thompson due to concerns that the proposed development would be out of 
character with the surrounding area, and would result in an adverse impact on the 
residential amenity of neighbouring properties. 
 
2. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
'Nutcroft', 20 Priory Lane is a two storey detached dwellinghouse located within a 
predominately residential area. Although the area is within defined settlement, it has a 
distinctive semi-rural character with a narrow main highway and high levels of tall 
planting fronting residential properties. The property contains a garage which has been 
converted into residential accommodation without the need of a planning application, 
with a hardsurfaced gravel driveway and soft landscaped front area. The property 
benefits from an enclosed rear garden with an outdoor swimming pool and has 
previously been extended to the rear and southern side at single storey level.  
 
The site is located within the 'Warfield Road, Priory Lane and Gough's Lane, Bracknell' 
study area defined within the Character Area Assessments Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) (2010). 
 
3. RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
13606    
Demolition of dilapidated building and re-erection of new garage/store. 
Approved (1968) 
 
19116    
Application for proposed lounge and rear porch extension. 
Approved (1973) 
 
20202    
Restoration of existing stable outbuilding and re-commencement of use as livery 
stable. 
Approved (1974) 
 
602820   
Application for single storey extension at rear forming flat for elderly relative. 
Refused (1977) 
 
15/00129/PAH  
Application for prior approval for the erection of a single storey extension following the 
demolition of the existing conservatory. 
Withdrawn (2015)  
 
4. THE PROPOSAL 
 
The development is the erection of a single storey rear extension that would connect 
the host dwelling to the detached garage to the northeast. It forms a kitchen, dining and 
living area, with associated internal alterations made to the main dwelling. It has a flat 
roof with one roof lantern, and measures 8.3 metres in total depth, 12.7 metres in 

16



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

width, and 4.5 metres in height (when including the roof lantern). It was erected 
following the demolition of a single storey rear extension forming a conservatory. 
 
It is proposed to erect a single storey outbuilding forming a double car port with a store 
room to the front (southwest) of the main dwelling. It would have a dual-pitched roof 
and measure 5.5 metres in depth, 8.5 metres in width, and 4.1 metres in height.  
 
In addition it is proposed to erect a single storey outbuilding to enclose the existing 
swimming pool sited to the southeast of the main dwelling. It would have a gable roof 
design and would measure 10.2 metres in depth, 7.0 metres in width and 5.4 metres in 
total height. 
 
The proposal is CIL-liable as the total floor space created/replaced would be 110.1 
square metres. [Officer Note: For the purposes of CIL assessment residential floor 
space includes ancillary outbuildings]. 
 
5. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
Warfield Parish Council: 
 
Warfield Parish Council object to the proposal on the grounds that the proposal would 
constitute overdevelopment of the site, to the detriment of the character of the 
surrounding area, and would result in an adverse impact on the residential amenity of 
the surrounding properties through being overbearing. 
 
Other representations: 
 
A total of 2no. objections have been received from the surrounding residential 
properties of 16 Priory Lane and 'Hazelbury', 18 Priory Lane. The objections can be 
summarised as follows: 
 
- The proposed outbuildings would result in an adverse loss of light, and be 
overbearing to the residents of 16 Priory Lane and 'Hazelbury', 18 Priory Lane 
- The proposed outbuildings would be out of character with the surrounding area and 
the development as whole would constitute overdevelopment of the site. 
- The proposed swimming pool outbuilding would result in an adverse impact on the 
roots of the trees to the immediate south. 
- The proposal would potentially result in an adverse impact on the foundations of the 
surrounding properties. 
 
[Officer Note: the matters regarding the impact of the development on the character of 
the surrounding area, residential amenity and trees are assessed in the report below. 
Building foundations are not a planning matter, and are subject to separate Building 
Regulations].  
 
No further representations have been received from neighbouring properties. 
 
6. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
Highway Officer: 
 
The Highway Officer raises no objection to the development. 
 
No further statutory or non-statutory consultations have been required. 
 

17



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

7. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
The development plan for this Borough includes the following: 
 
Site Allocations Local Plan (2013) (SALP)  
Core Strategy Development Plan Document (2008) (CSDPD)  
Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan (2002) (BFBLP)  
Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map (2013) 
 
8. PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, which is 
supported by the NPPF (paras. 2 and 12).  This is also reflected in Policy CP1 of the 
SALP sets out that a positive approach to considering development proposals which 
reflect in the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF 
should be taken, and that planning applications that accord with the development plan 
for Bracknell Forest should be approved without delay, unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.   
 
CSDPD Policies CS1 (Sustainable Development) and CS2 (Locational Principles) are 
relevant and consistent with the objectives of the NPPF, and can be afforded full 
weight. In particular, Policy CS2 permits development within defined settlements. The 
application site is located within a defined settlement as designated by the Bracknell 
Forest Borough Policies Map. Therefore, the principle of development on this site is 
acceptable. Due to its location and nature, the proposal is considered to be in 
accordance with SALP Policy CP1, CSDPD Policies CS1 (Sustainable Development), 
CS2 (Locational Principles) and the NPPF but details such as no adverse impacts upon 
residential amenities of neighbouring properties, character and appearance of 
surrounding area, highway safety implications, remain to be assessed below. 
 
9. IMPACT ON CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF AREA, INCLUDING TREES 
 
CSDPD Policy CS7 states that development will be permitted which builds upon the 
local character of the area, provides safe communities and enhances the local 
landscape where possible. BFBLP 'Saved' Policy states that planning permission will 
not be granted for development which would result in the destruction of trees and 
hedgerows which are important to the character and appearance of the surrounding 
area. BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 states that development should be in sympathy with 
the appearance and character of the local area. It further states that the design of the 
development should promote local character and a sense of local identity.  
 
These policies are considered to be consistent with the objectives set out within the 
NPPF, and as such can be afforded full weight. Para. 56 the NPPF states that good 
design is a key aspect of sustainable development and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people to live. Furthermore para. 64 of the NPPF states that 
the design of developments should take the opportunities where available to improve 
the character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 
 
The property is located within the 'Warfield Road, Priory Lane and Gough's Lane, 
Bracknell' study area defined within the Character Area Assessments SPD (2010). The 
SPD establishes that the area is defined by the high levels of planting fronting the main 
highway and within the area as a whole, and the area is defined as having an 
inconsistent architectural approach. 

18



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

 
The rear extension is not considered to be out of character with the host dwelling 
considering its single storey height and its design. The extension is partly visible in the 
street scene between the host dwelling and the originally detached garage, however 
considering its single storey height and its set back from the main highway it is not 
considered to be out of character with the surrounding area. 
 
The proposed outbuildings are not considered to be out of character with the host 
dwelling considering their nature as ancillary structures to the main dwellinghouse, and 
their overall massing and form in relation to the host dwelling. As the surrounding area 
has a predominately semi-rural character it is not considered that the proposed design 
of the outbuildings would be out of keeping in the surrounding area. In any case the 
proposed outbuildings would be significantly screened in the street scene of Priory 
Lane by the existing tall planting including hedging and trees. In relation to the 
proposed car port being sited forward of the main dwelling, various properties within 
Priory Lane contain detached outbuildings, forming garages to the front of the main 
dwellings, and therefore the siting of the proposals are not considered to be out of 
character.  
 
Considering the overall size of the property of 'Nutcroft', including its rear and front 
gardens, and the retention of existing soft landscaping, it is not considered that the 
development would constitute overdevelopment of the site. 
 
With respect to existing trees, none of the trees within the surrounding area benefit 
from Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs). Furthermore, considering the presence of 
existing hardsurfacing surrounding the swimming pool and the swimming pool itself, it 
is not considered that the proposed pool outbuilding would worsen any existing impacts 
on the roots of the trees to the immediate south within the property of 16 Priory Lane. 
 
In the event of granting planning permission it is recommended that a condition be 
imposed to provide details of the retention and maintenance of the existing soft 
landscaping features sited on the western and southern boundaries of the property, in 
the interests of the character of the surrounding area.  This is in line with BFBLP 
'Saved' Policy EN2 (supplementing tree and hedgerow cover), and also in relation to 
preserving the landscape character of the area as identified in the Character Area 
Assessments SPD. 
 
It is therefore considered that the development would not result in an adverse impact 
on the character and appearance of the area or the host dwelling, in accordance with 
CSDPD Policy CS7, BFBLP 'Saved' Policies EN1, EN2 and EN20, the Character Area 
Assessments SPD and the NPPF, subject to the recommended landscaping condition. 
 
10. IMPACT ON RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 refers to the need to not adversely affect the amenity of 
the surrounding properties and adjoining areas, through ensuring that development 
would not result in an adverse impact on neighbouring properties through loss of light, 
loss of privacy or overbearing impacts. This is considered to be consistent with the core 
design principle set out in paragraph 17 of the NPPF, which states that LPAs should 
seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings.   
 
In association with the assessment of potential loss of light and overshadowing, 
guidance within the Building Research Establishment (BRE) Report "Site layout 

19



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

planning for daylight and sunlight: a guide to good practice" (2011) is utilised as a 
standard for assessing acceptable levels of visual amenity with concern to loss of light. 
 
It is not considered that the rear extension results in an adverse impact of the 
residential amenity of 22 Priory Lane to the north considering its separation distance, 
its single storey height and the built form of the existing garage to which it connects. It 
is not considered that the rear extension adversely affects any of the remaining 
surrounding properties in terms of residential amenity. 
 
The proposed outbuilding forming a car port and storage would be visible from the 
neighbouring property of 'Hazelbury', Priory Lane to the south. Considering the 
proposed outbuilding's single storey height, the presence of tall hedging and trees 
would serve to significantly screen this outbuilding from the property. Furthermore, 
considering the siting of this outbuilding in relation to the main dwellinghouse of 
'Hazelbury', it is not considered that it would result in an adverse loss of light impact or 
be overbearing to the occupants of this property. 
 
The car port outbuilding would also be visible from the residential properties on the 
opposite side of Priory Lane to the west, however considering the separation distance 
and the presence of planting, it is not considered that the proposal would result in an 
adverse impact on the residential amenity of the occupants of these properties.  
 
The proposed outbuilding forming an enclosure to the existing swimming pool would be 
visible from 'Hazelbury', 18 Priory Lane. Considering the pitched roof layout of the 
outbuilding in combination with the existing tall planting it is not considered that the 
proposal would result in an adverse loss of light or be overbearing in comparison to the 
current site situation. The proposed pool outbuilding would also be visible from the rear 
of the property of 16 Priory Lane. For the same reasons as stated above it is not 
considered that the proposal would result in an adverse impact on the residential 
amenity of the occupants of this property, and furthermore the proposal would only 
adjoin a small section of the rear garden of no.16, with the northern and eastern sides 
of the rear garden not being affected. 
 
Three roof lights are proposed to be installed on the east-facing elevation of the pool 
outbuilding. As these roof lights would be sited at 3.8 metres above floor level it is not 
considered that they would result in an adverse loss of privacy impact on the occupants 
of no. 18. 
 
As stated in the report above, in the event of planning permission being granted, it is 
recommended that a condition be imposed regarding the retention and maintenance of 
existing soft landscaping, in order to maintain the current level of screening in relation 
to the amenity of the neighbouring properties. 
 
It is therefore considered that the development would not result in an adverse impact 
on the amenity of neighbouring properties, in accordance with BFBLP 'Saved' Policy 
EN20 and the NPPF, subject to the recommended landscaping condition. 
 
11. TRANSPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
CSDPD Policy CS23 states that the Local Planning Authority will seek to increase the 
safety of travel. BFBLP 'Saved' Policy M9 states that development will not be permitted 
unless satisfactory parking provision is made for vehicles. To supplement the above 
policies the adopted Parking Standards SPD (2007) sets out the advised levels and 
size of parking spaces for residential dwellings.   
 

20



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

These policies are considered to be consistent with the NPPF, which states that 
transport policies should contribute in facilitating sustainable development through 
reducing the need to travel and promoting public transport, and take into account local 
car ownership levels. 
 
The proposal would not involve a net increase in bedrooms, however it would 
potentially impact existing parking arrangements.  
 
The Highway Officer has been consulted on the proposal and advised that although the 
proposed double car port would be insufficient in internal size to provide acceptable 
parking (in accordance with the guidance contained within the Parking Standards SPD 
(2007)), the existing gravel driveway would not be affected by the proposal and 
therefore the existing parking arrangements would be retained. Furthermore, the 
retained driveway provides acceptable retained space following erection of the single 
storey rear extension, which has been sited on part of the former driveway 
 
As a result it is not considered that the proposed development would result in an 
adverse impact on highway safety, in accordance with CSDPD Policy CS23, BFBLP 
'Saved' Policy M9, the Parking Standards SPD, and the NPPF. 
 
CONCLUSIONS 
 
It is not considered that the development would result in an adverse impact on the 
character and appearance of the host dwelling or local area, the amenities of the 
residents of the neighbouring properties, or on highway safety, subject to the 
recommended conditions. It is therefore considered that the proposed development 
complies with Development Plan Policies SALP Policy CP1, CSDPD Policies CS1, 
CS2, CS7 and CS23, BFBLP 'Saved' Policies EN1, EN2, EN20 and M9, the Character 
Area Assessments SPD, the Parking Standards SPD, and the NPPF. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:-  
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.   
 REASON:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990. 
 
02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with 

the following approved plans received by the Local Planning Authority on 5 
March 2015:  

 Block Plan scale 1:500  
 Dwg. Title 'Proposed Ground Floor Plan' [rear extension]  
 Dwg. Title 'Proposed Elevations' [rear extension]  
 1918 (P) 'Proposed Oak Framed Pool Cover'  
 1918 jwp 'Proposed Oak Framed Garage'  
 REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the 

Local Planning Authority. 
 
03. No development (including initial site-clearance) shall commence until a detailed 

scheme for the protection of existing trees, hedgerows and other planting to be 
retained on the western and northern boundaries of the property, in accordance 
with British Standard 5837:2012 'trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction - recommendations' (or any subsequent revision), has been 

21



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Details 
shall include the positions and spreads of existing hedgerows and groups of 
mature shrubs, and all proposed tree, hedge, shrub removal and retention. Any 
trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of the 
development, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly damaged, become 
diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the nearest planting season (1st 
October to 31st March inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality 
as approved.  

 REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the 
area, and in the interests of residential amenity.  

 [Core Strategy DPD CS7, BFBLP 'Saved' Policies EN2 and EN20] 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 
01. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by identifying matters of concern at pre-application stage, and 
negotiating, with the applicant, acceptable amendments to the proposal to 
address those concerns. The proposal has been assessed against all relevant 
material considerations, including planning policies and any representations that 
may have been received.  As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been 
able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
02. No details are required to be submitted in relation to the following conditions; 

however they are required to be complied with:  
 1. Commencement  
 2. Approved plans  
    
The applicant is advised that the following conditions require discharging prior to 
commencement of development:  
 
 3. Landscaping scheme 
 
 
 
 
 

Doc. Ref: Uniform 7/DC/Agenda 
 
The application file to which this report relates can be viewed at the Council's Time Square office during office hours 
or online at www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

 

22



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 6 
Application No. 

15/00168/FUL 
Ward: 

Crowthorne 
Date Registered: 

5 March 2015 
Target Decision Date: 

30 April 2015 
Site Address: 1 Addiscombe Road Crowthorne Berkshire RG45 7JY   
Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension, creation of habitable 

accommodation within the roof space and roof lights/dormers 
Applicant: Mr Andrew Shellhorn 
Agent: Mr Geoffrey Barron 
Case Officer: Sarah Fryer, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  

 
Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.  Bracknell Forest Borough Council 100019488 2004 

 

23

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

OFFICER REPORT 
 
1. REASON FOR REPORTING APPLCIATION TO COMMITTEE 
 
This application is referred to committee as more than 3 objections have been 
received.  
 
2. SITE DESCRIPTION  
  
1 Addiscombe Road is a detached two storey dwelling located, to the south of the 
junction between Lower Broadmoor Road and Addiscombe Road, Crowthorne. To the 
north of the site is located a public car park and library whilst to the south, east and 
west the site borders other residential properties.  
 
The dwelling is set back from the road, behind an enclosed lawned area with a gravel 
driveway. There is an established vegetation screen between the application site and 
the highway. The dwelling is a two storey brick built traditional dwelling with clay tiles 
and a hipped roof. To the front there is a projecting porch with a shallow rear garden to 
the rear. The land falls away to the south of the site, with the result that the application 
site is sited at a higher level than 15 Blake Close, located to the south.  
 
3. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 
 
07/00267/FUL Erection of a part three storey, part single storey front extension, 
single storey rear extension and detached garage with home office above, following 
demolition of existing garage. Refused 14.05.2007 (refused due to the detached 
two storey garage would appear unduly prominent and would erode the gap between 
dwellings and the extension due to its design being considered out of keeping with the 
dwelling).  
 
07/00642/FUL Part single storey rear, side and rear extension and part two storey 
front extension. Approved 17.08.2007 
 
12/00982/FUL Erection of a two storey side extension to form garage with habitable 
space above, and a loft conversion. Refused 04.02.2013 (refused due to size 
siting and design would appear unduly prominent with  the streetscene, and erode 
the gap between the dwellings) 
 
14/00794/FUL Erection of part two storey, part first floor rear and side extension and 
dormer to roof.  Refused 25.11.2014 (refused due to size, siting and design 
would appear unduly prominent within the streetscene and would erode the gap 
between the dwellings 
 
4. THE PROPOSAL  
 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a one and half storey side extension 
to the east side of the dwelling. The proposal would extend 6m to the east, and be set 
in 1m from the boundary with no. 2 Addiscombe Road. The proposed extension would 
have a hipped roof with a single hipped roof dormer window proposed to the front. The 
proposal would extend beyond the rear elevation by 1m. 
 
Conversion of the roof space into habitable rooms including the insertion of one dormer 
is also proposed. This dormer would be positioned on the east roof slope of the 
projecting gable to the front elevation.  

24



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

5. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
Crowthorne Parish Council - recommend refusal due to overdevelopment of the site.  
 
Other representations  
 
5 letters of representation have been received objecting to the proposal on the 
following grounds:  
 
 Size unduly dominant 
 Overdevelopment 
 Invasion of privacy due to overlooking of neighbouring properties  
 Approval would set a worrying precedent 
 Visually overbearing  
 Prominent development which would erode open gap between properties.  
 History of similar developments being refused  
Contrary to designated special housing area.  
 
5. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
None received  
 
6. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
The Development Plan for this Borough includes the following;  
 
The development plan for this Borough includes the following: 
 
Site Allocations Local Plan (2013) (SALP)  
Core Strategy Development Plan Document (2008) (CSDPD)  
Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan (2002) (BFBLP)  
Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map (2013)  
 
7. PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that 
applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise, which is 
supported by the NPPF (paras. 2 and 12).  This is also reflected in Policy CP1 of the 
SALP which sets out that a positive approach to considering development proposals 
which reflect in the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in the 
NPPF should be taken, and that planning applications that accord with the 
development plan for Bracknell Forest should be approved without delay, unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.   
 
Core Strategy Policies CS1 (Sustainable Development) and CS2 (Locational 
Principles) are relevant and consistent with the objectives of the NPPF, and can be 
afforded full weight. In particular, Policy CS2 permits development within defined 
settlements. The application site is located within a defined settlement as designated 
by the Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map. Therefore, the principle of development 
on this site is acceptable. Due to its location and nature, the proposal is considered to 
be in accordance with SALP Policy CP1, Core Strategy Policies CS1 (Sustainable 
Development), CS2 (Locational Principles) and the NPPF but details such as no 
adverse impacts upon residential amenities of neighbouring properties, character and 

25



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

appearance of surrounding area, highway safety implications, remain to be assessed 
below. 
 
8. IMPACT ON CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF AREA 
  
Policy CS7 of the CSDPD seeks development to be of a high quality of design that 
builds on the urban, suburban and rural local character, respecting local patterns of 
development. 'Saved' policy EN20 of the BFBLP seeks development that is in 
sympathy with the appearance and character of the local environment (criterion i). The 
NPPF, para. 17 lists good design as one of the Core Planning Principles. Chapter 7, 
paras. 56 to 68, seeks high quality design that should contribute positively to making 
places better for people. Accordingly Policy CS7 of the CSDPD and 'Saved' Policy 
EN20 of the BFBLP are considered to be consistent with the NPPF. The adopted 
Character Areas SPD is also a material consideration. Of particular relevance is 
Chapter 3 Crowthorne Study Area (Area D: East Crowthorne)  
The application site is located within the East Crowthorne, (Area D) of the Crowthorne 
Study Area. This characterises the area as being carved from the forest landscape. 
Addiscombe Road is cited as one of the historic townscape features and routes which 
add to the townscape quality.  
 
The proposal has been designed to reflect the character and appearance of the 
dwelling house. The roof is hipped and has the same pitch as the original dwelling. The 
ridge of the proposal is set down from the ridge line by 1.5m, resulting in a proposal 
that is subservient to the main dwelling maintaining the form and character of the 
original property. The fenestration details match those of the original dwelling, with the 
result that the proposed extension is considered to respect the character and 
appearance of the dwelling.  
 
The siting of the extension between two dwellings is in line with the linear building line 
to the east of the site.  
 
A dormer is proposed on the eastern roof slope of the front projecting gable to enable 
the roof space to be converted to living accommodation. The dormer is hipped to match 
the character and appearance of the main roof, replicating the character of the 
dwelling. The mass of the dormer would be seen against the mass of the roof and 
accordingly the proposed dormer is considered to be in keeping with the character and 
appearance of the dwelling.  
 
Objections have been received on the grounds that the proposal would infill an 
important gap in development. The proposal would maintain a sufficient gap of almost 
2m to the boundary with no. 2 Addiscombe Road, the property to the east of the site, 
and the lower ridge line means that the proposal does not completely infill the gap and 
the original building remains the dominant feature on the site. The site is well screened 
with mature vegetation and a large tree located in the front of the site also screens 
views of the site. The character study does not highlight the gaps within development 
as contributing to the character.  
 
It is considered that given the above, the proposal is considered to be in keeping with 
the character and appearance of the dwelling, and would not detrimentally harm the 
character of the area. Accordingly the proposal is considered to be in accordance with 
Policy CS7 of the CSDPD and 'Saved' Policy EN20 of the BFBLP.   

26



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

9. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
BFPLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 refers to the need to not adversely affect the amenity of 
the surrounding properties and adjoining areas, through ensuring that development 
would not result in an adverse impact on neighbouring properties through loss of light, 
loss of privacy or overbearing impacts. This is considered to be consistent with the core 
design principle set out in paragraph 17 of the NPPF, which states that LPAs should 
seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and 
future occupants of land and buildings.   
The proposal would be sited to the west of 2 Addiscombe Road and north of 15 Blake 
Close.  
 
2 Addiscombe Road is a detached two storey dwelling with an attached garage sited 
closest to the application property. This dwelling is at a slightly higher level than the 
application site. The proposal would leave a gap of 1.9m to the boundary at its 
narrowest point, and a 2.5m gap between the properties. 
 
The proposed side extension would be sited west of 2 Addiscombe Road and would 
face a blank elevation. There are no windows proposed on the side extension facing 
this property and the proposed dormer to the western elevation of the projecting gable 
is sited 12m from the boundary and the bulk of the original dwelling house would 
restrict views into the windows of 2 Addiscombe Road. Accordingly the proposal would 
not effect the amenities of residents of this property.  
 
15 Blake Close is located to the south of the application site, at a lower level and 
separated from the application site by a 1.8m brick wall.  This property is orientated 
east west with the northern elevation having a door at first floor level.  The dwelling of 
no.15 is sited due south of the existing rear elevation of no 1 Addiscombe Road, and 
therefore the proposed extension would be located north of the rear garden of 15 Blake 
Close.  
 
The proposed extension would be sited 7m to the north of the boundary with no. 15, 
with the eves height starting at 2.2m and then the roof plane goes away from the 
boundary to the ridge height of 7m at a distance of 10.3m from the boundary. Due to 
the siting of the proposed extension to the north of no. 15 there would be no loss of 
direct sunlight to either the dwelling or the garden area. The proposal would extend the 
built form to the north of the property, however given the distances from the boundary 
and even taking into account the change in levels, it is not considered that this would 
be so overbearing as to sustain a reason for refusal.  
 
There are no windows at first floor level proposed within the side extension. Whilst 2 
roof lights are proposed to the rear roof slope, due to the angle of roof lights they 
create less overlooking than a conventional window would. It is not considered that the 
two proposed roof lights in the rear roof slope would result in the loss of privacy to the 
neighbouring occupiers to sustain a reason for refusal.   
 
Objections have been received on the grounds that the proposal is overdevelopment of 
the site. Whilst there is little amenity space to the rear of 1 Addiscombe Road, there is 
a sufficient area to the front of the property and the dwelling, with the extension would 
not cover half of the application site. It is not considered that a reason or refusal could 
be sustained on overdevelopment grounds.  
 
Given the above it is considered that the proposal complies with 'Saved' Policy EN20 of 
the BFBLP.  
 

27



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

10. TRANSPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
CSDPD CS23 states that the Local Planning Authority will seek to increase the safety 
of travel. BFBLP 'Saved' Policy M9 states that development will not be permitted unless 
satisfactory parking provision is made for vehicles. To supplement the above policies 
the adopted Parking Standards SPD (2007) sets out the advised levels and size of 
parking spaces for residential dwellings.   
 
These policies are considered to be consistent with the NPPF, which states that 
transport policies should contribute in facilitating sustainable development through 
reducing the need to travel and promoting public transport, and take into account local 
car ownership levels. 
 
The SPD require 3 spaces for properties containing 4 bedrooms or more. The property 
benefits from a gravelled area to the front of the property that can accommodate 3 
vehicles. The proposal therefore meets the parking requirement and would not result in 
any on-street parking to the detriment of highway safety.   
 
The proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with CSDPD Policy CS23, 
BFBLP 'Saved' Policy M9 and the NPPF. 
 
11. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)  
 
Bracknell Forest Council introduced charging for its Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) on 6th April 2015.  CIL is applied as a charge on each square metre of new 
development. The amount payable varies depending on the location of the 
development within the borough and the type of development.  
 
CIL applies to any new build (except outline applications and some reserved matters 
applications that leave some reserved matters still to be submitted) including 
extensions of 100 square metres of gross internal floor space, or more, or new build 
that involves the creation of additional dwellings. 
 
As the proposal would involve an existing dwelling and at 51.64 square metres of 
additional floor area it would not result in an extension of over 100 square metres of 
gross internal floor space, the development is therefore not CIL liable. 
 
12. CONCLUSIONS 
 
The proposed side extension and loft conversion incorporating a side facing dormer 
window has been sensitively designed and would not detract from the character or 
appearance of the original dwelling. The proposal would maintain the character and 
appearance of the area and is not considered to sufficiently affect the amenities of 
neighbouring residents to sustain a refusal of planning permission. The proposal is 
considered to be acceptable and complies with Policies CS7 and CS23 of the CSDPD, 
and 'Saved' polices EN20 and M9 of the BFBLP.  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:-  
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.  
   

28



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

 REASON:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.  

 
02. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and 

details received by the Local Planning Authority:  
 1 Addiscombe Road, Location Plan @ 04.03.15, no. ARS1 b, and ARS3 received 

05.03.15  
 ARS2 E. received 27.04.15  
 To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local 

Planning Authority. 
 
03. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the 

development hereby permitted shall be similar in appearance to those of the 
existing building.  

 REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.  
 [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN20, Core Strategy DPD CS7] 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 
01. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as 
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable 
amendments to the proposal to address those concerns.  As a result, the Local 
Planning Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an 
acceptable proposal, in accordance with the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
02. Please note the conditions attached to this permission. Whilst none of them 

require the submission of additional information, all must  be complied with. 
 
 
 
 
 

Doc. Ref: Uniform 7/DC/Agenda 
 
The application file to which this report relates can be viewed at the Council's Time Square office during office hours 
or online at www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 7 
Application No. 

15/00229/FUL 
Ward: 

Binfield With Warfield 
Date Registered: 

11 March 2015 
Target Decision Date: 

6 May 2015 
Site Address: Land At Felix Farm Fisheries Howe Lane Binfield 

Bracknell Berkshire  
Proposal: Erection of an acoustic barrier with access and ancillary works. 

(This application is a revised version of 13/00869/FUL). 
Applicant: Felix Farm Fisheries 
Agent: Land and Mineral Mangement 
Case Officer: Sarah Fryer, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  

 
Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.  Bracknell Forest Borough Council 100019488 2004 

 

31

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

OFFICER REPORT 
 
1. RESON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE 
 
The application is reported to committee as more than 3 objections have been 
received.  
 
2. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The site is a fishing lake surrounded by grass and vegetation. There is a small car park 
accessed off of an unmade track and two buildings on site. To the north the site is 
bounded by the M4, with wooded areas to the north and west. To the south and east is 
farmland.  
 
3. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 
 
13/00869/FUL Formation of acoustic barrier with access and ancillary works.
 Refused  25.02.2015 (Refused on highway safety grounds due to conflict with 
other users of a public bridleway which was used to provide access to the site.) 
 
4. THE PROPOSAL 
 
The proposal is for the construction of an acoustic barrier in the form of a 6.25m high 
bund and a temporary access road at Felix Farm Fisheries. The bund has been sited 
as to wrap around the western side of the lake, would be approximately 285m long and 
varying in width between 70m and 45m.   
 
The acoustic barrier is proposed in order to reduce the noise generated by the M4 to 
the North West and would be created from waste from other sites. The bund would be 
subject to extensive planting of native shrub and tree species. 
 
The application includes the construction of a temporary access road to transport 
material on to the site. This would utilise an existing access onto Howe Lane which 
currently serves an agricultural building located to the east of the lake, from which a 
temporary access road would be constructed across the field, to the existing entrance 
of the fisheries, and around the southern side of the lake. The temporary road would be 
removed once the bund was constructed. The access route has been amended since 
the previous application was refused.  
 
5. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
Binfield Parish Council Recommend refusal for the following reasons:  
There would be too many movements of heavy duty lorries resulting in unacceptable 
increase in noise levels 
It is more about commercial tipping then noise abatement.  
Debris is likely to be a hazard on countryside roads.  
Should the application proceed, vehicle movements should only be allowed during 
working hours, Monday to Friday 9am to 5pm.   
 
Other representations  
 
Bray Parish Council object to the proposal on the grounds of the increased vehicle 
movements through Holyport on the A330, Ascot Road.  
 

32



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

9 representations have been received objecting to the proposal on the following 
grounds 
 Proposal would result in debris on the highway resulting in damage to vehicles.  

M4 8 Lane smart Motorway improvements proposes new low noise road surface 
throughout reducing the need for the bund.  
Severe consequences for other users of Howe Lane (i.e. dog walkers, horse 
riders)  
Visibility splays could be improved by cutting back vegetation- is this contrary to 
Green Belt Policy?  

 Bund would be harmful to the visual amenity of the Green Belt.  
Lorries crossing the narrow bridge on Howe Lane, to the north of the site would 
be chaos and all traffic should be directed towards Binfield.  
Proposal would result in the noise of the motorway being deflected towards other 
surrounding properties.  
Other acoustic treatments available which would not necessitate the large 
number of vehicle movements.  

 Hours of operation would be detrimental to the nearby occupiers.  
Transport report does not detail how HGV's will access Howe Lane.  
Proposal is unacceptable due to noise and environmental pollution caused by the 
vehicular movements.  

 
6. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
Highways England- No objections  
Environmental Health- No objections  
Environment Agency - No objections but informatives requested 
Berkshire Archaeology- no objections subject to conditions  
Highways Officer- No objections subject to conditions  
Bio-diversity Officer-No objections subject to conditions  
Rights of Way Officer - No objections subject to conditions  
Wokingham Borough Council - No objections 
 
7. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
The Development Plan for this Borough includes the following: 
 
Site Allocations Local Plan 2013 (SALP) 
'Retained' Policies of the South East Plan 2009 (SEP) 
Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008 (CSDPD) 
'Saved' Policies of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 2002 (BFBLP) 
Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map 2013 
 
8. PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
SALP Policy CP1 refers to the presumption in favour of sustainable development as 
outlined within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). SALP Policy CP1 
states that the Council will act proactively and positively with applicants to seek 
solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to 
improve the economic, social and environmental conditions within the area. Planning 
applications that accord with the policies in the development plan for Bracknell Forest 
should be approved without delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
The site is located in within the Green Belt on the Bracknell Forest Borough Policies 
Map (2013).  
 

33



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

CSDPD Policy CS1 sets out a number of sustainable development principles including 
making efficient use of land and buildings where it protects the character and quality of 
local landscapes. 
 
CSDPD Policy CS2 states that development will be permitted within defined 
settlements and on allocated sites. Development that is consistent with the character, 
accessibility and provision of infrastructure and services within that settlement will be 
permitted, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
 
These policies are considered to be consistent with the sustainable development 
principles of the NPPF and as a consequence are considered to carry significant 
weight. 
 
'Saved' Policy GB1 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan states: 
 
Approval will not be given, except in very special circumstances, for any new building in 
the Green Belt unless it is acceptable in scale, form, effect, character and siting, would 
not cause road safety or traffic generation problems and is for one of the following 
purposes:  
(i) construction of buildings for agriculture or forestry; or 
(ii) construction of buildings essential for outdoor sport and recreation or other uses of 
land which preserve the openness of the Green Belt; or 
(iii) construction of buildings essential for cemeteries; or 
(iv) replacement, alteration or limited extension of existing dwellings; or  
(v) construction of domestic outbuildings incidental to the enjoyment of an existing 
dwelling. 
 
'Saved' Policy GB1 is not considered to be entirely consistent with the NPPF. The 
NPPF does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting 
point for decision making. However, it is a material consideration.  
 
The proposal is development not listed in saved Policy GB1 and is therefore contrary to 
'Saved' Policy GB1 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan. However, as already 
mentioned, Policy GB1 is not entirely consistent with the NPPF. As it was adopted prior 
to 2004, the weight that can be given to this policy is diminished.  
 
The NPPF states (para 90): 
"Certain other forms of development are also not inappropriate in Green Belt provided 
they preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not conflict with the purposes of 
including land in Green Belt. These are: 
 - mineral extraction; 
 - engineering operations" 
 
Under the NPPF the proposed bund and temporary access road is an engineering 
operation and could be considered acceptable in the Green Belt provided they do not 
affect the openness of the Green Belt. This is discussed below.  
 
It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in principle. 
 
9. IMPACT ON CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF AREA 
 
CSDPD Policy CS7 states that development will be permitted which builds upon the 
local character of the area, provides safe communities and enhances the local 
landscape where possible. BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 states that development should 
be in sympathy with the appearance and character of the local area. 

34



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

 
These policies are considered to be consistent with the objectives set out within the 
NPPF. In addition para. 56 of the NPPF states that good design is a key aspect of 
sustainable development and should contribute positively to making places better for 
people to live. Furthermore para. 64 of the NPPF states that development should only 
be granted when the design takes the opportunities where available to improve the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions. 
 
The earth bund would be barely visible from any public vantage point and it would be 
set back within the site which is well screened on all boundaries.  
 
Given the applicants proposal to seed the earth bund with native species and it's 
existing setting in close proximity to the M4, a man-made structure, it is not considered 
that it would impact upon the visual openness of the Green Belt setting insofar as 
detracting from its natural topography so as to warrant a reason for refusal. It is 
recommended that landscaping conditions be imposed to ensure that a suitable 
planting scheme is implemented and retained.  
 
It is therefore considered that the development would not result in an adverse impact 
on the character and appearance of the area and would be in accordance with CSDPD 
Policy CS7, BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 and the NPPF. 
 
10. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 criterion vii, refers to the need to not adversely affect the 
amenity of the surrounding properties and adjoining areas. This is considered to be 
consistent with the core principle relating to design in paragraph 17 of the NPPF, which 
states that LPAs should seek a good standard of amenity for all existing and future 
occupants of land and buildings. 
 
The closest dwelling is some 320m from the proposed bund. As such there would be 
no loss of amenity to this dwelling. 
 
Objections have been received regarding the potential deflection of noise by the bund 
increasing the noise levels at surrounding residential properties. The Environmental 
Health Officer has been consulted on this specific point and has stated that this would 
be unlikely as the bund would have absorptive properties. It is considered that it would 
not be possible to sustain a reason for refusal on loss of amenity from the proposal.  
 
It is therefore considered that the development would not result in an adverse impact 
on the amenity of neighbouring properties, and is therefore in accordance with BFBLP 
'Saved' Policy EN20 and the NPPF. 
 
11. TRANSPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
CSDPD Policy CS23 states that the LPA will seek to increase the safety of travel. The 
NPPF seeks to achieve a safe and suitable access to new development sites for all 
people. The policy is therefore considered to be consistent with the NPPF.  
 
The proposed bund would require the importation of 60,000 cubic metres of inert waste 
material on to the site. It is proposed that this will completed over 2 years using HGV's 
at around 8-10 loads per day, and not more than 25 loads in a single day.  
 
Access to the proposal has been amended from application 13/00869/FUL so that 
vehicles utilise an existing dairy access consisting of an 8m wide concrete road. The 

35



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

access road would pass south of the dairy unit building, and follow a new 150m haul 
road into the Felix Farm property where it would cross over Mare Lane at right angles, 
reducing the conflict with public rights of way.  
 
The Highways Officer has noted that the existing dairy farm access is already used by 
large vehicles accessing the dairy farm and the 8m wide concrete surfaced access 
would enable additional large vehicles to access the site at its junction with Howe Lane. 
Sight lines in excess of 200m can be achieved in either direction at a set back of 2.4 
metres, considered appropriate for the national speed limit road. The current access 
proposals would be acceptable to the Highway Authority subject to the following 
conditions.  
 
 Details demonstrating on-site turning for large vehicles within the site so that 
vehicles can exit the site across Mere Lane in a forward gear.  
 Wheel washing facilities to prevent mud and debris being transported on to the 
public highway and causing a danger for other road users.  
 Specific details including the width, surfacing and drainage of the haul road, 
including signage to ensure the safe movement of large vehicles across a right of way.  
 
The applicant has confirmed that vehicles would be able to turn within the site and it 
would be unlikely that any would reverse from the site. It is therefore not considered 
that this condition is necessary.  
 
The applicant has raised concerns of practicality and cost to install wheel washing 
facilities at the exit on to Howe Lane. It is considered that given the length of the hard 
surfacing, minimal mud, and debris would transfer onto the public highway. The 
applicant has stated that it may be possibly to clean the wheels at the agricultural 
building and therefore it is recommended that a condition be worded to require a 
scheme for the washing of wheels to be submitted, so a practical but effective solution 
can be found.  
 
Objections have been received regarding vehicle movements on Howe Lane. This is an 
unnumbered classified road and not subject to weight restrictions and used by large 
farm vehicles and trucks. As no objection has been received from the Highways 
Officer, it is not considered that the increased vehicle movements by HGV's would be a 
sustained reason for refusal.  
 
It is therefore considered that the proposal is in accordance with CSDPD Policy CS23 
and the NPPF. 
 
12. BIODIVERSITY 
 
CSDPD Policy CS1 seeks to protect and enhance biodiversity and CS7 seeks to 
enhance and promote biodiversity. This is considered to be consistent with the NPPF 
which states that planning should contribute to "minimising impacts on biodiversity and 
providing net gains in biodiversity where possible, contributing to the Government's 
commitment to halt the overall decline in biodiversity, including by establishing 
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures." 
 
The ecological appraisal shows a good population of reptiles on site.  An outline 
mitigation plan has been included along with the survey results.  However, details are 
missing from this and a full mitigation strategy for reptiles should be prepared and 
submitted.  
 

36



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Some details are included for a planting and management plan for the bund.  More 
details are required including a timetabled and costed management plan for the bund.  
Further details of how this plan would contribute to the Biodiversity Opportunity Area 
are required.  Consideration to ecological connectivity should also be given when 
designing the planting scheme.  A planting and management plan could also be a 
condition of planning permission.  
 
Therefore the following conditions are required to cover bio-diversity:  
 Protection of nesting birds 
 Bio-diversity enhancement scheme 
 Hard and soft landscaping  
 Reptile mitigation scheme 
 
Accordingly, subject to the above conditions the proposal is not considered to harm the 
bio-diversity of the site and therefore is considered acceptable on grounds of bio-
diversity.  
 
13. PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY 
 
'Saved' Policy R8 of the BFBLP seeks the protection, extension and enhancement of 
public rights of way. This is considered to be in accordance with the NPPF's objectives 
of promoting sustainable transport and improving local health.  
 
The revised proposed access would cross Mere Lane, a restricted byway (byway 23) at 
right angles opposite the existing access to the fisheries. The proposal has been 
amended to reduce the conflict with Binfield Restricted Byway 22 to a crossing point. 
The Right of Way Officer has supported the Highways Officer request for details of 
signs, visibility splays at the crossing point of the proposed haul road and byway.  
 
Subject to the imposition of suitability worded condition to reduce the impact of the 
proposed Haul road on users of the public by way, then there are no objections from a 
public right of way perspective and the proposal is considered to comply with 'Saved 
Policy R8 of the BFBLP.  
 
14. ARCHAEOLOGY 
 
'Saved' Policy EN7 seeks protect important archaeological remains, and where 
appropriate will require an assessment of the site. The NPPF seeks the preservation of 
heritage assets in an approach proportionate with their significance.   
 
The lake at Felix Farm Fisheries was originally a gravel pit providing gravel in the 
construction of the M4. An archaeological desk based assessment was undertaken in 
1994 in relation to the widening of the motorway. This confirmed that a significant part 
of land on   which the bund will be placed has lost any archaeological potential. The 
applicants have suggested laying a temporary track system which would negate the 
need to remove any topsoil and therefore leave any archaeological remains in situ. 
Following the submission of this information the Archaeologist has removed the 
requirement for an archaeological desk top assessment, and has requested a condition 
relating to the construction of the haul road.   
   
Subject to a condition to ensure that the haul road is constructed so not as to remove 
the top soil, the proposal would be unlikely to adversely affect any archaeological 
remains and therefore the proposal is considered to comply with 'Saved' Policy EN7 of 
the BFBLP.  
 

37



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

15. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)  
 
Bracknell Forest Council introduced charging for its Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL) on 6th April 2015.  CIL is applied as a charge on each square metre of new 
development. The amount payable varies depending on the location of the 
development within the borough and the type of development.  
 
CIL applies to any new build (except outline applications and some reserved matters 
applications that leave some reserved matters still to be submitted) including 
extensions of 100 square metres of gross internal floor space, or more, or new build 
that involves the creation of additional dwellings. 
 
As this development does not involve new build, it is not CIL chargeable.  
 
16. OTHER ISSUES 
 
Objections have been received on the grounds that there are other engineering 
solutions to reducing the noise levels within the area of the lake. Whilst this might be 
the case, the application should be considered as submitted.  
 
17. CONCLUSION 
 
It is not considered that the proposed bund would detrimentally affect the visual 
amenity of the area, nor would the proposed vehicle movements required to import the 
material result in a detriment to highway safety. The proposal is not considered to 
detrimentally affect the safe continued use of the public by way which it crosses nor 
detrimentally affect the bio-diversity of the area. The proposal is therefore considered 
to comply with Policies CS1, CS2 CS7 and CS23 of the CSDPD and 'Saved' Polices 
EN7, R8, GB1 and EN20 of the BFBLP, and the NPPF.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:-  
 
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.  
 REASON:  To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990.  
 
02. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and 

details received by the Local Planning Authority on 09.03.15:  
 Location plan (scale 1:1500), Site plan (scale 1:5000), 0856/1464/01C 

(redesigned screening bund showing three cross sections)   
 REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by 

The Local Planning Authority. 
 
03. No development shall take place until details of the proposed construction of the 

new haul road, including details of how the junction with Mere Lane shall be 
managed, have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The haul road shall then be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.   

 REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
 [Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23] 
 

38



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

04. Prior to the commencement of development a scheme for the cleaning of wheels 
of the construction vehicles, to prevent the transportation of mud, stones, and 
debris from the site onto the public highway, shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall then be implemented 
in accordance with the approved detail and shall not be removed until the 
proposed bund is constructed.  

 REASON: In the interest of highway safety.  
 
05. The development shall not be begun until a scheme depicting soft landscaping 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The scheme shall include a 3 year post planting maintenance schedule.   

 All planting comprised in the soft landscaping works shall be carried out and 
completed in full accordance with the approved scheme, in the nearest planting 
season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) to the completion of the 
development.  As a minimum, the quality of all soft landscape works shall be 
carried out in accordance with British Standard 4428:1989 'Code Of practice For 
General Landscape Operations' or any subsequent revision. All trees and other 
plants included within the approved details shall be healthy, well formed 
specimens of a minimum quality that is compatible with British Standard 
3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications For Trees & Shrubs' and British Standard 4043 
(where applicable) or any subsequent revision.  Any trees or other plants which 
within a period of 5 years from the completion of the development, die, are 
removed, uprooted, are significantly damaged, become diseased or deformed, 
shall be replaced during the nearest planting season (1st October to 31st March 
inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality as approved.  

 REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the 
area.  

 [Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 
 
06. No site clearance shall take place during the main bird-nesting period of 1st 

March to 31st August inclusive, unless a scheme to minimise the impact on 
nesting birds during the construction of the development has been submitted to 
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. This shall be implemented as 
approved.   

 REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
 [Relevant Plans and Policies: BFBLP EN3 CS1, CS7] 
 
07. The development shall not be begun until a scheme for the provision of 

biodiversity enhancements (e.g. reptile refugia, nest boxes etc…), including a 
plan or drawing showing the location of these enhancements, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 The approved scheme shall be performed, observed and complied with.  
 REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
 [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7] 
 
08. The development (including site clearance and demolition) shall not begin until a 

scheme to mitigate the impact of the development on reptiles has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The scheme shall 
include details of:  

 o measures to avoid harm to reptiles  
 o features provided to mitigate the loss of habitat (e.g. hibernacula)  
 o habitat enhancements (not mitigation)  
 o on-going management of new features/habitat  
   

39



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

 The mitigation scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details, unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. An 
ecological site inspection report shall be submitted for approval within three 
months of completion of the development hereby approved.  

 REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
 [Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1] 
 
 
 
Informative(s): 
 
01. Your attention is drawn to the conditions attached to this permission. Conditions 

3, 4, 5, 7 and 8, require details to be submitted prior to commencement of 
development. All conditions must be complied with. 

 
02. This development will require an Environmental Permit under the Environmental 

Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations 2010 from the Environment 
Agency.   

   
 We recommended producing a site waste management plan (SWMP). you must 

still comply with the duty of care for waste. Because you will need to record all 
waste movements in one document, having a SWMP will help you to ensure 
you comply with the duty of care. 

 
03. The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining 

this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations, 
including planning policies and any representations that may have been 
received and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in 
accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set 
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
04. Condition 4 requires details of how the junction between the Haul Road and 

Mare Lane will be constructed. These details should include, signage making 
drivers aware of the public driveway and possibly requiring them to stop before 
crossing, especially from an easterly direction and the visibility splays onto Mare 
Lane especially for vehicles travelling in a westerly direction. 

 
 
 
 
 

Doc. Ref: Uniform 7/DC/Agenda 
 
The application file to which this report relates can be viewed at the Council's Time Square office during office hours 
or online at www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

 

40



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 8 
Application No. 

15/00346/RTD 
Ward: 

Crowthorne 
Date Registered: 

16 April 2015 
Target Decision Date: 

10 June 2015 
Site Address: Junction Of Ellis Road and Old Wokingham Road 

Crowthorne Berkshire    
Proposal: Replacement of existing 17.5m high monopole, with a new 20m high 

monopole. 
Applicant: Telefonica UK Ltd 
Agent: Mr Charles White 
Case Officer: Sarah Fryer, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  

 
Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.  Bracknell Forest Borough Council 100019488 2004 

 

41

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

OFFICER REPORT 
 
1. REASON FOR REPORTING APPLICATION TO COMMITTEE 
 
This application has been reported before the Planning Committee as the application 
has to be determined within 56 days.  
 
2. PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS FOR TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
Class (a) A, Part 16, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (GPDO) deals with permitted development for 
telecommunications development. 
 
Class (a) A relates to the installation, alteration or replacement of any 
telecommunications apparatus.  
A.1 states that development is not permitted by Class A (a) if- 
(c) in the case of the alteration or replacement of apparatus already installed (other 
than on a building or other structure, on article 2(3) land or on any land which is, or is 
within, a site of special scientific interest) - 
 
(i) the mast, excluding any antenna, would when altered or replaced - 
(aa) exceed a height of 20m above ground level; 
(bb) at any given height exceed the width of the existing mast at the same height by 
more than one third.  
 
The proposed installation would not exceed a height of 20m and would not exceed the 
width of the existing mast by more than one third and therefore as proposed the mast 
complies with the above criteria.  
 
However, as the proposal is adjacent to a classified road, in a prominent location, and it 
is proposed to increase the height of the mast it is necessary to assess the siting of the 
mast in terms of highway safety and its visual appearance and as such Prior Approval 
is therefore required 
 
3. SITE DESCRIPTION 
 
The site is located on the east side of Old Wokingham Road, opposite the junction with 
Ellis Road. To the east there are mature trees and open countryside, however this site 
is allocated as a mixed use development and benefits from outline permission. To the 
west the site faces a residential estate located with Wokingham Borough Council.  
 
4. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 
 
06/00426/FUL Submission of details of siting and appearance for the erection of a 
17.5m high telecommunications mast with associated equipment cabin. Refused- due 
to highway safety concerns relating to servicing vehicles parking opposite a junction 
(Allowed on appeal)  
 
5. THE PROPOSAL 
 
This application seeks prior approval to replace the existing 17.5m mast with a 20m 
dual stack Jupiter mast. The plans also show an additional equipment housing cabinet 
located on the southern side of Ellis Road. However this is located within Wokingham 

42



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

Borough and therefore cannot be considered under this application. The application 
form indicates that the mast would be painted green.  
 
The mast would be shared by two companies, Vodafone and Telefonica (commonly 
known as O2) and the location of the mast would remain as existing. 
 
The proposed installation would provide an upgrade to maintain continued coverage 
and capacity of the existing networks for Vodafone and Telefonica but also to cater for 
future 4G coverage demands. For information, 4G services are intended to improve 
mobile broadband, allowing greater capacities of data to be shared with faster speeds.  
 
The mast and associated antennae are 'permitted development', but the developer 
must apply to the Local Planning Authority (LPA) to ascertain whether prior approval is 
required for the siting and appearance of the development. In this instance the 
applicants have submitted these details for approval and the Council has 56 days in 
which to consider them. 
 
The applicant has submitted a certificate, which confirms that the proposed mast meets 
ICNIRP (International Commission on Non-Ionising Radiation Protection) guidelines. 
 
The mast is located 690m to the south east of Hatch Lane Primary School.  
 
6. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
To date one representation has been received objecting the proposal on the following 
grounds: 
 
o Mast is already offensive within the landscape 
o Parking of maintenance vehicles causes a nuisance to local residents.  
 
7. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES  
  
Wokingham Borough Council − no comments. 
 
8. DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 
The Development Plan for this Borough includes the following: 
 
Site Allocations Location Plan 2013 (SALP) 
Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2008 (CSDPD) 
'Saved' Policies of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan 2002 (BFBLP) 
Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map 2013 
 
9. PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
In assessing RTD applications the Council must only consider the impacts in terms of 
the character and appearance and highway safety of the development. As such the 
principle of the development is not required to be assessed. 
  
10. IMPACT ON CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE OF AREA 
 
Policy CS7 of the CSDPD and 'saved' Policy EN20 of the BFBLP relate to design 
considerations in new proposals and are relevant considerations. These policies seek 
to ensure that developments are sympathetic to the character of the area. This is 
consistent with the NPPF.  

43



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

 
Whilst 'Saved' Policy SC4 of the BFBLP is not entirely consistent with Section 5 
(supporting high quality communications infrastructure) of the NPPF in respect of 
'need', it states at point (iii): 
 
"Planning permission for network telecommunications development will be permitted 
provided that... There is no reasonable possibility of erecting antennas in an existing 
building or structure or of sharing facilities...The development must be sited so as to 
minimise its visual impact, subject to technical and operational considerations." The 
proposal would be for an upgrade to an existing mast and would also constitute a mast 
share between Vodafone and Telefonica (commonly known as O2).  
 
The proposal seeks consent for an increase in height of 2.5m to the mast to 
accommodate additional antennas resulting from an additional operator using the mast. 
To ensure that adequate coverage is maintained and no additional masts are required 
it is necessary to increase the height of the mast. The replacement mast would be sited 
in the same location as the existing structure, utilising the existing foundations and 
fixing bolts. The siting within the verge, and where the mast would be seen against a 
backdrop of trees, offers adequate screening reducing the impact of the proposal on 
the streetscene. The proposed green finished colour would further assimilate the mast 
into the surroundings and it is recommended that a condition be imposed to ensure that 
the mast is finished in this colour.  
 
The proposed design of the mast is considered to comply with BFBLP 'saved' Policy 
EN20, and CSDPD Policy CS7 and accordingly is considered to be acceptable. 
 
11. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY 
 
BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 (criterion vii) refers to the need to not adversely affect the 
amenity of the surrounding properties and adjoining areas. This is considered to be 
consistent with the general design principles laid out in paras. 56 to 66 of the NPPF. 
 
The proposed mast would be sited opposite a road junction and not directly opposite 
any residential dwellings. Given its located within the highway verge, against a 
vegetation belt, it is not considered that the proposal would detrimentally affect the 
amenities of neighbouring residents.  
 
As such, the proposal would not be considered to affect the residential amenities of 
neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with 'saved' Policy EN20, criterion 
vii, of the BFBLP and the NPPF. 
 
12. HIGHWAY SAFETY 
 
CSDPD Policy CS23 states that the LPA will seek to increase highway safety. This 
policy is considered consistent with the NPPF.  
 
The equipment is located on the highway verge and there is no material change in the 
access arrangements for maintenance of the mast. 
 
In summary, no highway safety issues would result from the proposal and it would be in 
accordance with Policy CS23 of the CSDPD and the NPPF.  

44



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

13. HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 
 
Section 5, Para 46 of the NPPF states "Local planning authorities must determine 
applications on planning grounds. They should not...determine health safeguards if the 
proposal meets International Commission guidelines for public exposure".  
 
The applicant has submitted a certificate, which confirms that the proposed mast meets 
ICNIRP (International Commission on Non-Ionising Radiation Protection) guidelines.  
 
The International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation Protection (ICNIRP) is an 
independent scientific body which has produced an international set of guidelines for 
public exposure to radio frequency waves.  
 
These guidelines were recommended in the Stewart Report and adopted by the 
Government, replacing the National Radiological Protection Board (NRPB) guidelines. 
 
It is considered; therefore, that there are no grounds for refusal based on perceived 
health risks. 
 
14. NEED 
 
'Saved' Policy SC4 of BFBLP refers to telecommunication development being 
permitted provided there is a need for the development.  
 
Para 46 of the NPPF also relates to need of telecommunications infrastructure. "Local 
planning authorities must determine applications on planning grounds. They should not 
seek to prevent competition between different operators, question the need for the 
telecommunications system".  
 
As such, the issue of need is not a planning consideration and therefore in this respect 
'Saved' Policy SC4 of BFBLP is inconsistent with national policy. 
 
15. CONCLUSION 
 
It is considered that the proposed new mast 2.5m taller than the existing structure, 
adjacent to an existing mature wooded area would not adversely impact upon the 
character or appearance of the surrounding area to such a degree that refusal of the 
application would be warranted. Furthermore, no highway safety implications would 
result from the proposal. As such, the proposal is considered to be in accordance with, 
Policies CS7 and CS23 of the CSDPD, 'Saved' Policy EN20 of BFBLP and the NPPF. 
With regard to 'Saved' Policy SC4 limited weight is given to this policy for the reason 
given above.   
 
Therefore it is recommended that prior approval be granted for the development. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

The siting and appearance of the development proposed be APPROVED in 
accordance with the plans as stated below:- 
 
01. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans and 

details received by the Local Planning Authority on 16.04.2015:  
 Drawing numbers 100 issue A, 200 issue A, 300 issue A, 301 issue A. 
 

45



Planning Committee  28th May 2015 
 

02. The mast hereby approved shall be finished in Fir Green RAL 6009 and shall be 
maintained as such.  

 Reason: In the interest of the visual amenity of the area.   
 (Polices; CSDPD: CS7, BFBLP EN20) 
 
 
 
 
 

Doc. Ref: Uniform 7/DC/Agenda 
 
The application file to which this report relates can be viewed at the Council's Time Square office during office hours 
or online at www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

 

46



 

 
 MISCELLANEOUS ITEM  

Unrestricted item  
PLANNING COMMITTEE  

28
th
 May 2015 

 
PLANNING APPLICATION 12/00993/OUT  

Land at Amen Corner, London Road, Binfield 
 

Head of Planning  

 
 1 PURPOSE 
  
To update Members on the progress on the s106 agreement and to seek authorisation for amended 
obligations required as a result of the introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on the 6th 
April 2015 .  
 
2 RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

 That authority to approve the application be delegated to the Head of Planning upon the 
completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 relating to:- 

 
 01. The provision of an appropriate level of affordable housing; 
 
 02. Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of residential development upon the Thames 

Basins Heath Special Protection Area (SPA), including the provision in perpetuity of on-site 
bespoke Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG); a financial contribution towards 
Strategic Access Management and Monitoring; and any other measures that are required to 
satisfy Habitat Regulations, the Council's Thames Basins Heaths SPA Avoidance and Mitigation 
Strategy and relevant guidance. 

 
 03. Securing the timely provision of, and contributions to, local facilities and services including: 
 - Transport measures to mitigate the development's impact on roads and encourage sustainable 

modes of transport, including the provision of cycleways along London Road and Residential 
and  School Travel Plans; 

 - On-site provision of a Primary School; 
 - a financial contribution towards the provision by others of a multi-functional community hub; 
 - a comprehensive package of on-site Open Space of Public Value, in accordance with 

standards; 
 - The provision of waste recycling facilities. 
 
 Where on-site provision is made for infrastructure or services where the intention is that the 

responsibility for long term management is to be transferred to the Council or other body, in 
addition a financial contribution towards commuted maintenance and management costs will be 
sought. 

 
 and subject to the conditions listed in the report, amended, added to or deleted as he considers 

necessary. 
 
 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1. INTRODUCTION 
 
This application was reported to Planning Committee on 21st August 2014.  The committee resolved that upon 
the completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 the 
Head of Development Management be authorised to approve the application subject to various conditions. 
  47

Agenda Item 9



 

This report provides an update on these matters and explains that due to protracted negotiations with the 
applicant and other landowners it was not possible to complete a s106 agreement securing the terms in the 
committee resolution before the introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on the 6th April 2015. 
The introduction of CIL has resulted in a number of the matters that previously were to be secured through the 
s106 agreement will now be secured through CIL payments.  As a result these elements can no longer lawfully 
be sought under the s106 agreement and this report seeks Members agreement to an amended set of 
obligations to be secured through a s106 agreement.  Discussions have taken place with the applicant and 
other landowners and agreement has been reached to the terms now being recommended to Committee. 
 
This report should be read alongside the full Committee report considered by Members on the 21st August 
2014. 
 
3.2.  S106 OBLIGATIONS 
 
The Committee resolution required the completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990  relating to:- 
 
01. The provision of an appropriate level of affordable housing; 
 
02. Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of residential development upon the Thames Basins Heath 
Special Protection Area (SPA), including the provision in perpetuity of on-site bespoke Suitable Alternative 
Natural Greenspace (SANG); a financial contribution towards Strategic Access Management and Monitoring; 
and any other measures that are required to satisfy Habitat Regulations, the Council's Thames Basins Heaths 
SPA Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and relevant guidance. 
 
03. Securing the timely provision of, and contributions to, local facilities and services including: 
 - A comprehensive package of on and off-site transport measures (either through provision in kind or a 
 financial contribution towards provision by others) to mitigate the development's impact on roads and 
 encourage sustainable modes of transport; 
 - On-site in-kind provision of a Primary School; 
 - a financial contribution towards the provision by others of Secondary education, post-16 education 
 and Special Educational Needs places; 
 - a financial contribution towards the provision by others of a multi-functional community hub; 
 - a financial contribution towards the provision by others of improvements to existing library facilities; 
 - a financial contribution towards the provision by others of improvements to existing built sport facilities 
 - a comprehensive package of on-site Open Space of Public Value, in accordance with standards; 
 - The provision of waste recycling facilities. 
 
Where on-site provision is made for infrastructure or services where the intention is that the responsibility for 
long term management is to be transferred to the Council or other body, in addition a financial contribution 
towards commuted maintenance and management costs will be sought. 
 
Following the introduction of CIL on the 6th April 2015 a number of the items listed under point 3) fall within the 
Council’s “regulation 123 list” of infrastructure types and projects to be funded by CIL.  As this development 
will now be liable to pay CIL at £150 per sq metre under the Council’s adopted CIL charging schedule it will 
automatically contribute towards the provision of these projects. The contributions that this relates to are: 
 
- on and off-site transport measures (including bus subsidies); 
- the provision of Secondary education, post-16 education and Special Educational Needs places; 
- the provision of improvements to existing library facilities; 
- the provision of improvements to existing built sport facilities. 
 
In the light of the above in order to avoid collecting for the same items of infrastructure twice it is necessary to 
amend the s106 agreement to remove the above items.  The terms of an amended s106 agreement have 
been agreed with the applicant and other landowners that are considered to be fair and reasonable, striking a 
balance between securing the delivery of essential infrastructure and services to serve the needs of the 
proposed development, including a reasonable proportion of affordable housing, without prejudicing the 
comprehensive development of the larger site allocated under Policy SA8 of the Site Allocations Local Plan for 
725 dwellings, or the ability to deliver a viable development, thereby providing a substantial and timely 
contribution to this Borough’s housing land supply targets. 
 
The amended s106 agreement contains obligations that, inter alia, secure the following: 

48



 

 
a) No less than 25% of the dwellings will be affordable Housing. This level of affordable housing is 
considered appropriate, and is in accordance with the Development Plan and the Council’s affordable housing 
policy. 
 
b) The provision of a SANG on Council owned land at Big Wood, a second on-site SANG at Riggs Copse 
and the on-going management of both SANGs until either the site is returned to the Council (Big Wood) or 
ownership transferred to the Council in accordance with a SANG Management Plan (Riggs Copse). In addition 
it provides for financial contributions towards the future maintenance of the SANGs and towards Strategic 
Access Management and Monitoring. It is considered that these obligations will secure appropriate measures 
to avoid and mitigate the impact of residential development upon the Thames Basins Heath Special Protection 
Area (SPA) and as such will satisfy the Habitat Regulations, the Council's Thames Basins Heaths SPA 
Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and relevant guidance. 
 
c) The provision of: 
 
- A cycleway along the northern side of London Road (or a financial contribution towards this if provided by 
others); 
- An on site primary school; 
- A financial contribution towards the cost of providing community facilities able to serve the development; 
- A comprehensive package of on-site Open Space of Public Value including provisions for its long term 
management and financial contributions towards its future maintenance;  
- The provision of waste recycling facilities; and 
- Residential and School Travel Plans 
 
It is considered that the above obligations will secure adequate infrastructure and services to support growth 
and to mitigate the impact of this development upon communities, transport & the environment in accordance 
with Policy CS6.   
 
3.3 CONCLUSION 
 
SALP Policy CP1 set out the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This requires that 
development proposals should be approved that accord with the development plan.  Where this is absent, 
silent or relevant policies out of date, development proposals should be approved unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The relevant development plan policies relating to the principle of 
development are up to date and consistent with the NPPF and as such carry substantial weight.  
 
The application site was considered in the preparation of the SALP and ultimately it was allocated for 
development by SALP Policy SA8 when the local plan was adopted in 2013.  For the reasons set out in the 
previous committee report the proposed development is considered to be acceptable as it would be in 
accordance with the NPPF, Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan, Policy SA8 of the SALP, and Policies CS2, 
CS9, CS14 and CS15 of the Core Strategy. 
 
This report has considered the matters listed in the previous committee resolution in the light of the changed 
circumstances following the adoption of CIL, and the implications of this on the Committee’s previous 
resolution in respect of the s106 obligations to be sought.  It has set out the amendments to the s106 
obligations required to take account of CIL.  An amended s106 has been negotiated with the applicant and 
other landowners that will secure adequate infrastructure and services to support growth and to mitigate the 
impact of this development upon communities, transport and the environment in accordance with Policy CS6.  
 
The applicant has worked with the Local Planning Authority to agree the wording of various conditions, a 
number of which have been revised from the list set out in the previous committee report.  These revised 
conditions are set out below. 
 
Therefore, subject to the completion of a s106 agreement containing obligations as set out above, and the 
following conditions, the proposed development is considered to be acceptable and the application is 
accordingly recommended for approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That authority to approve the application be delegated to the Head of Planning upon the completion of 
planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to:- 

49



 

 
01. The provision of an appropriate level of affordable housing; 
 
02. Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of residential development upon the Thames Basins Heath 
Special Protection Area (SPA), including the provision in perpetuity of on-site bespoke Suitable Alternative 
Natural Greenspace (SANG); a financial contribution towards Strategic Access Management and Monitoring; 
and any other measures that are required to satisfy Habitat Regulations, the Council's Thames Basins Heaths 
SPA Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and relevant guidance. 
 
03. Securing the timely provision of, and/or contributions to, local facilities and services including: 
 - Transport measures to mitigate the development's impact on roads and  encourage sustainable 
 modes of transport, including the provision of a cycleway along the northern side of London Road and 
 Residential and School Travel Plans; 
 - On-site provision of a Primary School; 
 - a financial contribution towards the provision by others of a multi-functional community hub; 
 - a comprehensive package of on-site Open Space of Public Value, in accordance with standards; 
 - The provision of waste recycling facilities. 
 
Where on-site provision is made for infrastructure or services where the intention is that the responsibility for 
long term management is to be transferred to the Council or other body, in addition a financial contribution 
towards commuted maintenance and management costs will be sought. 
 
and subject to the conditions listed below, amended, added to or deleted as he considers necessary. 
  
 
01. Approval of the details of the scale of the buildings, the access for (other than the vehicular access 
to/from the site which is not reserved) and the layout, appearance and landscaping of the development 
(hereinafter called "the Reserved Matters") for each phase of development (as defined within the details to be 
submitted and approved pursuant to condition 4) shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing 
before development of that phase is commenced.  Development of each phase shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details for that phase, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 
 

02. Application(s) for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority before 
the expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 
REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
 

03. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of two years from date 
of the final approval of reserved matters, or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the 
last such matter to be approved.  
REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
 

04.  The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until an overarching site wide Phasing Strategy 
 and Planning Submission Programme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
 Planning Authority.  
 
 The Phasing Strategy shall comprise the following details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
 Local Planning Authority: 
    
 i. A phasing strategy diagram which illustrates the location of each Phase of development;  
 ii. A phasing strategy diagram which illustrates the sequence in which the Phases will be carried 

out; 
 iii. A schedule of the proposed land use components including the approximate number of 

dwellings and non residential floorspace/ land area within each Phase of the development; 
 iv. The Phases within which any occupied buildings and structures will be demolished; existing 

accesses removed and existing uses will cease;    
 v) The Phases within which the on and off site highway works specified in conditions 17, 18 and 21 

will be completed; 
50



 

 vi)  The Phases within which areas of Open Space of Public Value and Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG) that relate to more than one Phase will be laid out; 

 vii) The Phases within which drainage works (Surface and Foul water) that relate to more than one 
Phase will be undertaken; 

 viii) The Phases within which structural earthworks and landscaping that relate to more than one 
Phase will be carried out; 

 ix) The Phases within which Utilities that relate to more than one Phase will be provided; and  
 x) The Phases within which land remediation and other Environmental mitigation works identified in 

the Environmental Statement that relate to more than one Phase will be carried out. 
 
 The development shall thereafter only be carried out in accordance with the approved Phasing 

Strategy (as may be amended from time to time by agreement in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority).  

  
 The Planning Submission Programme shall set out the anticipated sequence for the submission of 

the Masterplan, Design Code, Reserved Matters and other details as referred to in other conditions 
attached to this permission  

   
 The Masterplan, Design Code, Reserved Matters and other details as referred to in other 

conditions attached to this permission shall thereafter be submitted in accordance with the 
approved Planning Submission Programme (as may be amended from time to time by agreement 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority).  

    
 For the purposes of this planning permission the extent of a ‘phase’ shall be determined in 

accordance with this condition.  
 

REASON: In order to ensure a phased programme of development in the interests of proper planning 
and the comprehensive redevelopment of the area. 

     
05.   Prior to commencement of each phase of development, a Demolition and Construction Programme for 

 that phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
 Demolition and Construction Programme will outline the anticipated sequence in which the following 
 works within that phase (where relevant to that phase) will be carried out: 
 
 i.   Demolition works; 
 ii.  Tree Clearance works; 
 iii.  Earthworks; 
 iv.   Land remediation and other Environmental mitigation works identified in the Environmental 
 Statement; 
 v.   Surface and Foul Water drainage works; 
 vi.   Utility works; 
 vii.   On and off site highway works, including alterations for construction access; vii.   Pedestrian/cyclist 
 routes; 
 viii.  Structural landscaping works; 
 vix.  Recycling facilities; 
 x.  Construction works (including areas of Open Space of Public Value and Suitable Alternative Natural 
 Greenspace); 
 xi.  Public Art 
   

 Thereafter the development of each phase shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
 Demolition and Construction Programme for that phase. 
 
 REASON: In order to ensure a phased programme of development in the interests of proper planning 
 and the comprehensive redevelopment of the area. 

 
06. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following plans:  

    
 PD27/D Site application boundary submitted 12th June 2014  
 PD86/A Site application boundary showing land relating to planning applications to Bracknell 

Forest Council & Wokingham Borough Council submitted 12th June 2014  
 PD98/A  Parameters Drawing submitted 12th June 2014  
 PD127 London Road Sections submitted 29th July 2014  

51



 

 23732-001-SK006-C Proposed highway layout (showing details of cycleway) submitted 29th July 
2014  

 23732-001-004-Q Proposed highway layout submitted 29th July 2014  
 REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning 

Authority.  
   

07.  Prior to the submission of the first Reserved Matters application a Masterplan for the whole site shall be 
 submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority containing the following details: 
 (a) The disposition of the development within the site including the proposed land uses and density 

of development 
 (b) The principles of vehicular, pedestrian and cyclist access to the development 
 (c) The landscaping principles for the development 
 (d) The design principles for the development 
 (e) A plan showing the different Character Areas within the site based on the principles in the 

Design and Access Statement 
 
 The details comprised in the reserved matters shall comply in all respects with the approved 

Master Plan 
 
REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise appropriate control of the design of the 
development 
 

 08 Prior to the submission of the first Reserved Matters application for each character area within the 
development a Design Code for that Character area shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The Design Code shall be based on the design principles in the Design and 
Access Statement and set out further information in relation to the following:  
    
 i.  A Built Form Strategy setting out principles of layout, permeability, street enclosure, active 

frontages, building form, orientation, scale, massing and  palette of external materials.  This shall 
include an analysis of how these principles inform character, and contain example streetscenes;  

 ii.  Mix of dwelling types;  
 iii. Hard and soft landscaping strategy including examples of boundary treatment  
 iv. A strategy for the design of the public realm including layout of streets, squares, areas of public 

open space and areas for play;  
 v.  A Lighting Strategy;  
 xi. A Parking Strategy (including cycle parking and storage) 
 xii. An Access Strategy to secure an inclusive development for all  
 xiii. Integration of strategic utility requirements, landscaping and highway design  
 xiv. Public art  
    

 Thereafter all Reserved Matters applications shall be submitted in accordance with the approved Design 
Codes (as may be amended from time to time by written agreement with the Local Planning Authority).
  

     
 REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise appropriate control of the design of the 

development 
 

09. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a written scheme of archaeological 
investigation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority setting out a 
phased programme of archaeological works.  Thereafter no part of any phase of the development hereby 
permitted shall commence until the archaeological investigation work for that phase as set out in the 
approved scheme has been carried out. 
 

 REASON: In the interests of the archaeological and historical heritage of the Borough.   
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy CS14; BFBLP EN6, EN7] 
 

10. Any application for the approval of landscaping as a Reserved Matter in a specific phase shall include 
details of the following (where applicable) in respect of that phase:  
    
 i. The proposed finished ground levels or contours  
 ii. Underground service and external lighting layout (drainage, power, communications cables, 

pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes etc.), both existing reused and proposed new routes. 
52



 

 iii. Comprehensive planting plans of an appropriate scale and level of detail that provides adequate 
clarity including details of ground preparation and all other operations associated with plant and 
grass establishment, full schedules of plants, noting species, and detailed plant sizes/root stock 
specifications, planting layout, proposed numbers/densities locations.  

 iv. Details of semi mature tree planting.  
 v.Means of enclosure (walls and fences etc)  
 vi. Paving including pedestrian open spaces, paths, patios, proposed materials and construction 

methods, cycle routes, parking courts,.  
 vii. Recycling/refuse or other storage units,   
 viii. The creation of new water and associated habitats including landscaped buffers to 

watercourses  
 ix. Any other landscape features (water features, seating, trellis and pergolas etc).  
     
 Each Plot (defined as a building together with its curtilage) shall be landscaped and completed in full 

accordance with the approved landscape scheme for that Plot, prior to its practical completion.  In 

respect to off-Plot landscaping, the approved landscaping scheme for each phase shall be 
implemented in accordance with the details approved pursuant to this condition relative to that 
phase, in the first planting season following completion of the development in the phase and 
maintained for a period of 5 years thereafter 

    
 REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the area. 

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 
 

11. Any application for the approval of landscaping as a Reserved Matter in a specific phase shall include a 
landscape management plan, including details of:  
    
a) long term design objectives;  
b) timing of works;    
c)    management responsibilities; and     
d)  maintenance schedules  
    
for all publically accessible landscape areas including cycle/footways within that phase (other than the 
SANGs and domestic gardens). Any approval of landscaping as a reserved Matter shall not be 
implemented until a Landscape Management Plan in respect thereof has been approved.  Each 
approved landscape management plan shall be performed and complied with unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
     
As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with 
British Standard 4428:1989 'Code Of practice For General Landscape Operations' or any subsequent 
revision. All trees and other plants included within the approved details shall be healthy, well formed 
specimens of a minimum quality that is compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 
'Specifications for Trees & Shrubs' or any subsequent revision.  Any trees or other plants which within a 
period of 5 years from the completion of the Phase or Sub Phase, die, are removed, uprooted, are 
significantly damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the nearest planting 
season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of the same size, species and quality as 
approved, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.  

    
 REASON: To ensure that the landscaping is maintained in the interests of the visual amenities of the 

area.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 
 

12. No Phase of development shall be begun until the following details for that phase have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:-  
    
a) a comprehensive land (topographical) survey in accordance with Section 4 of British Standard 
5837:2012 'Trees In Relation to Construction Recommendations' (or any subsequent revision), 
identifying the positions of all existing trees over 75mm diameter at 1.5m (unless in woodland when over 
150mm diameter) to be retained (including their crown spreads) together with any retained hedgerows or 
shrubbery on the land to be retained in that phase;  
    

 b) details of any proposed topping or lopping of any retained tree, or of any tree on land adjacent to the 
respective phase which overhangs that phase; and  

53



 

    
c) details of any proposed alterations in existing ground levels, and of the position of any proposed 
excavation, within the crown spread of any retained tree or of any tree on land adjacent to the respective 
phase.   
    
In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is to be retained in accordance with the 
survey referred to in paragraph (a) above. Any works carried out under b) or c) shall be in accordance 
with the approved details. 
    
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies within 5 years of the completion of a phase, 
another tree shall be planted at the same location and the replacement tree shall be of such size and 
species (and shall be planted at such  time) as may be specified in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.  
    
REASON: In order to safeguard the vegetation that is considered to be worthy of retention in the 
interests of the visual amenities of the area.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 
 

13. All existing trees, hedgerows and groups of mature shrubs shown to be retained on the survey approved 
by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 13 (part a) shall be protected by 2.3m high 
(minimum) protective barriers, supported by a metal scaffold framework, constructed in accordance with 
Section 9 (Figure 2) of British Standard 5837:2012, or any subsequent revision. The protective fencing 
shall be erected in the locations to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of each phase and shall be retained until the completion of all building operations within 
that phase.  
   
REASON: In order to safeguard the vegetation that is considered to be worthy of retention in the 
interests of the visual amenities of the area.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 
 

14. Save for domestic gardens, once laid out/planted the areas shown for hard and soft landscaping 
purposes on the plans approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 1 shall thereafter 
be retained as such and shall not be used for any other purpose without the prior written permission of 
the Local Planning Authority.   
    
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 
 

15. No Phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until all existing uses still taking place 
within the area covered by that phase have ceased, and any existing accesses onto the public highway 
serving these uses (other than any that are proposed to be re-used for the new development hereby 
permitted) permanently stopped up.  
 

 REASON: In the interests of road safety and the amenities of the locality. 
[Relevant Policy: CS CS23; BFBLP M4] 
 

16. Unless otherwise agreed in a site wide Phasing Strategy approved under condition 4, no construction of 
any building hereby permitted shall be commenced until the following highway works have been 
completed in general accordance with the works shown on drawing 23732-001-004-Q: 
    
a. construction of a junction between the Spine Road and London Road;  

 b. construction of the north western section of the Spine Road between London Road and the internal 
roundabout. 

  
During the construction works above, vehicular access shall be maintained at all times to all existing 
properties on London Road. 
 
REASON: In the interests of road safety and the amenities of the locality. 
[Relevant Policy: CS CS23; BFBLP M4] 

   

54



 

17.   The following highway works shall be completed in accordance with the site wide Phasing Strategy 
approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 4, and in general accordance with the 
with the works shown on drawing 23732-001-004-Q: 

 
i. construction of improvement works to the Cain Road/ Beehive Road/ John Nike Way roundabout; 

 ii. construction of the southern/ eastern section of the Spine Road between the internal roundabout and 
the Cain Road roundabout; 
iii. construction of a new access from Beehive Road to the Spine Road and a new turning head on 
Beehive Road;  

 iv. construction of a new access from North View to the Spine Road and a new turning head on North 
View; 

 v.  construction of a new access from South View to the Spine Road and a new turning head on South 
View; 

 
 The works i.-v. listed above shall not be begun until replacement parking for the John Nike Leisuresport 

Complex has been provided in accordance with details set out in an approved reserved matters 
application.  

 
 REASON: In the interests of road safety and the amenities of the locality. 

 [Relevant Policy: CS CS23; BFBLP M4] 
  
18.  No Phase of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the access works in respect of 

that Phase as set out in the approved Demolition and Construction Programme have been completed to 
the satisfaction of the Highway Authority in accordance with the following drawings (subject to any minor 
variations that may be required through the completion of a S278 agreement with the Highway 
Authority):   
    
23732-001-SK006-C Proposed highway layout (showing details of cycleway)  
23732-001-004-Q Proposed highway layout   
    
Thereafter such accesses shall be retained and there shall be no motor vehicular access or egress from 
the development hereby permitted onto London Road, North View, South View, Beehive road or Cain 
Road other than from these approved accesses.  
    
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
[Relevant Policies: CS CS23] 
 

19. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no dwelling or other building shall be 
practically completed until:  
    
(a) a means of vehicular access for that dwelling or building; and     
(b) a means of access for that dwelling or building for pedestrians and cyclists; and    
(c) vehicle and cycle parking spaces for that dwelling or building;  
    
have been constructed in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Such accesses and parking spaces shall thereafter be retained.  
    
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate car parking to prevent the 
likelihood of on-street car parking and in the interests of the accessibility of the site to pedestrians, 
cyclists and vehicles.  
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23; BFBLP M9] 
 

20. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be constructed to Practical Completion until works to widen the 
existing footway on the south side of London Road between the proposed signal controlled crossing of 
London Road and John Nike Way to create a footway/cycleway have been constructed in general 
accordance with the works shown on drawings 23732-001-004-Q and  23732-001-SK006-C. 

   
REASON: In the interests of accessibility and to facilitate access by cyclists and/or pedestrians.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23]  

 
21. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a strategy outlining the general system of 

drainage for foul and surface water flows arising from the entire site in accordance with the submitted 
55



 

Flood Risk Assessment, based on sustainable drainage principles, and evidence of an assessment of 
the hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The strategy shall include details of any necessary 
infrastructure required for its implementation.  Thereafter, detailed schemes for surface water and foul 
drainage for any phase of development (pursuant to Conditions 22 and 23) shall be prepared in 
accordance with the agreed strategy for the entire site. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of flooding  

 
22.  No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until a detailed surface water drainage 

scheme for that phase, based on the site wide drainage strategy approved under condition 21, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The surface water drainage 
strategy for each phase should demonstrate (a) that the surface water run-off rate generated up to and 
including the 1 in 100 year with an allowance for climate change critical storm will not exceed the run-off 
rate from the undeveloped site following the corresponding rainfall event; (b) that adequate rights exist to 
permit discharge into the balancing pond owned by Hewlett Packard in so far as this is relevant to the 
phase; and, (c) that soakaways are not constructed onto contaminated land.  The scheme for each 
phase shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of any 
development within that phase and retained thereafter. 
 
REASON: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of flooding.  There 
are specific areas of this site identified as having a previous potentially contaminative use. To prevent 
enhanced mobilisation of unidentified pollutants within the soils or within areas identified as historic 
landfills surface water drainage systems must not discharge through contaminated land.  
 

23. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until, a detailed foul water drainage 
strategy for that phase detailing any on and/or off site drainage works to upgrade the foul drainage 
network in respect of that phase, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The foul water drainage strategy for each phase shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details prior to the occupation of any dwelling or building within that phase.   
    
Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient foul drainage capacity 
is made available to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid adverse environmental 
impact upon the community.  
 

24. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until an Energy Demand Assessment relating to 
the entire site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall 
demonstrate:  
    
(a)  that before taking account of any on-site renewable energy production the proposed development 
will reduce estimated carbon dioxide emissions by at least 10% against the appropriate Target Emission 
Rate as set out in Part L of the Building Regulations (2006), and  
(b)  that 20% of the development's energy requirements will be provided from on-site renewable energy 
production.  
    

 The development hereby permitted shall be constructed in accordance with the measures outlined in the 
approved assessment and those measures shall be retained thereafter.  
    
REASON: In the interests of the sustainability and the efficient use of resources.  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CS Policy CS12] 
 

25. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until a Sustainability Statement, in 
accordance with the requirements set out in the Sustainable Resource Supplementary Planning 
Document (October 2008), has been submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the Sustainability Statement, as 
approved, and retained as such thereafter.  

 REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources. 
 [Relevant Policy: Core Strategy DPD CS10] 
 
26. No Phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until a remediation options appraisal 

and/or a Tier 3 geo-environmental risk assessment containing a detailed site specific Remediation 
Strategy for that Phase to further assess the identified geo-environmental risks has been submitted to 

56



 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The remediation strategy shall be implemented 
in full before the commencement of the development of that Phase (other than that required to be carried 
out as part of the approved scheme of remediation) and as approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 No buildings shall be commenced within a Phase until a Site Completion Report for that Phase has been 

submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The Site Completion Report shall 
detail the conclusions, actions taken and verification methodology at each stage of the works and include 
the results of a sampling and analysis programme to confirm the adequacy of decontamination. It should 
demonstrate that an appropriately qualified person oversaw the implementation of all remediation. 

 
 The Site Completion Report shall: (i) include confirmation that all remediation measures have been 

carried out fully in accordance with the remediation scheme; (ii) include results of the verification 
programme of post-remediation sampling and monitoring conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the 
Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11" and the 
CIRIA C665 in order to demonstrate that the required remediation has been fully met; and (iii) set out 
future monitoring and reporting proposals. The future monitoring and reporting proposals shall be 
implemented and performed. 

   
 If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present then no further 

development (other than any further development agreed in writing with the local planning authority) 
shall be carried out until a remediation strategy detailing how the unidentified contamination shall be 
dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
remediation strategy shall be implemented in full before the continuation of any development of that 
Phase (other than that required to be carried out as part of the approved scheme of remediation) and as 
approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
     
REASON: The proposed development is located on a potentially contaminated site, due to its historic 
land use.  This site is sited over an isolated outcrop of Bagshot Beds and Claygate member (Secondary 
A Aquifers) and there is sufficient groundwater in these aquifers to feed springs that emanate radially 
from the site.  The Phase 1 and 2 reports submitted identify a moderate risk of harm to human health for 
the residential area of the proposed development and that hotspots for certain contaminants have been 
identified.  In accordance with the recommendations of the Phase 1 and 2 reports a Phase 3 report is 
required to further assess and remediate the identified geo-environmental risks to ensure the 
development is suitable for its end use and the wider environment and does not create undue risks to 
occupiers of the site or surrounding areas.   
[Relevant Policy: BFBLP EN25]  
  

27. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until a scheme detailing all external street 
lighting and lighting to public open spaces in that phase has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.   
      
The development of each phase shall be implemented in accordance with the approved lighting scheme 
for that phase prior to first occupation of any development within that phase or within any other period as 
may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and retained thereafter. 
  
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN15, EN2O and EN25] 
 

28. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until an Ecological Mitigation Scheme for 
that phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Unless 
otherwise agreed the scheme shall include: 
i. all the mitigation measures outlined in chapter 10 of the Environmental Statement: 
ii. details and a plan showing proposed areas of wildlife permeable fencing; 
iii. details and a plan showing the provision of bird and bats boxes or wildlife gates. 

 
The development of each phase shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details for that 
phase and retained thereafter. An ecological site inspection report for each phase shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within three months of the first occupation of any 
dwelling within each phase.   
  
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation   

57



 

[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7] 
 

29. No phase of the development hereby permitted (including site clearance and demolition) shall be begun 
until:- 

 (i)  A report containing updated protected species surveys and a new survey of orchids for that phase 
carried out by a suitably qualified ecologist, together with an assessment of the implications, and revised 
mitigation and monitoring measures for that phase, has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing; and  
 
(ii) the Local Planning Authority has agreed that either no relocation of protected species or orchids is 
necessary for that phase, or that the relocation of protected species or orchids has been achieved in 
accordance with the approved mitigation and monitoring measures. 
 
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation and to ensure the status of protected species on site 
has not changed since the last survey.  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy CS1, CS7] 
 

30. No site clearance shall take place during the main bird-nesting period of 1st March to 31st August 
inclusive, unless a scheme to minimise the impact on nesting birds during the construction of the 
development has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: BFBLP EN3 CS1, CS7] 
 

31. No phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until a scheme for protecting the 
proposed dwellings/gardens within that phase from noise has been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority. Any works which form part of the scheme approved by the Local Planning 
Authority for that phase shall be completed before any dwelling in that phase is occupied. 
  
REASON: To ensure that the amenities of the future residents is not adversely affected by noise. As the 
road traffic noise assessment indicates that noise mitigation is required as part of this development in 
order to ensure acceptable internal noise levels for future residential properties as per BS8233:2014 
criteria and nearby existing residential properties.  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: BFBLP EN25] 
 

32. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a site-wide Construction and Environmental 
Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The site-wide CEMP shall incorporate a Site Waste Management Plan; a Materials 
Management Plan; a Dust Management Plan; and Wildlife Protection Plan.   
    
No phase of development shall commence until a Construction Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) for that Phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  
    
The site-wide CEMP and each Phase CEMP shall include as a minimum:   
(i) a Construction Logistics/ Site Organisation Plan (save in respect of the site-wide CEMP)  
(ii) The location of construction access for the relevant phase of demolition and construction (save in 
respect of the site-wide CEMP);  
(iii) The routing of construction traffic (including directional signage and appropriate traffic management 
measures) to minimise the impact of local residents and other road users  
(iv) Details of the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors   
(v) Areas for loading and unloading of plant and materials   
(vi) Areas for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development (vii) The erection 
and maintenance of security hoarding    
(viii) External lighting of the site   
(ix) Method of piling for foundations   
(x) Measures to control the emission of dust, dirt, noise and odour during construction (xi) Measures to 
control surface water run-off   
(xii) Measures to prevent ground and water pollution from contaminants on-site  
(xiii) construction working hours and hours during which delivery vehicles or vehicles taking materials 
away are allowed to enter or leave the site;    
(xiv) Details of wheel-washing facilities;   58



 

(xv) details in respect of measures to minimise, re-use and re-cycle waste; minimise the pollution 
potential of unavoidable waste; and dispose of unavoidable waste in an environmentally acceptable 
manner;   
(xvi) details of measures to mitigate the impact of construction activities on ecology including a) an 
appropriate scale plan showing where construction activities are restricted and protective measures; b) 
details of protective measures to avoid impacts during construction; c) a timetable to show phasing of 
construction activities; and d) persons responsible for compliance with legal consents, planning 
conditions, installation of protective measures, inspection and maintenance; and   
(xvii) Details of a monitoring regime to demonstrate compliance with the CEMP including timings for 
reports to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.    
The approved Construction Environmental Management Plans shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 

  REASON: To mitigate and control environmental effects during the construction phases [Relevant 
 Policies: BFBLP EN25] 

 
33. The total amount of floorpace hereby permitted within Use Classes A1, A2, A3 and A4 shall not exceed 

1488 sq m gross external area. No retail units within Use Classes A1 or A2 shall individually exceed 560 
sq m gross external area.  There shall be no amalgamation of units such that at any time any retail unit 
within Use Classes A1 or A2 exceeds 560 sq m gross external area.  
REASON: To accord with the terms of the application and to safeguard the viability and vitality of existing 
town and village centres  
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy CS22] 
 

4 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
  
None 
  
5 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS  
 
None 
  
Background Papers 
 
PLANNING APPLICATION 12/00993/OUT  

 
 
  

 

59



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Unrestricted Report 

ITEM NO: 5 
Application No. 

12/00993/OUT 
Ward: 

Binfield With Warfield 
Date Registered: 

10 January 2013 
Target Decision Date: 

11 April 2013 
Site Address: Land At Amen Corner West Of Beehive Road 

Between The Reading-Waterloo Railway Line and 
London Road London Road Binfield Bracknell 
Berkshire  

Proposal: Outline application with means of access to be determined, for the 
development of approximately 30 hectares of land at Amen Corner 
to provide up to 550 dwellings; a neighbourhood centre of up to 
2,500 sq. metres (comprising accommodation within use classes 
A1, A2, A3, A4, D1 or D2); the construction of a new road between 
London Road and Cain Road; the construction of new junctions 
with the existing local road network at London Road, North View, 
South View and Beehive Road to provide vehicular access to the 
site; the creation of new accesses to the Coppid Beech Hotel/Ski 
Centre from the site together with replacement car parking spaces 
and the reconfiguration of existing car parks; the provision of 
associated public open space; children's play areas; Suitable 
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG); Sustainable Drainage 
systems; internal roads, paths, car parking and landscaping. 

Applicant: The Nike Group Of Companies 
Agent: Nike Design 
Case Officer: Trevor Yerworth, 01344 352000 

Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

Site Location Plan  (for identification purposes only, not to scale) 

Agenda Item 5

61

mailto:Development.control@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
TrevoYe
Inserted Text

TrevoYe_1
Typewritten Text
ANNEX 1



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

OFFICER REPORT 

1. INTRODUCTION

This joint report deals with two related applications for Amen Corner (South), applications 
12/00993/OUT and 14/00472/OUT.  Taken together the two applications form a 
comprehensive package of proposals which raise similar planning issues, and would be 
linked together within the same s106 Agreement.  It is considered helpful to present them 
together within a single overarching report.  However a decision will still have to be made on 
each application individually and, although the Officers‟ recommendation for each application 
is to approve subject to a s106 agreement, there is no restriction upon Members taking a 
different approach to each application, resolving to approve one and not the other.  However 
the complete package as tied together by a s106 Agreement is being recommended for 
approval subject to completion of the s106 agreement. 

Application 12/00993/OUT seeks outline planning permission for a mixed use development 
at Amen Corner. It forms the majority part of the Land at Amen Corner (South) urban 
extension formally allocated under Policy SA8 of the recently adopted Site Allocations Local 
Plan (SALP). The application site lies partly within Wokingham Borough Council.  As 
Bracknell Forest Borough Council (BFBC) is the Local Planning Authority (LPA) only for land 
within Bracknell Forest it can only grant planning permission for that part of the development 
which is within Bracknell Forest.  A duplicate application has therefore been submitted to 
Wokingham Borough Council to determine for that part of the site within its jurisdiction. Only 
the principle of development, including the proposed land uses, the amount of development 
and access to the site are for consideration at this stage. All other matters are reserved for 
later consideration.  

The application is supported by an Environmental Statement (ES); a Flood Risk Assessment; 
a Transport Assessment; a Design and Access Statement; a Sustainability Statement; a 
Statement of Community Consultation; and a SANG Management Plan.  During the course 
of the application additional information has been submitted with respect to the impact on the 
SPA, drainage and transport issues. 

Associated amendments have also been made to the ES. An objection received on behalf of 
Hewlett Packard (HP) brought attention to the fact that BFC‟s Transport Model, which was 
used to assess the effect of this application, did not allow for an existing planning permission 
for a considerable increase in office space at HP‟s facility. The traffic model has since been 
amended to address this. A Traffic Assessment Addendum has been produced detailing the 
results of this work and is included in Appendices to the ES Supplemental Statement. 

As a consequence of this, and to consider also the affect on HP also raised in its objections, 
supplementary reports have been produced regarding Noise and Vibration, and Air Quality. 

Following initial objections in respect of the ecological impact of proposed bunds within Riggs 
Copse, the way floodwater from extreme storms is dealt with has been amended, after 
discussions with BFC and Natural England 

The proposed footway/cycleway to be provided to the north of London Road requires the 
removal of a number of trees within highway land. The ES has amended the Landscape and 
Visual Impact Assessment and Tree Assessment to take regard to this. 

The application has also been amended to omit the primary school and the application site 
accordingly reduced to exclude the land originally proposed for a school between Beehive 
Road and South View.  Further to this amendment the applicant has submitted a separate 
outline application (application 14/00472/OUT) for a two form entry primary school on the 

62



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

excluded school site together with other land to the north also owned by the applicant.  This 
report deals with both applications.  This amendment and the submission of a separate 
application has been made because the original application was only for a single form of 
entry primary school and did not include sufficient land for the two form entry school that the 
Local Education Authority has advised is required to serve the proposed development, and to 
enable the comprehensive development of the urban extension site. 

The application is closely related to an application for 380 dwellings on the Amen Corner 
(North) site (application 14/00315/OUT) which is reported elsewhere on the agenda.  

The applications are reported to committee as more than three objections have been 
received to the main application 12/00993/OUT. 

2. SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site lies approximately 2.5km to the west of Bracknell town centre.  It extends 
to approximately 30 hectares of mainly open land between Bracknell and Wokingham. The 
site is roughly rectangular in shape and is generally bordered by London Road, the Coppid 
Beech Hotel and John Nike Leisure Complex to the north, the Reading-Waterloo railway line 
to the south; the A329 to the west and Beehive Road to the east.  The site wraps around, but 
does not include, a small group of residential properties on North View and South View. 

Currently the majority of the site is vacant agricultural land but light industrial use, open 
storage and scrap metal recovery takes place in the southern part of the site where there is 
evidence of ground contamination.  The site also includes Riggs Copse which is designated 
as ancient woodland and a Local Wildlife Site.  

The open land on the north side of London Road opposite this site comprises the Amen 
Corner (North) urban extension which has been allocated in the SALP for residential 
development comprising 400 dwellings and open space including Suitable Alternative Natural 
Greenspace (SANG).  A planning application (14/00315/OUT) is presently under 
consideration for up to 380 dwellings and a 1FE primary school on this site which is reported 
elsewhere on this agenda. 

The Amen Corner Business Park lies to the east of the site.  Hewlett Packard (HP) occupies 
large business premises east side of Beehive Road.  It also owns open land comprising a 
private recreation area and balancing pond immediately to the south of the site, between 
Beehive Road, South View and the railway line. 

An area of woodland along its northern boundary separates the site from the Coppid Beech 
Hotel and John Nike Leisure Complex to the north. To the northwest the site backs onto 
development fronting the truncated section of London Road (“Old London Road”), including a 
number of private houses, a guest house, a water works (South East Water‟s Buckhurst 
Water Treatment Works and Depot) with covered reservoir and a children‟s nursery (within 
WBC). 

The only vehicular access to the site at present is via Beehive Road, North View and Moor 
Lane which serves the commercial uses in the south of the site. In addition a number of 
public rights of way cross the site providing footpath links from London Road south to 
Peacock Lane crossing both the railway line and the A329. 

There is a mixture of existing land uses within the site. The northern part of the site 
comprises a large open hillside, comprising former agricultural land (semi-improved 
grassland). The lack of active management has resulted in considerable scrub encroachment 
and the degradation of hedgerows.  The area is used, unofficially, for dog walking and for 

63



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

scrambling with motorbikes. There is evidence of fly-tipping and other littering. This hillside 
slopes down to level fields located in the south-west corner of the site (the Wokingham land) 
used for horse grazing.   There are a number of derelict farm buildings on lower ground to 
the east in close proximity to North View.  

The southern part of the site is mainly given over to various small general industrial 
businesses principally involved in vehicle repair, open storage, scrap metal recovery and 
associated residential units. This area is focussed on a cluster of single storey buildings in 
class B2 (General Industrial) and B8 (Storage and Distribution) uses and associated 
hardstandings. These border Riggs Copse, an area of ancient woodland in the South East 
corner of the site.  The northeastern part of the site comprises untidy areas of former open 
parking bordered by woodland now surplus to the requirements of the leisure complex.  This 
benefited from a temporary planning permission, now lapsed.   

The primary school site is a disused golf driving range between Beehive Road and South 
view.  The site is level and well screened on all sites by trees and hedgerows.  Low driving 
range buildings are sited at the northern end of the site.  The rest of the site is grass. 

The general landform slopes steeply down from the London Road frontage towards the 
railway, with an overall fall of around 25m from north east to south west. 

3. RELEVANT SITE HISTORY

This site has a long and complex history, with some applications relating to the whole of the 
site and others just relating to individual parts. Parts of the site have also been the subject of 
enforcement action over many years. 

Whole Site 

04/00791/OUT Outline application for the erection of 700 dwellings and 45,000 square 
metres of office, research & development light industrial, general industrial and 
storage and distribution and demolition of 28 existing dwellings. Refused  12.10.2004 

Lynfield/Ski centre overflow car park 

618191 Erection of garden centre with associated highway improvements. Approved 
22.02.1992 (commenced therefore permission is still extant) 

02/00357/T Application to continue the use of land to the south of the ski slope, as an 
overflow car park for a temporary period of 5 years. Approved 06.10.2003 (permission now 
expired) 

606918 Outline Application for the formation of dry-ski slope and associated lodge, dry-ice-
skating hall, garden centre and nurseries together with access roundabout onto A 329. 
Approved 29.07.1983 

608205 Construction of dry ski slope, ice skating hall, sauna/gymnasium facilities and garden 
centre with access roundabout on to London Road and associated car 
parking and internal roads. Approved 29.04.1984 

Buckhurst moors 

06/00516/LDC Application for Lawful Development Certificate for use of land for Storage of 
cars, helicopter/aircraft parts, plant and associated uses. Approved 15.09.2006 

64



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

09/00538/FUL Use of Unit 25 for B2/B8 uses with associated parking and turning 
(retrospective application) and the cessation of the use of Unit 18 for B2/B8 uses. Approved 
29.10.2009 

09/00692/FUL Change of use of building 20 to use for a personal hobby workshop. Approved 
31.03.2010 

09/00738/FUL Use of Units 7,8 and 9 for B2/B8 uses with associated parking and turning 
and the cessation of the use of Unit 4 and part of Unit 3 for B2/B8. Approved 02.03.2010 

10/00301/FUL Retention of change of use of buildings 14, 15 and 16. Approved 07.05.2010. 

10/00507/T Retention of 965 sq m of B2/B8 use of Units 1, 2, 3 (part), 4, 5, 6, 10, 11, 14, 15, 
16, 18 and 19 and alternative parking arrangement for entire yard (serving both previously 
approved and proposed to be retained units). Approved 16.03.2012. 

Golf Driving Range 

01/00839/T Floodlit golf driving range and erection of detached store buildings.  Temporary 
permission for 5 years granted15.04.2002. 

08/00751/T  Renewal of permission for a further 5 years.  Approved 23.10.2008. This 
permission has therefore expired and has not been renewed. 

4. THE PROPOSAL

Planning application 12/00993/OUT seeks outline planning permission for the 
comprehensive redevelopment of the site comprising: 

- 550 new homes comprising a mix of sizes, densities and including some affordable 
housing; 

- A neighbourhood centre comprising up to 2,500 sqm of floorspace providing local retail 
(990 sq m)/ pub/ restaurant / professional services / café and indoor leisure uses on the north 
side of the proposed spine road extending south from London Road; 

- A primary school and playing fields with access from Beehive Road (this was subsequently 
deleted from the main application and is now the subject of the separate school application); 

In addition the application seeks permission for the construction of a new spine road between 
London Road and Cain Road; the construction of new junctions with the existing local road 
network at London Road, North View, South View and Beehive Road to provide vehicular 
access to the site; the creation of new accesses to the Coppid Beech Hotel/Ski Centre from 
the site together with replacement car parking spaces and the reconfiguration of existing car 
parks; the provision of associated public open space; children's play areas; Suitable 
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG); Sustainable Drainage systems; internal roads, 
paths, car parking and landscaping. 

The application is submitted in outline with matters of layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping of the proposed development 'reserved' for later approval. However, approval of 
the details of vehicular access to/from the site is sought at this time.  

The proposed mixed-use redevelopment would be implemented in a series of phases, taking 
a number of years to complete in full. A Parameter Plan has been submitted to provide a 
framework which will control and inform future reserved matters applications, while providing 

65



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

a degree of flexibility. The Parameter Plan is intended to provide a "worst case" scenario and 
effectively defines the maximum amount of development that could be provided for under this 
application. 

The Parameter Plan sets out the site boundary; the location and layout of individual land 
uses, the location and layout of the proposed spine road and access points to/from the site; 
maximum and minimum building dimensions, and the location of open space of public value 
(OSPV), and other green infrastructure. 

The application proposes a new spine road from a signal controlled junction onto London 
Road between Coppid Beech roundabout and the John Nike Way junction linking into the 
existing roundabout at the junction of Beehive Road and Cain Road.  This new road would 
provide internal access to the new development and ensure continuity of access for premises 
on existing roads at North View, South View, Beehive Road and the Old London Road.  

An illustrative masterplan and a Design and Access Statement accompany the application 
which set out a series of design principles and design guidelines showing how the proposed 
development and open spaces might be accommodated on the site.   

The overall density of residential development proposed is 35 dwellings per hectare, but this 
will vary across the site to reflect topography and landscape features, constraints such as 
noise sensitivity and the objective to create a distinct sense of place within individual 
character areas. 

The application also proposes improvements to the existing pedestrian and cycle 
infrastructure in the vicinity of the site, including a new footpath/cycleway on the north side of 
London Road linking to the Borough boundary and joining up with improvements forming part 
of the Coppid Beech improvement scheme.  This would also serve the Amen Corner (North) 
development and would continue into that site east of the new Spine Road junction on 
London Road.  

The separate school application (ref. no. 14/00472/OUT) seeks outline planning permission 
with all matters reserved for a two form entry primary school and associated playing fields.  A 
Parameter Plan has been submitted that shows the site boundary, an indicative access from 
Beehive Road, a vehicle drop off and turning facility, the general position of the school 
building towards the north of the site and scale parameters confirming the school would be a 
maximum of two storeys/ 11 metres in height.  South of the school site is the proposed 
landscaped footpath providing part of the alternative pedestrian link to the Big Wood SANG 
and a swale, included as part of the main application. 

5. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

Objections have been received from HP, Waitrose and seven individuals. Six of these are 
from residents of North View and South View who support the principle of developing the 
site, but object to the exclusion of their properties from the application which they consider 
will result in a piecemeal form of development potentially prejudicing the future development 
of North View and South View. Concerns are also raised that unless the existing properties 
are redeveloped at the same time the residents will suffer from increased noise levels and 
disturbance during the construction and from the new development itself. North View and 
South View would be left in the middle of a building site and will look out of place stuck on 
the side of a modern new development rendering the properties unsaleable. [officer‟s 
comment: Whilst it is true that the Amen Corner SPD anticipated that North View and South 
View would be developed as early as possible in the development for residential, 
employment or retail provision (para 3.3 and Development Principle AC10) this is not 
adopted Policy and would be very difficult to enforce in practice given the multiple land 

66



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

ownerships involved. The current application is accompanied by an illustrative masterplan 
that includes North View and South View to demonstrate that the proposed development 
would not prejudice the future development of this area and would maintain access to all 
existing properties. Although a comprehensive application for the whole urban extension 
area would have been preferred it is not reasonable to refuse the current application on 
these grounds as it is not considered that it would prejudice the future development of North 
View and South View.  Conversely it could act as a catalyst to such development as a key 
point raised by several objectors is that this site has been discussed for many years but 
nothing ever seems to happen. Granting this application could be the catalyst that is required 
to unlock the development of this broader area.]  

other issues raised by individuals include the following: 

- damage to existing Edwardian houses [officer‟s comment: this is not a material planning 
consideration and any damage caused would be a private matter between the homeowner 
and the developer] ; 
- noise and dirt arising from the construction [officer‟s comment: this can be controlled 
through conditions] ; 
- existing bank and vegetation between North View and proposed Spine Road should be 
retained [officer‟s comment: the alignment of the spine road has been amended to take it 
further from North View and to keep the road at existing ground level so that the vegetation 
between North View and the road can be retained.]  
- lighting in new car park should be appropriate to a residential area [officer‟s comment: this 
application does not propose any lighting. This is a detailed matter that can be dealt with at 
the reserved matters stage] 
- affordable housing will reduce property values and the status of the area[officer‟s comment: 
property values are not a material consideration]; 

HP while not objecting to the principle of the proposed development raise a number of 
detailed points, including: 

- The cumulative impacts of the proposed development are not adequately deal with.  In 
particular no account is taken of an extant but unimplemented planning permission for 
27,125 sq m of office floorspace on the HP site. [officer‟s comment: further transport 
modelling work has been undertaken by the applicant in conjunction with the highway 
Authority to take this additional extant development in to account. This is dealt with in further 
detail under the transport section of this report.] 
-HP owns the existing turning area on Beehive Road at the access to its balancing pond and 
recreation area.  There are no turning places on Beehive Road within the public highway. 
[officer‟s comment: The separate school application shows an indicative turning area on land 
within the applicant‟s ownership, and therefore it would not be reliant on the HP turning head] 
- The surface water from the development is proposed to drain into HP‟s balancing pond. HP 
owns and controls the balancing pond. It accepts that the pond has capacity to 
accommodate the proposed surface water drainage requirements of the development and 
acknowledges that the applicant has existing drainage rights for part of the application site. 
However it does not have rights to fully drain the proposed development. Until such time that 
drainage rights have been secured by the applicant (and other landowners) the site cannot 
be stated to be ready and available for development. The Council must ensure that if any 
planning permission is granted appropriate Grampian conditions are imposed to secure an 
off-site comprehensive drainage system before commencement of any development.  

Waitrose also does not object to the principle of the proposed development but comments 
that in order to protect the vitality, viability and ongoing regeneration of Bracknell Town 
Centre this scheme should maintain its focus on delivering a new Local Centre, and not be 
allowed to become a very different retail offer, within the floorspace parameters proposed.  It 

67



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

therefore requests planning conditions including controls on the maximum floorspace per use 
in line with the application and that individual unit sizes be capped so that large retail units 
cannot be created, detracting from the diverse offer of the Local Centre and creating 
attractors that could impact on trade diversion from Bracknell Town Centre.  

One representation (from HP) has been received to the separate school application.  This 
advises that HP‟s representations made for application 12/00993 in respect of transport and 
drainage matters remain extant for this new application. This new application if permitted 
must be linked to the main application by planning conditions and legal agreement.  

6. SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Binfield Parish Council 

(Application 12/00993/OUT) Recommend refusal for the following reasons:- 

1. The Retail, Commercial, Leisure, and Employment Area should not be at the end of a no
through road because it will result in visitors having to drive though the housing areas. If it is 
sited at the site currently designated for the school, it will have good access from the road 
network and adjacent businesses whilst being at the junction and access point of the whole 
site from existing development. This should more easily attract businesses to the site who 
would not want to be at the end of a cul-de-sac. 
2. The School Site should be at the area marked for Retail, Commercial, Leisure and
Employment. This is close to the housing and at the end of the road (with only possible bus 
access onto London Road). This will reduce traffic around the school area. 
3. The exchange of the land designated as a Retail, Commercial, Leisure, and Employment
Area with the area of land designated as the School Site will reduce the level of traffic 
through the residential areas. 
4. The current position of the Retail, Commercial, Leisure, and Employment Area, which
should include neighbourhood shops is out of the way at the end of the cul-de-sac. For a 
vibrant community these should be easily visible and accessible by residents; residents 
should not have to go out of their way to use them. [Officer‟s comment: The proposed 
neighbourhood centre would not be sited on a cul-de-sac but on the proposed Spine Road 
which forms a through route linking London Road and Cain Road.] 
5. When the school is planned, it should be designed so that the hall and kitchen can be
accessed without using the school entrance. This would facilitate better community use by 
non-school groups. The hall and kitchen should have their own entrance so that they can be 
used independently whilst keeping the school secure. 
6. There needs to be allotments planned for the site. These should be provided for residents
within or adjacent to the housing area. 
7. A cycleway is required along the London Road to the Coppid Beech roundabout. [Officer‟s
comment: this is proposed and will be secured as part of the off-site highway works] 

(Application 14/00472/OUT) Recommend Refusal for the following reasons: 

1. The Council is deeply concerned about the apparent lack of coordination of the
educational provisions in the developments at Amen Corner North and South. The building of 
a one form entry school in the North and a two form entry in the South appears to be 
uncoordinated. 
2. Some pupils may have to cross the busy London Road to access the two form entry
school in the South due to possible parental choice and/or catchment area considerations. 
The committee recommends the provision of a footbridge between the two developments at 
Amen Corner North and South. 

68



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

3. Previous comments from the Council have suggested that the school be located at the end
of the cul de sac rather than a location that will be passed by traffic on the way the shops and 
other amenities 

[Officer‟s comment: No objection has been raised by CYP&L officers to the principle of 
having a 1FE school at Amen Corner (North) and a 2FE school at Amen Corner (South).  
Both developments are required to provide adequate school capacity to serve their own 
needs. Furthermore there are benefits in having a school on both sites, including improving 
the sustainability of both developments by reducing the need for pupils to travel further, 
possibly by car, or having to cross the London Road.  Having planning permission for two 
schools would also provide more flexibility should one of the developments be delayed, as 
having a school within the control of both applicants would not prejudice the delivery of either 
housing site. 

Both the Amen Corner applications are being reported to Committee together to enable 
Members to take a coordinated view as suggested by the Parish Council. A signal controlled 
pedestrian crossing of London Road would be provided by both proposals to provide 
accessibility between the facilities of the two sites.  This is acceptable to the Highway 
Authority which has confirmed that there is no requirement for a footbridge]. 

Wokingham Borough Council 

No objection 

Highways Agency 

No objection 

Natural England 

Original comments: 

The proposal is likely to have a significant effect on the interest features for which the 
Thames Basin Heaths SPA has been classified. Natural England (NE) objects to this current 
outline application based on a lack of information related to the provision of financial security 
and long term management of the SANG. In order to have certainty of avoiding impact to the 
Thames Basin Heaths SPA, SANGs must remain in place as attractive recreational sites in 
perpetuity. Without further information on the long term management and funding 
mechanism of the SANG, it is not possible to ascertain that this outline scheme would not 
have an adverse impact on the integrity of the SPA. In particular NE sought further 
information: 

- on the long term ownership and management of the SANG, in perpetuity; 
- on the use of the adjacent SANG (north of Peacock Lane) and its circular network. This 
would enable a clear correlation with the restricted circular walk network of the SANG suite 
associated with this development and its link to the adjacent SANG path network of Peacock 
Meadows.  
- confirming that the appropriate SANG provision will be required and available for use prior 
to first occupation of each phasing stage.  
- on the linkage of Riggs Copse to Big Wood. The Plan currently falls short in its detail on 
how it will improve and upgrade the footpath between the railway and the underpass.  

Until such time that this additional information is submitted with this application and assessed 
accordingly, Natural England states it would maintain a lack of information objection.  

69



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Since the original comments were received the applicant has sought to address the concerns 
raised and submitted revised and additional information on 24th April 2014. NE comments on 
this revised and additional information are:  

NE withdraws its objection to this application as it is satisfied that the specific issues raised in 
previous correspondence relating to this development has been met. It is Natural England‟s 
understanding that the following elements are now met by the proposal. Where appropriate, 
these elements should be secured through an appropriately worded s106 agreement.  
- Adequate SAMM contributions will be collected in advance of each phase commencing. 
- A 2.4 km circular walk will be in place at occupation of the first dwelling. This will be in Big 
Wood and Peacock Meadow. Big Wood will be brought forward in its entirety (10.7ha) and 
enhanced to the SANGs standard in advance of the first occupation of any dwellings, so that 
a functioning SANG is in place in accordance with the Natural England SANGs Quality 
Guidance (June 2008). 
- Bracknell Forest Council will take on the management of the SANGs in perpetuity. 
- Enhancements will be made to the routes to the SANGs from the proposed development 
site. These include enhancements to the underpass route beneath the A329, the provision of 
the new steel fence where the footpath adjoins the A329, and enhancements to the existing 
public footpath together with the provision and signposting of the „Alternative Pedestrian 
Link‟. 

Environment Agency 

No objection subject to conditions 

Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire Wildlife Trust (BBOWT) 

Comments on original application: 
Object but consider that with appropriate amendments would envisage withdrawing this 
objection. 

Impact on Thames Basin Heaths SPA 
 - Uncertainty regarding delivery and effectiveness of avoidance measures 
-  The SANG does not meet the NE SANG criteria in respect to the SANG link between 
Riggs Copse and Big Wood.  Parts of the link are unattractive and could act as a barrier 
preventing people from using Big Wood or Peacock Meadow SANG thereby limiting the 
length of walk that is available to them.  
Without measures in place to address these concerns on the certainty of the avoidance 
measures and the SANG link, the proposed SANG will not function effectively to prevent a 
likely significant effect on the SPA.  

SAMM 
The Council‟s intention that SAMM will be secured in the S106 agreement is welcomed. 

Impact on Riggs Copse LWS and Big Wood Proposed LWS 
BBOWT does not oppose the principle of Riggs Copse or Big Wood being used as SANG.  
The buffering of Riggs Wood LWS with the proposed 0.7ha additional woodland planting is 
welcomed. However, the sites will be subject to significant increased recreational pressure 
and disturbance as a result of their proposed use as SANG. The management plan is the key 
mechanism to protect these sites. However to achieve this, the following changes need to be 
made to the management plan: 
a) More detail and clearer timescales.
b) Provision for the reinstatement of coppicing to help maintain and enhance the biodiversity.
c) Provision for bracken control.
d) Bird boxes should be cleaned annually.

70



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

e) The plan should make provision for the cleaning up of oil-based pollution in Riggs Copse;
f) The plan should include provision for collection of litter, fly-tipping and dog bin waste;
g) The plan should include provision for leaflets about the SANG to be distributed to the first
occupiers of the new properties; 
h) Management will also be required for the proposed newly planted buffer to Riggs Copse
and the SANG link. 

Proposed Surface Water Drainage at Riggs Copse 
There is no assessment of the effects of the proposed surface water drainage on Riggs 
Copse including proposed bunds at the site. It is not clear if there will be any additional 
impacts on the ancient woodland and its ground flora from construction of the bunds or 
flooding. It is also unclear if this will affect public access and whether additional infrastructure 
such as bridges will be required to allow the site to function as a SANG.  

Impacts on habitats within the site: grassland and hedgerows 
While the grassland on the site does not appear to be BAP habitat measures should be used 
to enhance biodiversity such as wildflower planting and scrub in some areas.  

Protected Species 
Conditions should be imposed to bring forward the necessary mitigation and enhancement 
measures that are identified for reptiles, breeding birds and bats.  

Comments on amended SANGS Management Plan and SANG Supplement 

A second letter has been received welcoming the amendments which indicate that funding 
for establishment and management of the SANG will be agreed with the Council in a S106 
agreement and that transfer of the SANG to a suitable body will be secured in a S106 
agreement. The proposals for lighting the underpass are an improvement. Maintenance of 
the SANG link would need to be specifically picked up in the Proposed Management Plan. 

The proposed close boarded timber fence does not overcome concerns regarding the 
attractiveness of the SANG link where it runs adjacent to the A329 dual carriageway. The 
existing highway barrier is less than a metre high and a low level fence of the same height 
will do little to make the link attractive or mitigate against the close and unpleasant intrusion 
of this major road. 

The new proposal to provide an alternate SANG link route to Big Wood would be 
approximately 1.1km (one-way) from Riggs Copse SANG to Peacock Farm SANG. This is 
considerably further than the 400m easy walking distance referred to in the SANG Criteria, 
and for the most part, is on tarmac paths through an urban environment in close proximity to 
roads. BBOWT does not consider that this complies with the SANG Criteria. 

The Riggs Copse SANG car park may not be sufficient for the scale of this development 
particularly where most of the SANG is not immediately adjacent to the application site. 
Where sufficient car parking capacity is unavailable near SANG, it may encourage use of the 
SPA. The existing car park close to Big Wood could provide some benefits given the 
fragmented nature of the SANG.  However this is not accessed directly from Peacock Lane 
but requires driving through the Jennett‟s Park development which is less attractive to users, 
and may not have sufficient capacity to facilitate visitors from the application site. 

BBOWT considers that SAMM must be paid prior to occupation of any dwelling so that 
appropriate measures are in place on the SPA when residents first visit. It would be possible 
to pay SAMM in instalments but this must be prior to occupation of the relevant residential 
units. 

71



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Consideration on whether delivery of the SANG in phases is appropriate must be made 
against the SANG Criteria to ensure that residents from early phases are attracted to the 
SANG and have walks of the appropriate length and quality at the outset. As both Big Wood 
and Riggs Copse do not currently have any public access, it would appear to be essential 
that all footpaths, signage and infrastructure should be installed prior to occupation to enable 
good access, together with any tree safety works that are necessary. 

Finally, in terms of phasing of the development site, it will be necessary to ensure that 
development of the different phases do not undermine the attractiveness of access from 
completed dwellings to the SANG.  

The changes made to the Proposed Management Plan, are welcomed, which partly address 
BBOWT‟s previous comments. In light of the further information provided, BBOWT consider 
that conditions should be used to secure the following matters: 
a) Remediation of the oil-based pollution in Riggs Copse;
b) Suitable advertising of the SANG to occupiers of new properties;
c) To ensure the Management Plan is adhered to and subject to regular review with
amendments agreed with the Council and Natural England and 
d) Prior to the final location of swales and bunds being agreed with the Council in and around
Riggs Copse, a full tree and ecology survey is submitted to the Council with appropriate 
mitigation measures to minimise disturbance to ground flora and trees. 

The Woodland Trust 

The Woodland Trust objects to the planning application as it threatens an area of ancient 
semi-natural woodland (Riggs Copse). Developments and land use changes adjacent to 
ancient woodland sites have resulted in outside influences and edge effects that are often 
detrimental and capable of penetrating woodland, resulting in harmful changes to 
environmental conditions.  The Woodland Trust notes and commends the use of a planted 
buffer zone and green linking corridor; requests that a suitable length for the planted buffer 
zone is at least 50m. 

A Woodland Access Management Plan should be put in to place to limit disruptive activity 
occurring in the woodland. Cycling and horse-riding should be prevented from occurring 
within the woodland, with footpaths preferably being concentrated in the 50m planted buffer 
zone. The planned educational boards should emphasise the status of Riggs Copse as 
ancient woodland and the importance of this. In order to deadwood and characteristic ground 
flora, visitors should be required not stray from the footpaths, keep dogs on leads, and not to 
remove any deadwood or ground flora. Areas of hard standing should also be prevented 
from being integrated within the woodland area. 

Thames Water 

Following initial investigation, Thames Water has identified an inability of the existing waste 
water infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this application.  In order to prevent 
sewage flooding; ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to cope with the new 
development; and avoid adverse environmental impact Thames Water requests a condition 
requiring the submission of a detailed drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site 
drainage works. No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the 
public system until the drainage works referred to in the strategy have been completed.  

South East Water 

No comments received. 

72



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Thames Valley Police (TVP) 

Makes comments relating to illustrative layout which can be picked up at the reserved 
matters stage. 

TVP has undertaken an assessment of the implications of growth and the delivery of housing 
upon the policing of Bracknell Forest and established that in order to maintain the current 
level of policing; developer contributions towards the provision of infrastructure will be 
required. The proposed development will have an impact upon the ability of TVP to police the 
new development and surrounding area by placing an additional unplanned demand upon 
the existing police service.  The latest version of the Council‟s IDP acknowledges a need to 
provide a 12sqm drop in office. TVP would envisage this being provided by the developer as 
part of the district/local centre proposed on the northern part of the site. In addition to this 
provision and having undertaken a qualitative examination of the scheme and the impact of 
the policing the Local Police Area Commander has requested a contribution of £60,018 to 
fund two Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) Cameras (£22,000); two bicycles 
(including necessary kit) (£1,600); Provision of mobile IT equipment (£8500) and a Patrol Car 
(£27,918). 

Berkshire Archaeology 

No objection subject to condition. 

Sport England 

No comments received. 

Network Rail 

No comments received. 

Highway Officer 

No objection subject to conditions and s106 obligations. Detailed comments incorporated in 
report.   

Environmental Health Officer 

No objection subject to conditions. 

Sustainable Drainage Officer 

No objection subject to conditions. 

Landscape Officer 

Comments on original plans: 

The proposed bunds through Riggs Copse would be likely to damage the trees and ground 
flora in the ancient woodland. The proposed swales would be likely to lead to the loss of 
existing trees. These proposals have not been assessed in the Environmental Statement 
under ecology or landscape chapters. The effect of these proposals should be assessed 
before the application is determined. 

73



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

The proposal for the spine road to be a tree lined boulevard through the new development is 
acceptable in principle although may be difficult to achieve due to the level changes and 
embankments. It appears that the construction of the spine road would lead to most of the 
trees and vegetation to be lost between the spine road and North View due to changes in 
levels of the spine road.  

The substantial hedgerow to the west of Rose Farm is proposed to be retained. Again the 
spine road layout shows that the road embankment would encroach up to the building line of 
the existing building on Rose Farm and would lead to the loss of this section of the existing 
hedgerow and trees including a TPO tree. The impact of these proposals on the existing 
hedgerow should be assessed and details of proposed mitigation included with the 
application. 

Green corridors are proposed along important pedestrian routes. Adequate space needs to 
be available to accommodate the pedestrian routes without compromising the green 
corridors and existing vegetation along them. Any structural landscaping should be outside 
the water mains easements to avoid possible loss of landscaping if works are required within 
the easement.  

Comments on amended plans 

The swale layout follows green corridors and in principle is a sound idea.  The relationship of 
the swales to retained trees and hedgerows will require careful detail design to avoid 
damage to the root zones by changing ground levels and soil hydrology.   

The layout of play areas and recreation facilities on site is acceptable.  Additional tree 
planting is proposed to screen and buffer the A329 and this is a good idea.  Advance 
landscaping should take place where possible, so that structural planting is establishing 
before development is completed, and screening and buffering is already becoming effective 
when dwellings are ready for occupation.     

Biodiversity Officer 

No objection subject to conditions 

Housing Enabling Officer 

The Council‟s Housing Enabling Officer has advised that the overall number and tenure of 
affordable housing proposed meets the Council‟s stated intentions for addressing local 
housing need. 

Tree Officer 

No comments received. 

Local Education Authority 

Assuming an average housing mix for developments of more than 25 units 550 units would 
generate the following demand for school places:  
242 children of primary school age which is equivalent to 1.16 forms of entry (based on a 
class size of 30 children). 
123 children of secondary school age.  
5 children with a dedicated SEN requirement.  

74



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

The application includes land for a new primary school, however the area of land for this, as 
set out within the red line is 1.3ha which would only be sufficient for a 1FE school.  Having 
regard to the likely demand for primary school places from this development a 1FE school 
would not be large enough to meet demand for places from the development.  As it is not 
possible to build a new school to a size that is a proportion of a Form of entry a 2FE school 
will be required.   

The applicant has indicated its willingness to make a further 0.9ha available to enable a 
larger, 2FE, primary school.  However, in the absence of this land forming part of the 
application site it is unclear how this additional land could be secured.  Therefore, on the 
basis that the development proposed would not provide a school large enough to meet the 
demand for primary school places as a result of that development, an objection to the 
application is made in the grounds it would be contrary to policies CS4 and CS6 of the Core 
Strategy and policy SA8 of the SALP. [Officer‟s comment: this matter has now been 
addressed through the submission of the separate school application.] 

In terms of demand for secondary and SEN school places the SALP identifies the need for 
development at Amen Corner to make a financial contribution towards the provision of 
Secondary School and Special Educational Needs places.   

The application also appears to lack detail of when the new primary school would be 
provided in relation to the development of the housing units.  Construction of the school 
should coincide with the commencement of housing development. As an interim measure 
developers will be required to make provision for temporary accommodation fully equipped & 
fitted out for use until new school buildings are ready for opening. 

7. DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The Development Plan includes the following:- 

- Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan (May 2009) 
- Core Strategy DPD (February 2008) (CS) 
- Site Allocations Local Plan (July 2013) (SALP) 
- Bracknell Forest Borough Policies Map 2013 
- Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan (January 2002) (Saved Policies) (BFBLP) 

8. PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that applications 
for planning permission must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The principle of the proposed 
development falls to be determined in accordance with the following Development Plan 
policies, taking account of their consistency with the NPPF.   

Core Strategy DPD (CS) 

Policy CS2 sets out a number of locational principles for new development within Bracknell  
Forest, including  a sequence of allocation, directing development to the Town Centre first, 
followed by previously developed and other land within defined settlements, and lastly 
extensions to sustainable settlements which is how this site came to be allocated.  Policy 
CS2 states that development will be permitted within defined settlements and on allocated 
sites.  Policy CS2 is considered to be consistent with the NPPF as it formed the basis for the 
allocation of land for development through a plan led system. It takes a positive stance by 
making it clear that development will be permitted within defined settlements and on 
allocated sites.  Therefore, Policy CS2 can be afforded full weight in relation to NPPF para. 

75



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

215. Following adoption of the SALP, this site is allocated for development.  The vast 
majority of the land now falls within a defined settlement.  The proposed development is 
therefore in accordance with Policy CS2.  

Policy CS9 seeks to protect countryside for its own sake and more particularly to protect 
defined gaps between settlements within or adjoining the Borough in order to maintain the 
identity of individual settlements and prevent the coalescence of settlements.  It seeks to 
prevent development that would harm the physical and visual separation of settlements.  The 
Core Strategy Key Diagram indicates the broad location of a strategic gap between 
Wokingham and Bracknell, part of which falls in the west of the application site, and therefore 
Policy CS9 is relevant to the determination of this application in respect of the protection of 
this strategic gap. The NPPF (5th bullet point of para. 17) sets out that account should be 
taken of the different roles and character of different areas, recognising the intrinsic character 
and beauty of the countryside.  Whilst there is a difference in emphasis between Policy CS9 
and the NPPF, in broad terms it is considered that Policy CS9 is consistent with the NPPF 
and that significant weight can be afforded to this policy (in relation to para. 215 of the 
NPPF).  

The proposed development respects this strategic gap by not proposing built development 
outside the settlement boundary defined in the SALP, thus maintaining separation between 
the settlements of Bracknell and Wokingham. As noted above the SALP defines a settlement 
boundary for Bracknell that maintains this strategic gap, albeit within the area under 
Wokingham Borough Council‟s jurisdiction.  A small part of the allocated site (Riggs Copse) 
remains outside a defined settlement and the proposals respect this as recreational uses are 
proposed within this area. The proposed development is therefore in accordance with Policy 
CS9.  

Policy CS15 sets out a housing requirement of 11,139 dwellings across the plan period 
(2006-2026). The SALP helps implement this policy through the allocation of sites such as 
Amen Corner North. Should permission be granted for the residential development proposed 
in this application, further certainty will be given to the ability to maintain a five year supply of 
housing land.  As the Council currently has a 5 year housing land supply, policies relevant to 
the supply of land for housing are not out of date, and therefore Policy CS15 is considered 
up to date in the context of paragraphs 47 and 49 of the NPPF. Substantial weight can 
therefore be given to Policy CS15.  This proposal will significantly boost the supply of 
housing land in the Borough and as such the proposed development is in accordance with 
Policy CS2. 

Site Allocations Local Plan (SALP) 

At a meeting on 17 July 2013, the Council resolved to adopt the SALP and Policies Map. 
Policy CP1 sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development.  This requires 
that development proposals should be approved that accord with the development plan.  
Where this is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date, development proposals 
should be approved unless material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account 
whether any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole; or 
where specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted. 

The adopted SALP is an integral part of delivering the Council's housing requirement of 
11,139 dwellings (as contained in Core Strategy Policy CS15) across the plan period until 
2026.  It amends the boundaries of settlements where this is required as a result of the 
allocation of edge of settlement sites and urban extensions for housing development such as 
the Amen Corner sites - changes are incorporated into the adopted Policies Map.  The 
Inspector who undertook the SALP Examination concluded that, subject to specified main 

76



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

modifications, the Plan's site-specific policies were in accordance with national guidance, 
consistent with the Core Strategy, justified and likely to be effective (para. 122). 

Following adoption of the SALP, the Council has a 5 year supply of land for housing (as at 1 
April 2014, including a 20% buffer).  Therefore policies relevant to the supply of land for 
housing can be considered to be up to date.  This site would form part of the 5 year supply of 
land. 

SALP Policy SA8 formally allocates Land at Amen Corner previously identified in Core 
Strategy Policy CS4 as a broad area for growth.  It allocates Land at Amen Corner South for 
a comprehensive well designed mixed-use development that maintains a gap between 
Wokingham and Bracknell, including 725 residential units (including affordable housing); 
employment, a neighbourhood centre, a primary school and on-site open space and Suitable 
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG). 

The SALP includes an illustrative concept plan for the site. The geographical extent of the 
allocation site together with a new settlement boundary are identified on the adopted Policies 
Map.  An important consideration when assessing whether the current application is in 
accordance with Policy SA8 is that the SA8 allocation site covers a different geographical 
area than the current application. The main differences are: 

1) The SA8 site includes a number of existing dwellings and areas of open land that are not
included in the planning application.  These include dwellings on North View and South View 
and dwellings and open land on London Road; 

2) The SA8 site includes an area of approximately 2.2 ha forming the former golf driving
range on Beehive Road which is excluded from the application.  The illustrative concept plan 
shows this land as a primary school and playing fields with a landmark building identified at 
its northern end where Beehive Road joins North View; 

3) The SA8 site includes approximately 2.4 ha of land owned by HP at the southern end of
Beehive Road containing a disused football pitch, pavilion and a balancing pond which is 
excluded from the application. The illustrative concept plan shows this land as a potential 
future railway station and employment use; 

4) The application includes approximately 4.3 ha of countryside within Wokingham Borough.
As this lies outside the Borough it could not be included within the formal site allocation in the 
SALP. 

The next section of this report will assess the proposed development in terms of its 
conformity with the various elements of Policy SA8. 

a) Comprehensive development:
As noted above the current application does not relate to the whole of the allocated site.  The 
first issue to be assessed is therefore whether the piecemeal development of this allocated 
site would prejudice the comprehensive development sought by Policy SA8.  In order to 
demonstrate that this would not be the case the applicant has firstly provided an illustrative 
masterplan for the whole area covered by Policy SA8 (except the HP recreation land) to 
show that the current proposals would not prejudice the residual parts of the site being 
brought forward for development at a later date, particularly that access to these areas could 
be achieved through the proposed development. 

Secondly the applicant in paragraph 2.04 of the Design & Access Statement states 
“adequate land for the infrastructure required on site for the entire development area 
allocated is included within this application – Public Open Space, Primary School, highway 

77



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

improvements and associated Neighbourhood Centre. In addition, adequate land is secured 
within and outside the application site to provide adequate SANGs to mitigate the impact of 
the entire allocated development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
(TBHSPA).” 

The details of the infrastructure provision have yet to be agreed as the applicant is expecting 
any over-provision to be clawed back from the developers on other parts of the site which 
has led to difficult and protracted discussions which will be dealt with later in this report. The 
matter is further complicated by the fact that the applicant does not own or control all the 
application site and therefore any legal agreement relating to the provision of these matters 
would have to be entered into by third parties. 

It is considered that in theory the current application could be approved ahead of proposals 
for the rest of the site allocation area as it would not necessarily prejudice the future 
development of the residual areas.  Furthermore it could act as a catalyst to further 
development coming forward in these areas. However in order to secure the comprehensive 
provision of infrastructure and services for the whole allocated site, a legal agreement will be 
required that secures the provision of the entire on-site strategic infrastructure for the full 725 
dwellings as offered by the applicant in the design and access statement. This will be 
expanded on in the sections below. 

b) Housing:
The quantum of housing proposed, 550 dwellings, is considerably less than the 725 required 
under Policy SA8 for the wider allocated land.  However for the reasons set out above it is 
not considered that this would prejudice the comprehensive development of the allocated site 
as the remaining 175 dwellings could be provided through subsequent planning permissions. 

The submitted parameter plan shows that the residential area would be sited within the 
defined settlement boundary shown on the Policies Map and broadly within the residential 
areas identified in the illustrative concept plan. A mix of dwelling types and sizes is proposed, 
including small units (though would be fixed at a reserved matters stage), which broadly 
accords with the Council's Housing Market Assessment which identifies that there will be a 
need for a range of type and size of units, particularly 1,2 and 3 bed units over the plan 
period.  The overall density of residential development proposed is 35 dph which is 
considered to be appropriate. This will vary across the site to reflect topography and 
landscape features, constraints such as noise sensitivity and the objective to create a distinct 
sense of place within individual character areas.  

The provision, location and scale of the proposed housing is therefore in accordance with 
Policy SA8.   

c) Employment/ Neighbourhood Centre:
A neighbourhood centre is shown on the illustrative master plan situated on the north side of 
the proposed spine road between its junction with London Road and the intermediate 
roundabout providing access to the main residential areas of the site.  The SALP illustrative 
concept plan indicates this as a possible location for commercial uses. The commercial 
floorspace proposed includes a pub /restaurant, with adjoining retail floorspace with leisure 
accommodation above.  The total floor area of this commercial area would be up to 2,500 sq 
m (of which 990 sqm is proposed to be for local retail units) which is considered appropriate 
for a neighbourhood centre.  The provision, location and scale of the neighbourhood centre is 
therefore in accordance with Policy SA8.   

The current application does not include any specific provision for employment floorspace. 
However the SALP states (para. 2.5.3) that “For the purposes of Policy SA8 employment 
means business, industrial distribution and storage uses. Additional uses that may be 

78



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

appropriate for the site are a hotel and/or commercial sports facilities… In light of the surplus 
of employment floorspace and land in the Borough, the priority for the SALP and for this site 
is the delivery of housing. The extent of other uses proposed should not prejudice the 
delivery of the target number of homes for this site…”.  In view of these statements it is 
considered that the lack of any direct provision for business, industrial distribution and 
storage uses in the current application is not in conflict with Policy SA8.  Furthermore it is 
noted that the illustrative concept plan indicates an area for employment uses on the HP 
recreation land to the south of the application site.  It also shows that a possible further 
commercial (or residential) area could be located at North View and South View.  Neither of 
these areas lies within the current application site, and therefore the current application does 
not prejudice the future development of these parts of the SA8 allocation site for employment 
or commercial uses. In this respect therefore the application is considered to be in 
accordance with Policy SA8. 

Waitrose has raised a concern about the nature of the proposed retail use. The NPPF (para. 
70) refers to the need to planning positively for the provision of community facilities (such as
local shops, meeting places, sports venues, cultural buildings, public houses and places of 
worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and 
residential environments.  At para. 24 it states that the LPA should apply a sequential test to 
planning applications for main town centre uses such as retail, which are not in an existing 
centre and are not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan.  In this case a 
neighbourhood centre is specifically provided for in Policy SA8 and therefore this part of the 
proposal is in accordance with an up to date Local Plan. Furthermore an impact test (as set 
out in para. 26 of the NPPF) is not required as the proposed retail floorspace would be well 
below the 2,500sqm minimum threshold above which the Government considers there may 
be a potential impact on existing centres.  

d) Primary School:
Para. 72 of the NPPF places great importance on ensuring that sufficient choice of school 
places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities & that LPAs should 
take a proactive, positive and collaborative approach to meeting this requirement, including 
giving great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools. The application originally 
included the provision of a primary school in accordance with Policy SA8.  The Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan (IDP) (October 2012) which supports the SALP identifies a need for a primary 
school to be provided on a site with sufficient land to allow for a 2 Form of Entry (FE) school.  
The originally submitted parameter plan showed a primary school on a site only capable of 
accommodating a 1FE school within the settlement boundary.  The location of the proposed 
primary school was in accordance with the SALP illustrative concept plan and the defined 
settlement boundary as shown on the Policies Map. However as noted in the comments from 
the LEA above, the application proposal for 550 dwellings would be likely to give rise to a 
pupil yield in excess of a single form of entry (although the actual need would depend on the 
eventual housing mix). Therefore the size of the proposed school site would not have been 
sufficient to meet the needs of the development proposed in the current application let alone 
the requirements of the full SA8 allocation for 725 dwellings.   

As noted above, the Design & Access Statement states that adequate land for the 
infrastructure required on site for the entire development area allocated is included within this 
application, including a primary school.  It is therefore considered that in order to provide the 
comprehensive development required by Policy SA8, and proposed by the applicant 
sufficient land must be included to enable a 2FE primary school to be constructed.  As it is 
not possible to amend the current application by enlarging the application site, the applicant 
has agreed, following discussion with the LPA, to submit a separate application for a 2FE 
primary school on the original site of the 1FE school but also including a further adjacent 
0.9ha of land owned by the applicant immediately north of this. 

79



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

In order to avoid overlapping permissions and possible confusion the main application has 
been correspondingly amended to omit the primary school and the application site now 
excludes that part of the site shown on the parameters plan for the siting of the school. It is 
also noted that although the original application site did not include the full 2.2ha 2FE school 
site, the Environmental Statement did include this and therefore assessed the environmental 
implications of a (2FE) primary school on the full 2.2ha site.  

Although both applications are being reported together, as they comprise separate 
applications it will be necessary to link them together through the s106 agreement to ensure 
that the school is provided at the right time to serve the future population, and to control the 
occupation of the housing to the school provision.  In addition obligations would be required 
relating to the transfer of ownership of the land to the Council and the construction of the 
school itself.   

Taken together, these applications make adequate provision, in an appropriate location, for 
primary education and are therefore in accordance with Policy SA8.   

e) On-site open space and Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG):
Based on an average household size of 2.31 people per household, the SANG requirements 
arising from 550 units at 8ha per 1,000 people would equate to 10.2 ha.  The applicant 
proposes to meet this requirement through a combination of on-site SANG at Riggs Copse 
(2.7 ha) and off-site SANG at the Council owned Big Wood (7.5 ha) south of the railway line.  
In addition Big Wood will provide sufficient capacity for the residual amount of dwellings from 
the Amen Corner South allocation of 725 dwellings not forming part of the current application 
i.e 175 dwellings.  The SANG requirement for 175 dwellings is 3.2 ha which will form the
residual amount of Big Wood left after the needs of the current application are met.  An 
adequate amount of SANG is therefore proposed to meet the needs of both the current 
application and the full SA8 allocation.  Other SPA mitigation measures are also required and 
this topic will be discussed later in this report. 

Based on an average household size of 2.31 people per household, the open space 
requirements for a population of 1270 (arising from 550 units) at 4.3ha per 1,000 people (as 
set out in BFBLP Saved Policy R4) would equate to 5.46 ha.  This is split between passive 
open space (2.9 ha) and active open space (2.5 ha).  In addition the on-site Open Space of 
Public Value (OSPV) will need to provide capacity for the residual amount of dwellings for the 
Amen Corner South allocation of 725 dwellings not forming part of the current application.  
Therefore the total OSPV requirement for 725 dwellings is 7.2 ha of OSPV (3.85 ha passive 
and 3.35 ha active) in addition to the SANG. Saved policy R4 is considered to be consistent 
with the NPPF Chapter 8 and can be afforded full weight,  

The application proposes 4.3 hectares of passive Open Space of Public Value in the 
Wokingham Countryside strip which exceeds the policy requirement for passive open space. 
In lieu of providing active open space the applicant states at paragraph 5.03 of the Design & 
Access Statement that the development will provide a contribution towards the enhancement 
of the sporting facilities at the Farley Wood Recreation Facility together with land for playing 
fields at the new Primary School. It will also provide one Local Area of Play (LAP) and two 
Local Equipped Areas of Play (LEAP). 

While not expressly mentioned in SALP Policy SA8 the principle of allowing a substantial 
element of active OSPV to be provided off-site is accepted in the Amen Corner SPD.  
Paragraph 7.4 states that the active OSPV provision can include shared use of school 
playing fields by local community clubs and groups outside of school hours; the 
enhancement of the sporting facilities at the Farley Wood Recreation Facility and the 
provision of appropriate play areas as part of the development. 

80



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

It is therefore considered that the application would be in accordance with the guidance set 
out in the Amen Corner SPD and Policy SA8  in respect of the provision and amount of open 
space subject to the on-site provision of children‟s play areas; a contribution towards the 
enhancement of the sporting facilities at the Farley Wood Recreation Facility and the 
provision of land for playing fields at the new Primary School (whether these can in practice 
be shared with community groups will be a matter for the eventual operator of the school and 
as such is not considered to lie within the control of the applicant).   

f) Maintenance of a gap between Wokingham and Bracknell (comprising on-site open space
and/or SANG): 
The Amen Corner South site lies within the broad area of the Strategic Gap between 
Bracknell and Wokingham identified in the Core Strategy. The maintenance of this gap 
between Wokingham and Bracknell is an important consideration, and was considered 
during the SALP Examination.  As a result of the examination process, a settlement 
boundary was added to the Policies Map for this site, and modifications to Policy SA8 were 
made to include specific reference to the need to maintain a gap between Bracknell and 
Wokingham.  The SALP Inspector concluded that subject to the Council's suggested 
changes, he was satisfied that an adequate gap would be maintained.  

The intended settlement boundary would abut the Borough boundary. However, open land 
would remain within Wokingham Borough between the site and the dual carriageway (the 
A329), which largely separates it from the remainder of that Borough. The submitted 
parameter plans and illustrative masterplan show that the various built forms of the proposed 
development would all be sited within the defined settlement boundary and the open land 
within Wokingham would be retained as open space.  This is in accordance with the Policies 
Map and also the illustrative concept plan  At this stage design and layout are reserved for 
future consideration at the reserved matters stage.  These will need to consider the proposed 
development along the edge and periphery of the settlement boundary in terms of potential 
bulk, scale massing.  It is therefore considered that the application would meet the 
requirements of Policy SA8 in respect of the maintenance of a gap between Wokingham and 
Bracknell.  

For the above reasons the principle of the proposed development is in accordance with 
SALP Policy SA8, subject to the completion of a s106 agreement containing obligations 
securing on and off site infrastructure and services required to meet the needs of the 
development and to mitigate its impact, the application is in accordance with Policy SA8. 

Conclusion on the Principle of Development 

The relevant Development Plan policies outlined above relating to the principle of the 
proposed development are considered to be up to date, and consistent with the NPPF. For 
the reasons set out above, and subject to the completion of appropriate obligations securing 
on-site infrastructure and services required to deliver the comprehensive development of the 
whole allocation site it is concluded that the proposed development in both applications 
would be in accordance with Policies CP1 and SA8 of the SALP, Policies CS2, CS9, and 
CS15 of the Core Strategy and the NPPF. 

As the principle of the proposed development in both applications is in accordance with the 
Development Plan and therefore acceptable, the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development requires that the application proposals should be approved, unless other 
material considerations indicate otherwise.   

The following sections of this report will consider whether there are other material 
considerations that indicate a determination should be made otherwise. 

81



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

9. URBAN DESIGN AND IMPACT ON THE CHARACTER OF THE SURROUNDING AREA

'Saved' BFBLP Policy EN20 and CSDPD Policy CS7 (which are considered to have 
significant weight in relation to para. 215 of the NPPF, as they are consistent with Chapter 7 
of the NPPF) are relevant.    The site contains a number of trees, some of which are 
protected by TPO, and therefore 'saved' Policy EN1 of the BFBLP is also relevant.  This 
policy is considered to be consistent with the NPPF, in particular para. 118, and can 
therefore be afforded significant weight (in relation to para. 215 of the NPPF).   

NPPF para. 57 refers to the need to plan positively for the achievement of high quality and 
inclusive design for all development.  Para. 58 refers to the need for planning decisions to 
ensure that development optimises the potential of a site to accommodate development and 
refers to the functioning and overall quality of the area. 

The northern access into the site from London Road and the configuration with the access to 
the truncated section (“Old” London Road) creates a highly engineered area at the entrance 
into the site.  Good design principles would result in a built form that provides a clearly 
identifiable entrance into the site, including a gateway building.  The width of the highway 
solution will make it difficult to create a sense of enclosure, and a built form clearly defining 
the entrance to the development.  The design of the junction is likely to result in the built form 
on either side of the access proposal being wide and set back from the highway.  This would 
create a wide open entrance to the development with limited focus.  While this is a negative 
aspect of the scheme, the highway officer has considered whether the space needed for this 
junction could be reduced but has advised that this is the minimum required in order to 
achieve a safe access to the site while maintaining existing access to properties on Old 
London Road. The detailed design of buildings and their relation to the public realm will 
therefore need to be carefully considered at the reserved matters stage. 

The eastern approach to the site should also have a landmark building forming a gateway 
into the development from the east to provide a high quality design for this new development. 
A combination of adjoining existing uses and the configuration of the application site in this 
area will make it difficult to achieve a satisfactory approach to the development from this 
side. The proposed eastern approach to the site commences at the Cain Road/Beehive 
Road/ John Nike Way roundabout from where the proposed new spine road would initially 
run on the existing alignment of Beehive Road, widened to the north such that it would 
encroach into the Ski Centre car park.  The lost parking spaces would have to be re-provided 
to ensure the ski centre retains adequate car parking, and the only realistic location is land 
within the application site immediately west of the existing car park on the site of the derelict 
properties of Karthia and The Bungalow.  Therefore the northern boundary of the spine road 
along this eastern approach would be adjacent to this existing and extended car park. This is 
not ideal from an urban design perspective, but is the only feasible option. 

The southern boundary of the spine road adjoins the existing HP premises before running 
past the disused golf driving range and Victorian cottages on North View.  None of these 
were included within the original application site and therefore there was very limited 
opportunity to secure a landmark building or gateway feature marking this approach to the 
site.  However, the separate application for the primary school partly addresses this and 
provides an opportunity for a landmark school building to be provided between Beehive Road 
and South View as envisaged in the SALP concept diagram for this site.  

With the exception of the school the spine road would not have any frontage development 
along this eastern section.  It is an important principle of good design that streets, whilst 
serving vehicular movement, are seen as places for all the community and where people and 
children feel comfortable on foot or cycle. Therefore, streets need to be overlooked and 
generate activity.  Banks of parking bordering the main street within the development and 

82



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

near the school would not create a safe and attractive streetscene for the future community 
here, particularly as this would be the route to the school.  Having some dwellings fronting 
onto the link road would provide activity and surveillance which car parking will not achieve. 

Given the limited width of the site at this point and the presence of important trees north of 
the spine road this would be difficult to achieve on the north side of the spine road and 
therefore any frontage development is likely to have to wait until other parts of the allocation 
site (i.e North View and South View) come forward for development.  In the interim it is 
considered that a soft, green character would be the best way to provide an attractive 
approach to the site from the east through the retention and enhancement of existing 
landscaping and important trees, together with new high quality structural landscaping along 
the spine road. This high quality landscaped approach will be sought through the reserved 
matters submissions. High quality built design, including a landmark school building, will be 
sought as part of any future applications for the development of the land south of the spine 
road.  

As noted above the existing buildings on the southern part of the site, are unattractive small 
general industrial businesses principally involved in vehicle repair, open storage, and scrap 
metal recovery.  It is considered that the removal of these buildings and replacement with a 
new well designed mixed use community with landscaping and public access to large areas 
of public open space would considerably enhance the character of the area, and represent 
an attractive extension to Bracknell. 

The proposed loss of trees within the site is not considered to result in any adverse impact 
on the character of the area, as the most important trees and woodland belts around the 
perimeter of the site and within green corridors running through the site would be retained. 

In conclusion it is considered that although the requirements of providing adequate access to 
the site and the omission of significant areas of the comprehensive SA8 allocation site from 
this application will prove challenging, in view of the fact that this is only an outline 
application with detail design and landscaping matters reserved for later consideration, and 
the requirement to deliver housing on this site, it is considered that an acceptable design 
could be found during the working up of the details and as further applications are made for 
the residual areas of the allocation site. This would enable a development to be created on 
this site which enhanced the character and appearance of area. Therefore this outline 
proposal is not in conflict with the relevant sections of Core Strategy Policy CS7 and saved 
Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan (BFBLP) Policies EN1 and EN20. 

10. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

BFBLP 'Saved' Policy EN20 proviso (vii) seeks to prevent development that would adversely 
affect the amenity of surrounding properties.  Generally this site is self-contained with 
relatively few places where it would impact directly on existing residential properties.  The 
main impact would be on properties on North View and South View which would be largely 
surrounded by the development site.  It is considered that the detailed layout could be 
designed to avoid any undue impact on the amenities of these properties.  However care will 
be needed to ensure the amenities of these properties is adequately protected during the 
construction process.  This can be controlled through appropriate conditions. It is also noted 
that few objections have been raised to the principle of the proposed development; rather the 
concerns are that their properties have not been included in the application.  This suggests 
an acceptance of the principle and a willingness for their properties to be brought forward for 
development as envisaged in the wider site allocation.  

83



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

No other properties are considered likely to suffer any significant adverse impacts on their 
residential amenity, and the proposal is therefore considered to be in accordance with saved 
Policy EN20 proviso (vii). 

11. TRANSPORT IMPLICATIONS

Saved BFBLP Policies M4, M6, M8 and M9 and CSDPD Policies CS23 and CS24 seek to 
promote or retain safe highway access, sustainable modes of transport and suitable parking 
provisions, thus avoiding highway safety implications. These policies are consistent with the 
objectives of the NPPF (Chapter 4, in particular para. 32), and can therefore be afforded full 
weight.  

a) Vehicular access to the site:
The application proposes a new spine road linking London Road and Cain Road, connecting 
to the existing roundabout at the bottom of John Nike Way and Cain Road.  A new signalised 
junction would be constructed on London Road that will allow access into the spine road from 
the east and the west but only egress to the west towards the A329.  The design of the 
junction includes pedestrian/cyclist facilities and associated footways/cycleways.  The 
applicant has designed the interface with the “Old London Road” effectively as a left inwards 
right outwards junction requiring vehicles to use the proposed roundabout on the spine road 
to the south to gain access. Following initial concerns about limited forward visibility and the 
safety of pedestrians and cyclists, the left turn slip road into Old London Road has been 
amended.  It now includes a 3m cycleway on the northern side of Old London Road, to 
provide a link to the crossing at the junction creating a safe connection to the cycleway along 
London Road.  The central island at the junction has also been amended to provide greater 
room for pedestrians and cyclists to safely wait before crossing.   

The realignment of the London Road to provide the access requires the re-profiling of the 
existing embankment located adjacent to the Old London Road.  The plans have been 
amended to provide a level verge required to locate services including street lighting 
columns.   

The internal access roads serving the development are adequate for the potential use of the 
road by the vehicles expected to use it.   

Proposed roundabout junction 
The applicant has proposed a 4 arm roundabout at the western end of the site that is located 
approximately 180m to the east of the new signalised junction.  This junction has been 
designed to maintain access through the site while serving part of the secondary access road 
that feeds the bulk of the proposed residential development to the south of the site.  There is 
also a northern arm to this junction which is intended to provide access to the proposed 
neighbourhood centre as well as connecting to the existing car park of the Coppid Beech 
Hotel.   

Overall the principle form of the junction is acceptable and the final design will be controlled 
by condition. 

New accesses to North View and South View 
The proposed accesses have come about due to the alignment of the proposed spine road. 
These roads only serve a limited number of properties but access needs to be safely 
maintained and a turning heads are required as refuse collection and deliveries must not 
stop on the spine road.   

Overall the principle form of the junctions is acceptable and the final design will be controlled 
by condition. 

84



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Beehive Road existing junction alterations 
The proposal is to alter the junction radii and provide a footway returning back into the side 
road.  This route will link up to the footbridge and thus this route will be a significant benefit 
for pedestrians and cyclists to link up to the existing residential development to the south and 
the southern industrial estate.  The route would also provide cycle and pedestrian links to the 
proposed school. 

Overall the principle form of the junction is acceptable and the final design will be controlled 
by condition. 

Internal access road: 
As part of the proposal the applicant has indicated that an internal spine road linking London 
Road to Cain Road will be provided.  This would be generally on the alignment indicated on 
the illustrative concept plan  in the SALP. Some illustrative details of this access road have 
been provided with the outline application to ensure that a suitably designed road to serve 
the site can be accommodated. The spine road has been designed to cater for traffic for the 
whole development.  The carriageway is 6.5m wide and wider than this where right turn 
lanes have been provided.  This width of road will be adequate to serve the proposed 
development.  The road has some areas of steeper gradients, which comply with current 
adopted standards. 

Overall the principle of the spine road is acceptable and the final design will be controlled by 
condition 

b) Pedestrian/Cycle Access:
The existing cycle route heading eastwards along the south side of London Road connects 
back into an existing footway at the junction of John Nike Way.  The scheme proposes to 
widen the existing footway up to this junction to provide a footway at least 3m wide to cater 
for both pedestrians and cyclists.   

The applicant has proposed a new 3.5m wide footway/cycleway that runs along the north 
side of London Road from the proposed signal controlled crossing forming part of the Spine 
Road junction to the Coppid Beech roundabout.  It is acknowledged that this will have an 
impact on the trees along this section of the highway, and that there will be a requirement for 
a retaining structure along part of the route.  However this section of footway/cycleway is 
essential to provide a safe connection towards Wokingham as well as provide a connection 
to bus stops.  It is also considered essential for the development of the adjacent Amen 
Corner (North) urban extension. 

c) Public Transport:
It is proposed that the existing commercial 190 bus service will be diverted along the 
proposed Spine Road to serve the site. S106 obligations are also being sought to secure 
enhancements to existing or new services in the area.  .   

d) Travel Plan:

A residential travel plan framework has been provided for the site, it is a requirement for the 
scale of the development and it will be included within a S106. 

e) Parking Requirements: (to include turning area / on street etc)
Various parking solutions will be brought forward under the reserved matters applications for 
the development parcels, proposed.  Parking is not a consideration for these applications. 

85



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

It is acknowledged that parking provision for the existing ice rink is affected by the proposed 
spine road; the applicant has indicated that parking will be re-provided to the same level as 
indicated in the submitted plans.   

Cycle parking will also be covered at a reserved matters stage. 

f) Vehicle Movements / per day:
The applicant has utilised the Bracknell Forest Multi modal model to assess the impact of the 
proposal on the transport network.  The applicant then undertook an analysis of the junction 
proposals associated with the site to establish the capacity of the proposals. 

The assessments indicate that the junctions within the development operate within capacity. 
In respect of the assessment of the main signalised junction this has been carried out as a 
linked junction to John Nike Way.  The analysis indicates that the junctions run close to 
capacity with long queues in both directions at various times of the day.   

The original modelling did not indicate any specific modelling for a junction for the Amen 
Corner (North) site.  This is important as the inclusion of the junction would have an impact 
on the flow of traffic through the junction. 

The assessment of the Coppid Beech roundabout also indicates that that junction works 
within capacity.  This junction lies with Wokingham BC and a proposed improvement of this 
junction is expected to be undertaken in the near future. 

A considerable amount of further work has been carried out by the applicant‟s transport 
consultant to address the original concerns raised by the Highway Authority. These concerns 
were mainly due to the design of the access on London Road and the capacity issues that 
may arise along London Road.  A Transport addendum report has been submitted that seeks 
to address the issues raised in respect of access and has provided more in depth modelling 
of the network and has also looked at a potential access to the north side of London Road. 

The remodelling of the site has now provided much more detail and has also included the 
potential traffic that could occur from the expansion of the Hewlett Packard site in response 
to the objection by HP.  In that respect the Highway Authority is content that a robust 
assessment of the potential traffic in the area has now been modelled.  The inclusion of the 
new road to serve the site has provided the ability for traffic heading south towards Cain 
Road and beyond to distribute evenly across both the new road and John Nike Way ensuring 
that adequate capacity remains at both junctions which was the concern raised before.  The 
applicant has modelled a cross roads at John Nike Way to show that access to the Amen 
Corner North site is not disadvantaged by this proposal and the modelling shows that it is 
not.   

In respect of wider impacts some roads witness an increase and some a decrease due to 
changes in traffic behaviour but overall the levels of traffic on the network do not give cause 
for concern. The road that witnesses the greatest percentage increase is Cain Road and this 
is not unexpected due to the new road running through the site.  The model results for Cain 
Road indicate that junctions along the road are not compromised.  On certain junctions delay 
increases slightly but not detrimentally.   

In terms of the operation of Hewlett Packard there is no change to operation of the main 
access to its site, the main change occurs from the increase that comes about from the 
potential increase in activity that would occur if the additional permitted floorspace at the HP 
site was built.  It should also be noted that the modelling loads all traffic from HP onto the 
main access and no traffic comes into or out of the site from the junction to the east that is 

86



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

adjacent to Dell.  Clearly that access could be used and this would reduce impact at the main 
access.   

Overall the Highway Authority is content that the impact along this road is not so significant 
to warrant refusal. It also seeks contribution payments to mitigate the local transport network 
and any such sums secured could be used to carry out minor improvements along Cain 
Road should it be necessary in the longer term.   

The following additional comments apply In respect of application 14/00472/OUT for the 
primary school.  

Access: (to include speed limit / adopted etc.) 
The site is located on Beehive Road, which adjoins Cain Road.  The proposal is to provide a 
new 2 form entry primary school in this location, with all matters reserved.  However, the 
applicant has indicated that vehicular access will be via Beehive Road which is acceptable 
and that drop off facilities will be provided within the site.  Part of the land will also be used to 
provide a turning head for vehicles using the route.  Furthermore the applicant has indicated 
that a new footway will be provided along the Beehive Road to provide safe access and a 
new pedestrian access point to the site from the north will also be provided.  Such an access 
would be sought when the new spine road is constructed to aid in the safe movement of 
children from the residential development. 

Furthermore, a new pedestrian/cyclist link to the south of the proposed site is indicated and 
this will be delivered as part of the wider site proposals. 

Parking Requirements: (to include turning area / on street etc) 
Parking in line with standards set out in the relevant SPD will be required at the reserved 
matters stage and consideration for how drop off and pick up will also need to be detailed. 

Cycle parking on site will be required in line with standards as well. 

Vehicle Movements / per day: 
The site will generate additional traffic, the majority of which would be as part of a linked trip 
from the residential development that will come forward.  A school as part of the wider 
development brings with it the chance to reduce the amount of car borne trips as access on 
foot/cycle will be promoted through the design of the residential layouts.   

Some staff trips will be expected and the majority of these would be from off site, although 
some members of staff may live on the wider site in due course. 

The traffic associated with the school proposal will have a nominal impact subject to its 
occupation not occurring until the proposed spine road serving the wider site has been 
implemented. 

A S106 securing a school travel plan will be required. Off site works to provide access and 
footway improvements to Beehive Lane could also be secured by legal agreement. 

The proposals are therefore in accordance with the above Development Plan policies and 
the NPPF. 

12. LANDSCAPE AND TREE ISSUES

Policy CS1 requires development to protect and enhance the character and quality of local 
landscapes and the wider countryside. Policy CS7 requires development proposals to 
enhance the landscape and provide high quality usable open spaces and public realm.  

87



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Saved BFBLP Policy EN1 seeks to prevent the loss of trees which are important to the 
retention of, inter alia, the character and appearance of the landscape or townscape.  Saved 
BFBLP Policy EN20 sets out various design considerations to be taken into account in new 
development, including the retention of beneficial landscape or ecological features. Proviso 
(iii) seeks to ensure that the design promotes, or creates local character and a sense of local 
identity. Proviso (vi) seeks to avoid the loss of natural features such as trees, hedges or 
banks. These policies are considered be consistent with the NPPF, therefore can be afforded 
significant weight… 

The applicant has amended the alignment of the eastern section of the spine road to enable 
the retention of the existing vegetation along North View. This should also enable the central 
section of the spine road to be constructed with less tree loss than originally envisaged, 
although it is acknowledged that a number of significant trees are likely to be lost. 

The applicant has also submitted revised illustrative plans for the layout of the expanded ski 
centre car park which show a reduced impact on existing trees and improved landscaping 
screening the parking area from the spine road. 

It is considered that the issues raised at this outline application stage are best addressed in 
terms of the general landscape impact, as it is considered that on a development of this 
scale detailed tree and landscape issues are better dealt with at the reserved matters stage 
should outline permission be granted.  It is considered that any issues concerning the loss of 
trees (if the development as a whole was found acceptable) could be satisfactorily dealt with 
through replanting, landscaping and management schemes to be drawn up in detail at a later 
stage.  In addition the protection of retained trees can be controlled through appropriate 
conditions. 

The proposals are therefore in accordance with the above Development Plan policies and 
the NPPF. 

13. BIODIVERSITY (OTHER THAN SPA)

Core Strategy Policy CS1 which is consistent with the NPPF, supports development that 
protects and enhances the quality of natural resources including water, air, land and 
biodiversity.  Policy CS7 supports development proposals which enhance the landscape and 
promote biodiversity.  These policies are consistent with para. 118 of the NPPF which states 
that LPAs should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity. The Council's Biodiversity 
Officer originally had serious concerns about the proposed bunds in the ancient woodland of 
Riggs Copse as these would constitute considerable disturbance to the ancient woodland 
and would change its character.  Amended drainage details have been submitted that 
address this issue by removing the need for bunds in Riggs Copse. 

The proposed development, as amended, in conjunction with the proposed biodiversity 
mitigation measures is considered to secure the protection and enhancement of biodiversity 
in accordance with CS Policies CS1 and CS7.  

14. AIR QUALITY, GROUND CONTAMINATION AND NOISE IMPACTS (OTHER THAN
SPA) 

As noted above the ES has been amended to consider these matters further, following 
objections raised by HP and others. The ES concludes that dust may be generated during 
construction causing annoyance to dwellings in close proximity to the construction works. 
Dust control measures will be applied within a Code of Construction Practice to minimise 
dust impacts which will be required by condition.. 

88



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Increases in emissions from traffic associated with the proposed development are predicted 
to have a negligible effect on local air quality.  Predicted pollutant concentrations are well 
below National Air Quality Strategy Objectives and air quality at the site is predicted to be 
suitable for residential development. 

The consideration of additional traffic from Hewlett Packard has no significant affect on these 
conclusions. Hewlett Packard‟s offices are not a relevant receptor as it is not a residential 
use, however even if it was the air quality would be suitable. 

Noise measurements have been made around the development site so as to establish the 
current noise levels to which the site is exposed. The likely future noise levels have been 
calculated based on traffic flow figures for the existing and new road based upon data 
derived from the amended Transport Assessment. 

Noise criteria have been derived for the existing and proposed residential properties, for the 
proposed school and for the Hewlett Packard offices. Assessments of the calculated future 
noise levels conclude that there will be a requirement for some proposed residential 
properties to be provided some form of acoustically rated background ventilators in order to 
provide internal noise levels within the BS8233:2014 criteria. 

The noise levels on the area allocated for the school are such that there is scope that, in 
part, the school could be naturally ventilated. 

For the most part it is calculated that the change in noise levels at residential properties due 
to the changes in the traffic flows will be less than 3 dB which could give rise to “Minor” 
impact on residential amenity.  In the worst case it is calculated that the change in noise 
levels at residential properties in North View adjacent to the proposed Spine Road due to the 
changes in the traffic flows will be around 4 dB which could give rise to “Moderate” impact on 
residential amenity. 

Mitigation to reduce the noise from the proposed Spine Road to North View could bring the 
increase in external noise levels to less than 3 dB and within the “minor” impact category. 
The calculated noise garden noise levels at North View is within the BS8233:2014 55 dB 
LAeq, to upper guideline value for private gardens and amenity spaces. 

The level of external noise at the Hewlett Packard offices from traffic on the proposed new 
Spine Road is calculated to be at a level which still enables windows to be opened for 
ventilation in both executive and open plan offices. 

In respect of ground conditions, the ES has assessed the potential impacts the proposed 
development may have on the ground conditions of the site and surrounding area. A desk 
study review of published information and an intrusive ground investigation comprising 
boreholes, window samples and trial pits, has been undertaken to obtain information on the 
ground conditions to support the assessment. 

The site is generally undeveloped within the central, eastern and northern parts. Within the 
south of the site there are a number of industrial activities including car breakers, MOT 
centre and vehicle re-spray centre. Former landfill sites are present on the south and west 
areas of the site. 

In parts of the site (predominantly the southern area), the historical uses of the site have 
resulted in elevated concentrations of some potentially contaminative substances being 
present, predominantly in areas of Made Ground. In addition, the site monitoring carried out 
to date has indicated the presence of ground gas (low levels of methane and carbon dioxide) 

89



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

across the site. The groundwater sampling and testing carried out to date, as part of the 
intrusive investigation, has not indicated the presence of significant or widespread 
contamination in the groundwater at the site. 

A Preliminary Options Remediation Statement has been undertaken to identify the potential 
options for dealing with any contamination present. At the detailed design stage, a complete 
remediation strategy will be developed that will involve treatment or removal of the 
contamination, if necessary, to ensure there are no long term risks to human health or 
ground and surface waters 

The Council's Environmental Health Officer has raised no objections on these issues subject 
to appropriate conditions being imposed.  Therefore the proposal is in accordance with 
BFBLP Policy EN25 and paragraph 120 and 121 of the NPPF 

15. THAMES BASIN HEATHS SPECIAL PROTECTION AREA (SPA)

Policy CS14 (and Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan) relate to consideration of and 
mitigation of impacts upon the SPA.  These establish a general presumption against new 
residential development within a 400m straight line distance of the boundary of the SPA, and 
require appropriate avoidance and mitigation measures in respect of development within a 
5km straight line distance of the SPA. These policies are considered to be consistent with 
paras. 113 and 119 of the NPPF which require LPAs to set criteria based policies against 
which proposals for any development affecting protected wildlife will be judged.   

The Council, in agreement with Natural England (NE), has formed the view that that any net 
increase in residential development between 400m and 5km straight-line distance from the 
Thames Basin Heath SPA is likely to have a significant effect on the SPA, either alone or in-
combination with other plans or projects.  

This site is located approximately 3.15km from the boundary of the SPA and therefore is 
likely to result in an adverse effect on the SPA, unless it is carried out together with 
appropriate avoidance and mitigation measures. 

Therefore, a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) must consider whether compliance 
with conditions or restrictions, such as a planning obligation, can enable it to be ascertained 
that the proposal would not adversely affect the integrity of the site.  

In line with the relevant policies the project as proposed would not adversely impact on the 
integrity of the site provided the following avoidance and mitigation measures are provided 
and prior to permission being granted an applicant enters into a Section 106 Agreement. 
These mitigation measures have been agreed with Natural England which has not raised an 
objection to this application.   

i) The Provision of Bespoke SANG and its Ongoing Maintenance in Perpetuity

SALP Policy SA8 requires a bespoke on site and off site SANG of at least 8ha per 1,000 new 
residents.  It is estimated that the development proposals will give rise to a population 
increase of 1,271 people.  Therefore, to accord with the SALP, there is a requirement to 
provide at least 10.2ha of SANG. The applicant has proposed a combination of on site and 
off site SANG.  On site it proposes Riggs Copse (2.7 ha) that will mitigate 146 dwellings (338 
persons).  Therefore the residual amount of dwellings to be mitigated off site at the Council 
owned Big Wood is 404 dwellings which amount to 7.5 ha.  In addition Big Wood will need to 
provide capacity for the residual amount of dwellings for the Amen Corner South allocation of 
725 dwellings not forming part of the current application i.e 175 dwellings.  The SANG 

90



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

requirement for 175 dwellings is 3.2 ha which will form the residual amount of Big Wood left 
after the needs of the current application are met.  

The whole of Big Wood (10.7ha) will be required to be enhanced to SANGs standard before 
commencement of the development so that a functioning SANG is in place in accordance 
with the approved SANG Management Plan.  It is not realistic to provide the SANGs area 
contained in Big Wood in phases.  In practical terms it would be very difficult to open up parts 
of a wood to public access while other parts are unmanaged and path links are not 
completed. Also in order for Big Wood to be a functioning SANG, the entire circular walk 
needs to be in place.   

The whole of Riggs Copse SANG (2.7ha) (and the link to Big Wood SANG) will be required 
to be enhanced to SANGs standard before commencement of the 405th dwelling. 

The applicant has submitted a draft SANG Management Plan with the application. The 
quality and content of this are considered to be generally appropriate and acceptable.  The 
intention is that a final SANG Management Plan will be appended to the s106 Agreement 
which will give certainty that the SANG mitigation will be delivered in perpetuity on the 
ground. 

Attractive access to Big Wood SANGs must be available from all phases of the development 
on occupation so that visitor patterns to the SPA are not unintentionally set in early stages of 
occupation. Attractive access to Riggs Copse SANGs must be available from all phases of 
development occupied on or after the enhancement of Riggs Copse SANG.  Before 
occupation of the development the longer SANGs link between Riggs Copse and Big Wood 
must be provided and signposted in accordance with the SANGs Management Plan agreed 
with the Council and NE. 

Once enhanced to SANG standard (including the remediation of oil based pollution) in 
agreement with the Council and NE, ownership of Riggs Copse will be transferred to 
Bracknell Forest Council with appropriate terms and conditions and secured by legal 
agreement.   

ii) SANGs in Perpetuity Maintenance Costs

Ongoing in perpetuity management of the SANG will be undertaken by BFC in accordance 
with the SANG Management Plan. Contributions will be sought to ensure that the SANGs is 
managed in perpetuity in accordance with the SANGs Management Plan which will be 
agreed with the Council and NE.  The level of contributions will be set out in the S106 
Agreement.  
.   
iii) Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) contributions

A Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) contribution must be paid on 
commencement of the development in accordance with the SPA SPD.  This contribution may 
be phased. 

In conclusion it is considered that the development would not adversely affect the integrity of 
the Thames Basin Heaths SPA provided that the above measures are put in place. These 
measures will prevent a significant adverse affect on the integrity of the SPA.  It is 
considered that these matters could be addressed through a SANG Management Plan and 
appropriate obligations within a s106 agreement. Therefore pursuant to Article 6(3) of the 
Habitats Directive (Council Directive 92/43/EEC) and Regulation 61(5) of the Conservation of 
Habitats and Species (Amendment) Regulations (2012) permission may be granted. 

91



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

BBOWT are concerned that the proposed SANGS links do not meet the current NE 
guidelines.  In response it has been agreed with NE that there do not appear to be any viable 
alternatives to those which are proposed to link Riggs Copse and Big Wood.  It is therefore 
considered that if the links between the development and the proposed SANGS at Riggs 
Copse and Big Wood, plus the existing SANGS at Peacock Meadows and Jennett‟s Park, 
are well advertised and signposted, then these links should work effectively in getting people 
between these open spaces.  NE is in agreement with this position. 

Also, a SANG the size of Big Wood (approx. 10.7ha) has a catchment of 2km.  This SANG 
falls well within the catchment area of the development at Amen Corner South. 

The footpath link from the development to Big Wood would need to be enhanced before any 
housing is occupied and this forms part of the enhancement work set out in the SANGs 
Management Plan.  

It is considered that these matters could be addressed through appropriate obligations within 
a s106 agreement. 

The proposals are therefore in accordance with the above Development Plan policies and 
the NPPF. 

16. FLOODING AND DRAINAGE ISSUES

The application is accompanied by a Flood Risk Assessment. This sets out a proposed 
drainage strategy that will ensure that once the development is completed, increased runoff 
will not increase the risk of flooding. The use of oil separators prior to the discharge of water 
running off the site will reduce oil contamination in the water. 

The Environment Agency and the council‟s sustainable drainage officer have confirmed that 
the proposed arrangements for drainage are acceptable in principle; however detailed 
drainage strategies will need to be secured through condition.  In response to comments by 
HP, it is noted that HP do not dispute that the proposed drainage strategy is technically 
achievable, and that the balancing pond has spare capacity. Its concern appears to be that 
the applicant does not have sufficient legal rights to drain the whole development site into the 
balancing pond owned by HP.  Clearly any developer will need to satisfy itself that it has 
sufficient rights to drain into the balancing pond, and therefore a condition is proposed that 
the development shall not be commenced until off-site drainage has been provided in 
accordance with an approved detailed drainage strategy. 

17. AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Policies CS16 and CS17 of the CS (in relation to housing needs and affordable housing) can 
be afforded full weight (in relation to para. 215 of the NPPF) as they are consistent with para. 
50 of the NPPF which relates to delivering a wider choice of homes, a mix of housing and 
affordable housing. The Council's affordable housing policy currently applies to proposals 
involving 15 net dwellings or more.  In such circumstances, 25 per cent affordable housing is 
required, subject to viability.  

The application proposes up to 25% of the total number of dwellings could be for affordable 
housing subject to viability.  This is considered acceptable in principle, and can be secured 
through appropriate obligations in the s106 agreement 

92



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

18. INFRASTRUCTRURE AND COMMUNITY FACILITY REQUIREMENTS

NPPF para. 70 refers to delivering the social, recreational, cultural facilities and services 
communities need, including the need to plan positively for the provision and shared use of 
space, community facilities (including shops etc), and the need to ensure an integrated 
approach to considering the location of housing, economic uses, community facilities and 
services.  Para. 72 sets out that the Government attaches great importance to ensuring that 
a sufficient choice of school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new 
communities, and that LPAs should give great weight for the need to create new schools. 

Core Strategy Policy CS6 expects development to contribute to the delivery of:- 

1. infrastructure needed to support growth and
2. infrastructure needed to mitigate impacts upon infrastructure.
This policy is consistent with the NPPF and therefore can be afforded significant weight. 

SALP Policy SA8, as well as allocating this site for a mixed development as described earlier 
in this report, also sets out the infrastructure required to support this development.  This 
includes: 

A comprehensive package of on- and off-site transport measures to mitigate the 
development‟s impact on roads and encourage sustainable modes of transport. 
A new spine road linking London Road and the Beehive Road/John Nike Way junction to 
provide a single access for all the development allocated in this policy. 
On-site in-kind provision of a waste recycling facility. 
On-site in-kind provision of a Primary School, on sufficient land to allow expansion. 
Financial contributions towards the provision of Secondary School and Special Educational 
Needs places. 
In-kind provision or financial contributions towards the enhancement and expansion of the 
Farley Wood community centre into a multi-functional community hub. 
Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of residential development on the Thames 
Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA), in agreement with the Council and Natural 
England. This will include provision in perpetuity; 
- of on-site and off-site bespoke SANG of at least 8ha per 1,000 new population; 
- a financial contribution towards Strategic Access Management and Monitoring; and 
- any other measures that are required to satisfy Habitats Regulations, the Council's 
Thames Basin Heaths SPA Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and relevant guidance. 
A comprehensive package of on-site, in-kind Open Space of Public Value, in accordance 
with standards. 
Protection and enhancement of Public Rights of Way. 
Integration of Sustainable Drainage Systems. 
Provision of Green Infrastructure (in addition to elements listed above). 

The IDP expands on this list and provides more detail of the required infrastructure and 
community facilities. 

Paragraph 178 of the NPPF states that to ensure the costs of any requirements likely to be 
applied to development, such as requirements for affordable housing, standards, 
infrastructure contributions or other requirements should, when taking account of the normal 
cost of development and mitigation, provide competitive returns to a willing land owner and 
willing developer to enable the development to be deliverable.   

The applicant has submitted a viability appraisal which concludes that the development 
would not be viable if the entire package of infrastructure and community facilities as sought 
by the Council were to be provided.  

93



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Independent expert advice on the applicant's viability appraisal has been sought in order to 
establish what would be a reasonable s106 requirement taking into account the need to 
ensure a viable scheme.  This has advised that the development proposed would be viable 
with full policy compliance.  Subsequently long and detailed negotiations have taken place in 
an attempt to find common ground on this issue.  The position has now been reached 
whereby there is broad agreement on those items of infrastructure which will be provided on 
site, and on the principle of financial contributions towards off site provision by others. 

However a number of details still need to be resolved, but your officers are now satisfied that 
a successful conclusion to these negotiations is possible and in view of this it is therefore 
recommended that if Members are minded to grant permission, this is subject to the 
satisfactory outcome of these negotiations, and the completion of a s106 agreement. 

19. CONCLUSIONS

SALP Policy CP1 set out the presumption in favour of sustainable development. This 
requires that development proposals should be approved that accord with the development 
plan.  Where this is absent, silent or relevant policies out of date, development proposals 
should be approved unless material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account 
whether any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole; or 
where specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should be restricted. Para. 49 of 
the NPPF sets out that housing applications should be considered in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development. This report has concluded that the 
relevant development plan policies relating to the principle of development are up to date and 
consistent with the NPPF and as such should carry substantial weight.  

The application site was considered in the preparation of the SALP and ultimately it was 
allocated for development by SALP Policy SA8 when the local plan was adopted last year. 

For the reasons set out in the report it is concluded that the principle of the proposed 
development is acceptable as it would be in accordance with the NPPF, Policy SA8 of the 
SALP, and Policies CS2, CS9 and CS15 of the Core Strategy. 

Representations have been received from a number of individuals and organisations which 
raise a number of other material considerations. As the principle of the proposed 
development is in accordance with the development plan and therefore acceptable, the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development requires that the application proposals 
should be approved, unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
application should therefore only be refused if the adverse impacts identified significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the presumption in favour of sustainable development.   

This report has considered the proposal against relevant policies in the development plan 
and other material considerations, including the NPPF.  It is concluded that the proposal 
would be in accordance with development plan policies to which substantial weight should be 
given.  However, in the absence of suitable planning conditions and obligations, the 
application would fail to mitigate the impact of the proposed development on local services 
and infrastructure, and the SPA, and to secure affordable housing. 

Therefore the application is recommended for approval subject to appropriate conditions and 
the completion of a s106 agreement to secure the matters referred to in section 18 including 
the deliverability of an appropriate level of affordable housing, the mitigation of off-site 
impacts including the SPA and transport and securing contributions to local facilities and 
services. 

94



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

RECOMMENDATION 

That authority to determine the application be delegated to the Head of Development 
Management upon the completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990 and subject to various conditions, amended, added to or 
deleted as he considers necessary. 

Following the completion of planning obligation(s) under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 relating to:- 

01. The provision of an appropriate level of affordable housing;

02. Measures to avoid and mitigate the impact of residential development upon the
Thames Basins Heath Special Protection Area (SPA), including the provision in perpetuity of 
on-site bespoke SANG; a financial contribution towards Strategic Access Management and 
Monitoring; and any other measures that are required to satisfy Habitat Regulations, the 
Council's Thames Basins Heaths SPA Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy and relevant 
guidance.   

03. Securing the timely provision of, and contributions to, local facilities and services
including:  
- A comprehensive package of on and off-site transport measures (either through provision in 
kind or a financial contribution towards provision by others) to mitigate the development's 
impact on roads and encourage sustainable modes of transport;  
- On-site in-kind provision of a Primary School; 
- a financial contributions towards the provision by others of Secondary education, post-16 
education and Special Educational Needs places;  
- a financial contributions towards the provision by others of a multi-functional community 
hub;  
- a financial contribution towards the provision by others of improvements to existing library 
facilities; 
- a financial contribution towards the provision by others of improvements to existing built 
sport facilities  
- a comprehensive package of on-site Open Space of Public Value, in accordance with 
standards;  
- The provision of waste recycling facilities.  
Where on site provision is made for infrastructure or services where the intention is that the 
responsibility for long term management is to be transferred to the Council or other body, in 
addition a financial contribution towards commuted maintenance and management costs will 
be sought. 

That the Head of Development Management be authorised to APPROVE the application 
subject to the following condition(s):-  

01. Approval of the details of the scale of the buildings, the access for (other than the
vehicular access to/from the site which is not reserved) and the layout, appearance and 
landscaping of the development (hereinafter called "the Reserved Matters") shall be obtained 
from the Local Planning Authority in writing before a Phase or Sub Phase (as defined within 
the details to be submitted and approved pursuant to condition 4) is commenced and shall be 
carried out as approved, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

02. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning
Authority before the expiration of five years from the date of this permission. 
REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

95



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

03. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than the expiration of two
years from the final approval of the reserved matters, or, in the case of approval on different 
dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved.  
REASON:  To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

04. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until a Demolition, Construction
and Phasing Strategy which shall show the Phases and Sub Phases in which development is 
to be carried out, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
The Demolition, Construction and Phasing Strategy shall comprise the following documents 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
1. A Demolition and Construction Programme which shall set out the anticipated sequence in
which the following works will be carried out: 
i. Demolition works
ii. Tree clearance works
iii. Earthworks
iv. Construction of development Phases and Sub Phases (including areas of Open Space of
Public Value) 
v The implementation of the Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) 
vi. Highway works (including pedestrian/cyclist routes and alterations for construction
access) 
vii. Surface water drainage works
viii. Landscaping works
ix. Utility works
x. Recycling facilities
xi Environmental mitigation works identified in the Environmental Statement  
xii  Public Art 

2. A Planning Submission Programme which shall set out the anticipated sequence for the
submission of the Masterplan, Design Code, Reserved Matters, strategies and other details 
as referred to in other conditions attached to this permission 

3. Phasing Strategy Diagrams which shall include the following details:
i. The location of each Phase and Sub Phase of development
ii. The commencement date and order in which works are to be completed in the
development Phases and Sub Phases 
iii. Landscape (including areas of passive and active Open Space of Public Value), utility and
highway works for each Phase and Sub Phase. 

4. A list of the land use components (including number of dwellings and non residential
floorspace) of each Phase and Sub Phase of the development.  
The Masterplan, Design Code, Reserved Matters, strategies and other details as referred to 
in other conditions attached to this permission shall thereafter be submitted in accordance 
with the approved Planning Submission Programme (as may be amended from time to time 
by agreement in writing by the Local Planning Authority).  
The development shall thereafter only be carried out in accordance with the approved 
Demolition, Construction and Phasing Strategy (as may be amended from time to time by 
agreement in writing of the Local Planning Authority). 
REASON: In order to ensure a phased programme of development in the interests of proper 
planning and the comprehensive redevelopment of the area. 

05. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
plans: 
PD27/D Site application boundary submitted 12th June 2014 

96



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

PD86/A Site application boundary showing land relating to planning applications to Bracknell 
Forest Council & Wokingham Borough Council submitted 12th June 2014 
PD87/A Proposed & Existing Public Rights of Way submitted 12th June 2014 
PD98/A Parameters Drawing submitted 12th June 2014  
PD127 London Road Sections submitted 29th July 2014  
23732-001-SK006-C Proposed highway layout (showing details of cycleway) submitted 29th 
July 2014  
23732-001-004-Q Proposed highway layout submitted 29th July 2014  
23732-001-018-F Highway Longitudinal Sections & Cross Sections submitted 29th July 
201423732-001-019-D Visibility Assessments (west) submitted 29th July 2014 
23732-001-020-B Visibility Assessments (east) submitted 28th June 2013  
23732-001-021 Swept Paths - London Road submitted 28th June 2013 
23732-001-022 Swept Paths - roundabout submitted 28th June 2013  
REASON: To ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
- Highway layout: 23732/001/014 rev O  

06. Prior to the submission of the first Reserved Matters application a Masterplan and
Design Code based on the principles in the Design and Access Statement shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Design Code will set out 
design principles in relation to the following: 
i. Layout, form, scale, and massing requirements for specific plots, character areas, Phases
or Sub Phases of the development 
ii. Sustainable design and construction, including energy efficiency
iii. Built form strategies including density and massing, orientation, street grain and
permeability, street enclosure, active frontages, type and form of buildings including 
relationship to plot and landmarks  
iv. External materials
v. Mix of dwelling types for each Phase or Sub Phase that contains residential development
vi. Hard and soft landscaping strategy including the retention of important trees
vii. Strategy for the design of the public realm including layout of streets, squares, areas of
public open space and areas for play 
viii. Sustainable urban drainage
ix. Boundary treatment / fencing / means of enclosure
x. Street lighting, signage, and other street furniture
xi. Alignment, width, gradient, and type of construction proposed for all footways, cycleways
and highways 
xii. On street and off street vehicle parking, loading and turning areas
xiii. Cycle parking and storage
xiv. Securing access to buildings for all
xv. Integration of strategic utility requirements, landscaping and highway design
xvi. Public art
xvii. External lighting of non-residential buildings, circulatory routes, open spaces and parking
areas  
Thereafter all Reserved Matters applications shall be submitted in accordance with the 
approved Masterplan and Design Code (as may be amended from time to time by written 
agreement with the Local Planning Authority).  
REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise appropriate control of the 
design of the development 

07. A minimum of 5.12 hectares of Open Space of Public Value (including both active and
passive open space, but excluding the SANG area) shall be provided within the development 
hereby permitted.   Such areas of Open Space of Public Value shall be provided in 
accordance with the Demolition Construction and Phasing Strategy approved by the Local 

97



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

Planning Authority pursuant to condition 04, made available for public use and retained as 
such thereafter.  
REASON:   To ensure the adequate provision of open space within the development 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP R4, Core Strategy CS8] 

08. No dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied until (a) an area of Suitable
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) at Big Wood has been laid out in accordance with 
the SANG Management Plan; (b) the Big Wood SANG has been made available to the 
public; (c) the public footpath linking the application site to Big Wood has been enhanced in 
accordance with the SANG Management Plan and (d) the longer SANGs link between Riggs 
Copse and Big Wood via the existing footbridge at the end of Beehive Road must be 
provided and signposted in accordance with the SANGs Management Plan.  
No more than 405 dwellings shall be occupied until (a) an area of SANG at Riggs Copse has 
been laid out in accordance with the SANG Management Plan; (b) the Riggs Copse SANG 
has been made available to the public; and (c) a footpath link between Riggs Copse and Big 
Wood has been provided in accordance with the SANG Management Plan.   
REASON: To ensure that the SANG is provided at the appropriate time. 
[Relevant Policies: SEP NRM6; Core Strategy CS14] 

09. Prior to commencement of any phase of the development, a programme of
archaeological works shall be implemented in accordance with a phase-specific written 
scheme of investigation for that phase of the development, which has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing. Where the programme of work provides 
for field evaluation, the results shall inform archaeological mitigation measures that may be 
required for that particular phase, to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority.  
REASON: In the interests of the archaeological and historical heritage of the Borough. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN6, EN7] 

10. Any application for the approval of landscaping as a Reserved Matter shall include
details of the following in respect of the relevant Phase or Sub Phase:  
i. The proposed finished ground levels or contours
ii. Underground service and external lighting layout (drainage, power, communications
cables, pipelines etc. indicating lines, manholes etc.), both existing reused and proposed 
new routes. 
iii. Comprehensive planting plans of an appropriate scale and level of detail that provides
adequate clarity including details of ground preparation and all other operations associated 
with plant and grass establishment, full schedules of plants, noting species, and detailed 
plant sizes/root stock specifications, planting layout, proposed numbers/densities locations.

iv. Details of semi mature tree planting.
v. Comprehensive 5 year post planting maintenance schedule.
vi. Means of enclosure (walls and fences etc)
vii. Paving including pedestrian open spaces, paths, patios, proposed materials and
construction methods, cycle routes, parking courts, play areas etc. 
vii. Recycling/refuse or other storage units,
viii. The siting, layout and equipment proposed for any Active and Passive Open Space of
Public Value 
ix. The creation of new water and associated habitats including landscaped buffers to
watercourses 
x. Details of ecological mitigation measures where appropriate
xi. Any other landscape features (water features, seating, trellis and pergolas etc).
No building within a phase or sub phase shall be occupied until landscaping for that phase or 
sub phase has been provided in full and in accordance with the approved details of 
landscaping for that Phase or Sub Phase.  
REASON: In the interests of good landscape design and the visual amenity of the area.  

98



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 

11. A landscape management plan, including:
a) long term design objectives;
b) management responsibilities; and
c) maintenance schedules
for all landscape areas within a Phase or Sub Phase of the development (other than the 
SANG, large open space areas to be transferred to the Council by agreement and domestic 
gardens) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior 
to the commencement of any part of that Phase or Sub-Phase of the development. The 
landscape management plan shall be carried out as approved, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
As a minimum, the quality of all hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in 
accordance with British Standard 4428:1989 'Code Of practice For General Landscape 
Operations' or any subsequent revision. All trees and other plants included within the 
approved details shall be healthy, well formed specimens of a minimum quality that is 
compatible with British Standard 3936:1992 (Part 1) 'Specifications for Trees & Shrubs' or 
any subsequent revision.  Any trees or other plants which within a period of 5 years from the 
completion of the Phase or Sub Phase, die, are removed, uprooted, are significantly 
damaged, become diseased or deformed, shall be replaced during the nearest planting 
season (1st October to 31st March inclusive) with others of the same size, species and 
quality as approved, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 
variation.  
REASON: To ensure that the landscaping is maintained in the interests of the visual 
amenities of the area.  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 

12. No Phase or Sub Phase of the development shall be begun until the following details
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority:- 
a) A comprehensive land (topographical) survey in accordance with Section 4 of British
Standard 5837:2012 'Trees In Relation to Construction Recommendations' (or any 
subsequent revision), identifying the positions of all existing trees over 250mm girth at 1m (or 
overall woodland group outlines) to be retained (including their crown spreads) together with 
any retained hedgerows or shrubbery on the land to be retained in that phase; 
b) Details of any proposed topping or lopping of any retained tree, or of any tree on land
adjacent to the site which overhangs the site; and 
c) Details of any proposed alterations in existing ground levels, and of the position of any
proposed excavation, within the crown spread of any retained tree or of any tree on land 
adjacent to the site  
In this condition "retained tree" means an existing tree which is to be retained in accordance 
with the survey referred to in paragraph (a) above.   
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies within 5 years of the completion 
of a Phase or Sub Phase, another tree shall be planted at the same location and the 
replacement tree shall be of such size and species (and shall be planted at such  time) as 
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. 
REASON: In order to safeguard the vegetation that is considered to be worthy of retention in 
the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 

13. All existing trees, hedgerows and groups of mature shrubs shown to be retained on the
survey approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to condition 12 (part a) shall be 
protected by 2.3m high (minimum) protective barriers, supported by a metal scaffold 
framework, constructed in accordance with Section 9 (Figure 2) of British Standard 
5837:2012, or any subsequent revision. The protective fencing shall be erected in the 
locations to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement 

99



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

of that Phase or Sub-Phase and shall be retained until the completion of all building 
operations on that Phase or Sub-Phase.  
REASON: In order to safeguard the vegetation that is considered to be worthy of retention in 
the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CS CS7] 

14. Save for domestic gardens, once laid out/planted the areas shown for hard and soft
landscaping purposes on the plans approved by the Local Planning Authority pursuant to 
condition 1 shall thereafter be retained as such and shall not be used for any other purpose 
without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.  
REASON: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN2 and EN20, CSDPD CS7] 

15. No Phase or Sub Phase of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced
until the access works in respect of that Phase or Sub Phase as set out in the approved 
Demolition, Construction and Phasing Strategy have been completed in accordance with the 
following drawings (subject to any minor variations that may be required through the 
completion of a s278 agreement with the Highway Authority):  
23732-001-SK006-C Proposed highway layout (showing details of cycleway) 
23732-001-004-Q Proposed highway layout  
Thereafter such accesses shall be retained and there shall be no motor vehicular access or 
egress from the site onto London Road, North View, South View, Beehive road or Cain Road 
other than from these approved accesses. 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety.  
[Relevant Policies: CS CS23] 

16. Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, no dwelling or other
building shall be occupied until: 
(a) a means of vehicular access; and 
(b) a means of access to it for pedestrians and cyclists; and 
(c) vehicle and cycle parking spaces; 
have been constructed in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority.  Such accesses and parking spaces shall thereafter be retained. 
REASON: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate car parking to prevent 
the likelihood of on-street car parking and in the interests of the accessibility of the site to 
pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles.  
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy DPD CS23; BFBLP M9] 

17. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until a new footway / cycleway
adjacent to the north side of London Road has been completed between the Borough 
boundary and the proposed signal controlled crossing of London Road in general 
accordance with the works shown on drawing 23732-001-SK006-C.  
REASON: In the interests of accessibility and to facilitate access by cyclists and/or 
pedestrians. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP M6, Core Strategy DPD CS23]  

18. No development shall take place until an overarching surface water drainage strategy
for the whole site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of the 
hydrological and hydro geological context of the development, and in accordance with the 
submitted Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 
planning authority. The drainage strategy should demonstrate (a) that the surface water run-
off rate generated up to and including the 1 in 100 year with an allowance for climate change 
critical storm will not exceed the run-off rate from the undeveloped site following the 
corresponding rainfall event; and (b) that adequate rights exist to permit discharge into the 
balancing pond owned by HP. 

100



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

No Phase or Sub Phase of the development hereby permitted shall commence until details 
for the disposal of surface water using Sustainable drainage systems and sewage for that 
Phase or Sub Phase have been submitted to and approved in writing, by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
The details submitted will demonstrate that the surface water run-off rate generated up to 
and including the 1 in 100 year with an allowance for climate change critical storm for 
the Phase or Sub Phase, will not exceed the run-off rate from the undeveloped site following 
the corresponding rainfall event.  The Phase or Sub Phase surface water drainage strategy 
shall be implemented in full prior to first occupation of that Phase or Sub Phase or within any 
other period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason: To ensure that the site is properly drained and does not increase the risk of 
flooding. 
[Relevant Policy: BWLP WLP6] 

19. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a
scheme to dispose of surface water that should ensure that soakaways are not constructed 
into contaminated land has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.  
REASON: There are specific areas of this site identified as having a previous potentially 
contaminative use. To prevent enhanced mobilisation of unidentified pollutants within the 
soils or within areas identified as historic landfills surface water drainage systems must not 
discharge through contaminated land. 
[Relevant Policy: BWLP WLP6] 

20. Development shall not commence until a foul water drainage strategy detailing any on
and/or off site drainage works to upgrade the foul drainage network, has been submitted to 
and approved by, the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be implemented as 
approved. There shall be no occupation of buildings serviced by foul water infrastructure or 
discharge of foul or surface water from the site into the public system until the drainage 
works referred to in the strategy have been completed in full.  
Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient foul 
drainage capacity is made available to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid 
adverse environmental impact upon the community.  
[Relevant Policy: BWLP WLP6] 

21. The development hereby permitted shall not be begun until an Energy Demand
Assessment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
This shall demonstrate: 
(a)  that before taking account of any on-site renewable energy production the proposed 
development will reduce carbon dioxide emissions by at least 10% against the appropriate 
Target Emission Rate as set out in Part L of the Building Regulations (2006), and  
(b)  that a proportion of the development's energy requirements will be provided from on-site 
renewable energy production (which proportion shall be 20%).  
The buildings thereafter constructed by the carrying out of the development shall be in 
accordance with the approved assessment and retained in accordance therewith.  
REASON: In the interests of the sustainability and the efficient use of resources.  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CS Policy CS12] 

22. No Phase or Sub Phase shall commence until either a Design Stage Report and BRE
Interim Certificate or a pre-assessment estimator carried out by an independent assessor 
licensed by the Building Research Establishment has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that the buildings within the relevant 
Phase or Sub Phase will be capable of meeting a minimum standard of Level 3 of the Code 
for Sustainable Homes in the case of residential buildings or a "Very Good" BREEAM rating 
in the case of non-residential buildings. Thereafter the development shall be implemented in 

101



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

accordance with the Design Stage Report and interim certificate and retained in accordance 
therewith.   
REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources. 
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CS Policy CS10] 

23. Within one month of the first occupation of the final Phase or Sub Phase  of the
development, a Post Construction Review Report shall be carried out by an independent 
assessor licensed by the Building Research Establishment and a Final Code Certificate shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning Authority which demonstrates that the development has 
been constructed to meet a minimum standard of level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes 
in the case of residential buildings or a "Very Good" BREEAM rating in the case of non-
residential buildings.  
REASON: In the interests of sustainability and the efficient use of resources. 
[Relevant Policy: Core Strategy DPD CS10] 

24. Development shall not be begun until a remediation options appraisal and/or a Tier 3
geo-environmental risk assessment outlining a detailed site specific Remediation Strategy for 
the Site to further assess the identified geo-environmental risks has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall include consideration of the 
potential presence of asbestos in the soil and provide details of how it will be appropriately 
managed during any earthworks, foundation work or soil disposal work.  It shall confirm the 
soil gas regime of the site via further soil gas monitoring and risk assessments in accordance 
with current guidance (e.g. CIRIA, 2007). 
Further to any remediation taking place a program of monitoring ground gas shall be 
commissioned in all of the wells fitted with a gas tap across the site, in accordance with 
CIRIA C6656, to determine the nature of the ground gas regime at the site and any 
requirements for gas protection measures within the proposed development. Any additional 
information provided by the ground gas assessment programme should assist in the 
refinement of the remedial strategy. 
The remediation strategy shall be implemented in full as approved unless otherwise agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority  
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the 
site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted a remediation strategy to the 
local planning authority detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with and 
obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority. The remediation strategy shall 
be implemented in full as approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
A Site Completion Report shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority.  The report must detail the conclusions, actions taken and verification 
methodology at each stage of the works and shall include a sampling and analysis 
programme to confirm the adequacy of decontamination. An appropriately qualified person 
shall oversee the implementation of all remediation. The construction of buildings shall not 
commence until the investigator has provided a report, which shall include confirmation that 
all remediation measures have been carried out fully in accordance with the remediation 
scheme. The report shall also include results of the verification programme of post-
remediation sampling and monitoring in order to demonstrate that the required remediation 
has been fully met. Future monitoring proposals and reporting shall also be detailed in the 
report. This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 
"Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11" and the CIRIA 
C665. 
REASON: The proposed development is located on a potentially contaminated site, due to its 
historic land use.  This site is sited over an isolated outcrop of Bagshot Beds and Claygate 
member (Secondary A Aquifers) and there is sufficient groundwater in these aquifers to feed 
springs that emanate radially from the site.  The Phase 1 and 2 reports submitted identify a 

102



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

moderate risk of harm to human health for the residential area of the proposed development 
and that hotspots for certain contaminants have been identified.  In accordance with the 
recommendations of the Phase 1 and 2 reports a Phase 3 report is required to further assess 
and remediate the identified geo-environmental risks to ensure the development is suitable 
for its end use and the wider environment and does not create undue risks to occupiers of 
the site or surrounding areas. 
[Relevant Policy: BFBLP EN25] 

25. No Phase or Sub Phase of the development hereby permitted shall commence until a
lighting strategy for that Phase or Sub Phase has been submitted to and approved in writing, 
by the Local Planning Authority. 
The lighting strategy for each Phase or Sub Phase shall be implemented in full prior to first 
occupation of that Phase or Sub Phase or within any other period as may be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity. 
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN15, EN2O and EN25] 

26. The development shall not be begun until a scheme for the installation of biodiversity
enhancement measures (such as wildlife permeable fencing, bird and bats boxes or wildlife 
gates), including a plan or drawing showing the location of these features, has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The approved scheme 
shall be performed, observed and complied with. 
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1, CS7] 

27. The scheme hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation
measures outlined in the Environmental Impact Assessment unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. An ecological site inspection report shall be 
submitted for approval within three months of the first occupation of any dwelling hereby 
approved.   
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1] 

28. If more than 2 years elapse between the previous protected species surveys and the
due commencement date of works, updated protected species surveys shall be carried out 
by a suitably qualified ecologist, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. A report confirming the results and implications of the assessment, including any 
revised mitigation measures, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority before 
construction works commence on site.  
REASON: To ensure the status of protected species on site has not changed since the last 
survey. 
[Relevant Plans and Policies: Core Strategy CS1, CS7] 

29. No site clearance shall take place during the main bird-nesting period of 1st March to
31st August inclusive, unless a scheme to minimise the impact on nesting birds during the 
construction of the development has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
REASON: In the interests of nature conservation 
[Relevant Plans and Policies: BFBLP EN3 CS1, CS7] 

30. No phase or sub phase of the development hereby permitted shall be begun until a
scheme for protecting the proposed dwellings/gardens from noise has been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. Any works which form part of the scheme 
approved by the Local Planning Authority shall be completed before any dwelling in that 
phase or sub phase is occupied.  

103



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

REASON: To ensure that the amenities of the future residents is not adversely affected by 
noise. As the road traffic noise assessment indicates that noise mitigation is required as part 
of this development in order to ensure acceptable internal noise levels for future residential 
properties as per BS8233:2014 criteria and nearby existing residential properties.  
[Relevant Plans and Policies: BFBLP EN25] 

31. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a site-wide Construction
and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The site-wide CEMP shall incorporate a Site Waste 
Management Plan; a Materials Management Plan; a Dust Management Plan; and Wildlife 
Protection Plan.   
No development within any Phase or Sub Phase shall take place, until a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for that Phase or Sub Phase has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.   
The site-wide CEMP and each Phase or Sub Phase CEMP shall include as a minimum: 
(i).  a Construction Logistics/ Site Organisation Plan (save in respect of the site-wide CEMP) 
(ii) The location of construction access for the relevant Phase or Sub Phase of demolition 
and construction (save in respect of the site-wide CEMP);  
(iii) The routing of construction traffic (including directional signage and appropriate traffic 
management measures) to minimise the impact of local residents and other road users  
(iv) Details of the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
(v) Areas for loading and unloading of plant and materials  
(vi) Areas for the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development  
(vii) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding  
(viii) External lighting of the site 
(ix) Method of piling for foundations 
(x) Measures to control the emission of dust, dirt, noise and odour during construction  
(xi) Measures to control surface water run-off  
(xii) Measures to prevent ground and water pollution from contaminants on-site  
(xiii) construction working hours and hours during which delivery vehicles or vehicles taking 
materials away are allowed to enter or leave the site;  
(xiv) Details of wheel-washing facilities;  
(xv) details in respect of measures to minimise, re-use and re-cycle waste; minimise the 
pollution potential of unavoidable waste; and dispose of unavoidable waste in an 
environmentally acceptable manner; 
(xvi) details of measures to mitigate the impact of construction activities on ecology including 
a) an appropriate scale plan showing where construction activities are restricted and
protective measures; b) details of protective measures to avoid impacts during construction; 
c) a timetable to show phasing of construction activities; and d) persons responsible for
compliance with legal consents, planning conditions, installation of protective measures, 
inspection and maintenance; and  
(xvii) Details of a monitoring regime to demonstrate compliance with the CEMP including 
timings for reports to be submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved Construction Environmental Management Plans (or any amended scheme as 
may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority) shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period.  
REASON: To mitigate and control environmental effects during the construction phases  
[Relevant Policies: BFBLP EN25] 

32. No development shall take place until a scheme for the translocation of orchids, to
include monitoring and remedial action, has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
Reason: In the interests of nature conservation. 
[Relevant Plans and Policies: CSDPD CS1] 

104



Planning Committee  21st August 2014 

33. The total amount of floorspace hereby permitted within Use Classes A1, A2 ,A3 and A4
shall not exceed 1488 sq m gross external area. No retail units within Use Classes A1 or A2 
shall individually exceed 375 sq m gross external area.  There shall be no amalgamation of 
units such that at any time any retail unit within Use Classes A1 or A2 exceeds 375 sq m 
gross external area. 
REASON: To accord with the terms of the application and to safeguard the viability and 
vitality of existing town and village centres. 
[Relevant Policies: Core Strategy CS22] 

In the event of the S106 planning obligation(s) not being completed by 30th November 
2014 the Head of Development Management be authorised to REFUSE the application 
on the grounds of:- 

01. The proposed development would unacceptably increase the pressure on the
transportation network, education facilities, community facilities, public open space, built 
sports facilities and libraries.  In the absence of planning obligations in terms that are 
satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, and which secure contributions towards the 
transportation network, education facilities, community facilities, public open space, built 
sports facilities and libraries, the proposal is contrary to Policy SA6 of the Site Allocations 
Local plan, Policies CS6 and CS24 of the Bracknell Forest Core Strategy DPD, and Policies 
M4 and R4 of the Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan. 

02. The occupants of the development would put extra pressure on the Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area and the applicants have not satisfactorily mitigated the 
development to comply with the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance 
and Mitigation Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2012. In the absence of a section 
106 planning obligation to secure suitable mitigation measures, the proposal would therefore 
be contrary to Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan, Policy EN3 of the Bracknell Forest 
Borough Local Plan, Policy CS14 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document and to 
the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance and Mitigation Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) 2012. 

03. In the absence of a planning obligation to secure affordable housing in terms that are
satisfactory to the Local Planning Authority, the proposal is contrary to Policy H8 of the 
Bracknell Forest Borough Local Plan and Policy CS16 of the Core Strategy Development 
Plan Document. 

Doc. Ref: Uniform 7/DC/Agenda 

The application file to which this report relates can be viewed at the Council's Time Square office during office hours 
or online at www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

105



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	 Planning Applications
	5 Application 15/00122/FUL - Nutcroft, 20 Priory Lane, Warfield, Bracknell
	6 Application 15/00168/FUL - 1 Addiscombe Road, Crowthorne
	7 Application 15/00229/FUL - Land At Felix Farm Fisheries, Howe Lane, Binfield, Bracknell
	8 Application 15/00346/RTD - Junction Of Ellis Road and Old Wokingham Road, Crowthorne
	9 Application 12/00993/OUT - Land At Amen Corner, West Of Beehive Road Between The Reading-Waterloo Railway Line and London Road, London Road, Binfield, Bracknell
	Misc Report - Annex 1
	Binder1
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 25
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 26
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 27
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 28
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 29
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 30
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 31
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 32
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 33
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 34
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 35
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 36
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 37
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 38
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 39
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 40
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 41
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 42
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 43
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 44
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 45
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 46
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 47
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 48
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 49
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 50
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 51
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 52
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 53
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 54
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 55
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 56
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 57
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 58
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 59
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 60
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 61
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 62
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 63
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 64
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 65

	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 66
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 67
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 68
	Thursday 21-Aug-2014 19.30 Planning Committee 69





